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Highlights

Financial highlights 

Operational highlights
 › Acquisition of remaining 18.2% units in the Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit 

Trust for £49.7 million increasing ownership to 100%
 › UK portfolio refinanced with a new £330.0 million five-year loan facility at an 

all-in cost of 2.3% per annum
 › Netherlands portfolio refinanced with a new €145.0 million five-year loan 

facility at an all-in cost of 2.6% per annum
 › Like-for-like occupancy improvement of 131,000 sq m or 28.2% of the 

vacancy at the start of the year
 › Like-for-like rent roll improvement of £2.1 million per annum
 › Like-for-like property valuation increase across the total portfolio of 2.8%
 › £34.2 million of sales generating profits of £4.7 million

Post balance sheet events
 › Offer for the entire issued ordinary share capital of Industrial Multi Property 

Trust PLC (“IMPT”)
 › Contracts exchanged on terms for the sale of Hansteen’s German and 

Dutch portfolios for €1.28 billion

 

Total annual return to shareholders

20.8%
or 23.1p (EPRA NAV growth of 17.7p plus 
dividends paid of 5.35p)

 

IFRS profit before tax

£119.9m
(FY 2015: £171.4 million)

 

Normalised Income Profit 

£61.1m
(FY 2015: £47.2 million)1

 

Normalised Total Profit

£66.0
(FY 2015: £63.2 million)1 

 

IFRS NAV per share

124.0p
(31 December 2015: 105.2p)

 

EPRA NAV per share

128.9p
(31 December 2015: 111.2p)1

 

Full-year dividend

5.9p
(2015: 5.25p per share) 

 

Net debt to property value ratio

40.9%
(31 December 2015: 41.2%)1

1. Important Explanatory Notes about Alternative 
Performance Measures used in this report:

 EPRA and adjusted metrics: The financial 
statements are prepared under IFRS. The Board 
monitors a number of alternative performance 
measures when assessing the underlying 
performance of the business. These include 
Normalised Income Profit (“NIP”), Normalised Total 
Profit (“NTP”) and those defined by EPRA. NIP and 
NTP are defined in the Joint Chief Executives’ 
statement and note 6 of the financial statements 
contains the reconciliation of these to IFRS profit 
before tax. Note 14 of the financial statements has 
more information about the EPRA adjustments and 
the reconciliation of these to the IFRS equivalents. 
A reconciliation of net debt and the net debt to value 
ratio is shown in the Financial Review and note 36 of 
the financial statements.
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Ataglance

We buy undervalued portfolios, oftenwith high
levels of vacancy orotheropportunities to add
value.We apply an intensive programmeof
improvement using our local management
teams and sell to realise thevalue added.
We have created a high-yielding property
portfolio that ismanagedfromour 15o�ces
across Europe and the UK.

O�ces

Properties undermanagement

Millionpounds perannumrent roll

15

£1.7bn

£131.4m 5,262
Tenants

Ourmanagedportfolioataglance
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Squaremetres intotal

3.8m
UnitedKingdom Germany

France&Belgium Netherlands

£676.8m £761.7m

£34.7m £264.7m
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intheAshtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust

from 111.2ppershare at thestart of the
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Chairman’s review

I ampleased to present Hansteen’s results and
Strategic Report for theyearended 31December
2016.This is my �rst report as Chairmanand it has
beenanexceptionalyear for the businesswithour
portfolio and ourteamonce againdelivering record
results. EPRA NAV growth plus dividends paid inthe
yearof 23.1p per share is a total returnto
shareholders of 20.8%.

Normalised Income Pro�t (“NIP”) up 29.4%to

(FY2015:£47.2million)

NormalisedTotal Pro�t (“NTP”) up4.4%to

(FY2015:£63.2million)

EPRA NetAssetValue up 15.9%to

(31December2015: 111.2p)

£61.1million

£66.0million

128.9p

Althoughthe EUreferendumprovideda
periodof uncertainty inthe property market,
wewere ableto securethe remaining units

(“AIF”) and re�nance boththe Dutchand UK
bankingfacilities on improvedterms.However,
otheropportunities to acquire property that
we believeo�erexcellent value andfuture
growthpotential have remained limiteddue
tothestrong investmentmarket andsoour
in-houseasset management platformhas
focusedongrowingthe portfolio occupancy
and rent roll resulting inthe highest ever
numberof new lettings and lease renewals,
record like-for-like rent growthandthe
highest ever portfolio occupancy rate.

Normalised Income Pro�t (“NIP”),which
excludes pro�ts or losses fromthesaleof
properties,essentially the recurringearnings
of the business, increased by 29.4%to £61.1
million (FY 2015: £47.2million). Normalised
Total Pro�t (“NTP”), being NIPplus pro�ts and
losses fromproperty sales and realised pro�ts
fromone-o� items,was £66.0millionwhich
is an increaseof 4.4% (FY 2015: £63.2million).
Bothof these results are records for Hansteen.

TheGroup’s IFRS pre-tax pro�t forthe
yearwas £119.9million (FY 2015: £171.4
million).This decreasewas largely dueto
the highproperty revaluationonthetotal
portfolio in 2015 (£131.2million) thatwas
not repeated in 2016 (£45.5million). Diluted
EPRA EPSwas 6.7p (FY 2015: 2.2p) and
basic EPSwas 14.8p (FY 2015: 21.3p).

TheGroup’s EPRA NetAssetValuewas
128.9ppershare,an increaseof 15.9%

year. Furtherdetails of the�nancial results

Results
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can be found in the Joint Chief Executives’ 
statement and Financial Review.

Since the beginning of 2014 until the end of 
2015 our financial results have been adversely 
affected by a materially strengthening 
sterling currency rate against the euro. During 
2016 the euro has strengthened against 
sterling largely reversing the movement 
we experienced over the last two years.

Dividend
The Board is committed to a prudently 
progressive dividend policy to 
reflect the high and growing income 
generated by the business.

The interim dividend paid on 18 November 
2016 was increased by 4.8% to 2.2p per share 
(November 2015: 2.1p per share). The second 
ongoing dividend is being increased more 
substantially in the light of the very strong 
income growth. A dividend of 3.7p per share 
(May 2016: 3.15p per share) represents an 
increase of 17.5%. The full-year dividend of 
5.9p per share has increased by 12.4% from 
the 2015 full-year dividend of 5.25p per share.

The ex-dividend date is 20 April 2017 and 
the dividend is payable on 18 May 2017 to 
shareholders on the register at the close 
of business on 21 April 2017. A Property 
Income Distribution (“PID”) of 2.1p is included 
in this second interim dividend payment.

Board changes
As stated in the interim report, James 
Hambro retired as Chairman on 23 August 
2016. James had been Chairman of Hansteen 
since IPO in 2005 and had been a major 
part in the success of the business. The 
Board would like to thank James for his 

exceptional contribution to the Group over 
this period and wish him well in the future.

Humphrey Price retired at the same time after 
six years as a Board member and the Board 
would also like to thank Humphrey for his 
considerable contribution to Hansteen since 
his appointment. Rebecca Worthington has 
succeeded Humphrey as Chair of the Audit 
Committee and Margaret Young is now the 
Chair of the Remuneration Committee.

Outlook
The yield at 31 December 2016 on our built 
portfolio was 7.8% against an average all-in 
cost of borrowing of 3.2%. This significant 
spread offers potential for further capital 
growth. This compares favourably to the 
other property sectors where yields have 
reached historic lows during 2015 or earlier. 
The portfolio also offers earnings upside 
through the letting of the remaining vacant 
area and emerging rental growth which will 
allow the business to continue to generate 
strong income returns in the future. We 
also have 447 acres of undeveloped land 
which does not yet produce income but 
will in time produce further value. We will 
continue to focus on realised returns 
allowing us to pay a well-covered and 
growing dividend to our shareholders.

Post balance sheet events
On 22 February 2017 the Board made an 
offer for the entire issued ordinary share 
capital of Industrial Multi Property Trust PLC 
(“IMPT”). Under the terms of the offer, IMPT 
shareholders will receive 300p in cash for each 
IMPT share held which values the entire issued 
ordinary share capital of IMPT at £25.2 million. 
Hansteen has since acquired, as disclosed on 
17 March 2017, 21.71% of IMPT’s share capital 

and at the first close for the offer on 15 March 
2017 had received valid acceptances of 
28.44%, which in aggregate represent 50.15% 
of IMPT’s share capital. The offer will remain 
open for acceptance until the next closing 
date which will be 1.00 p.m. (London time) on 
Wednesday 22 March 2017. More details can be 
found in the Joint Chief Executives’ statement.

Today we announced that contracts have been 
exchanged on terms for the sale of Hansteen’s 
German and Dutch portfolios. More details are 
contained in the RNS announcement and a 
circular will be posted to shareholders shortly.

Melvyn Egglenton
Chairman
19 March 2017

Realising 
value
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Ourstrategy

Hansteen is a leading owner and asset manager
of a very diverse portfolio of European industrial
property, mainly located in Germany, the UK and
the Netherlands. Our core mission is to provide
investors with consistent, high and realised returns.

Strategic
priorities

1Acquire selectively

2 Manage intensively

3 Increase values

distribute pro�ts

Weareanentrepreneurial investorwho
looksforopportunistic investments

managementteamshavetheskills

requirementsand improveoccupancy

activeassetmanagement initiatives
leadingto increasedvalues

Wefocusonrealised returnsthrough

tenant base.ThisallowsHansteentopay

thatwillcreateahigh-yielding
property portfolio

Our locally based, in-houseasset

tomeetthemost complexoccupier

Afterpurchaseweaimtomaximise
rental incomeandoccupancythrough

rental incomeandpro�tonsales
generatedfromastronganddiversi�ed

awell-coveredandgrowingdividend

4 Realise and
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Progress Keyperformance
in2016 indicators

Delivering
results
Wehaveacquiredthe remaining18.2%of units inAIF
for£49.7millionwhichrepresentstheacquisitionof
£79.3millionof propertyatayieldonthepassing
rentof8.0%.

occupancy by 131,000sqmor28.2%ofthevacant

rent has increasedby£2.1million.

Allthreeofourcore regions (Germany,theUKand
theNetherlands) producedpositivevaluegrowth.
Thetotaluplift invaluewas£46.1millionor2.8%.
This has helpedto increasetheEPRANAVper
shareto129p.

dividendof5.9ppershare representsa12.4%
increaseon2015.

Portfolioyield

Occupancy

EPRA NAV (pershare)

Dividend (pershare)

7.6%

7.8%

8.5%

2016

2015

2014

2016

2015

2014

Ourteamshave increasedthe like-for-like

areaatthestartoftheyear.Like-for-likepassing

Normalised IncomePro�tof £61.1millionand
NormalisedTotalPro�tof £66.0millionarethe
highest inanyyearforHansteen.Thefull-year

91.2%

88.1%

86.0%

2016

2015

2014

129p

111p

102p

2016

2015

2014

5.9p

5.25p

5.0p
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Businessmodel

Howwe
addvalue

01.

Buy Manage Sell
Disciplinedinvestment

Wepickour investments basedona Returns comefromrental incomeand

thoroughassessment of theopportunities management teamsacrosstheUKandour sellingat increasedvalue.

inordertocreatea high-yielding portfolio regions inContinental Europe.

withpotentialtoaddvalue. Wesupplement our buy,manage,sell

Weworkhardat creatingthe right businessmodelwithotheropportunity

Ourbalancesheet is strongandwe remain relationshipswithourstakeholders so

thatweare inthe primepositionto react canbemade, includingdeals inother

whenopportunities arise.Weapply sectors,especially landwherewe

anactiveassetmanagement strategy believewecanmake planninggains.

toourproperties inorderto improve

occupancy anddrive rental income

whichshould leadto increasedvalues.

typeswherewethinkgoodprofts

committedtofnancingona prudent basis.

02.

Localexpertise

Wehave 15ofceswithexperienced

03.

Realisevalue
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TheGroup buys undervalued
portfolios, oftenwith high levels
of vacancy orothertangible
opportunities to addvalue, applies an
intensive programmeof improvement
using its localmanagement teams,
and sells to realise thevalue added.

Wetarget twotypes of
investments, one that
provides a highyield, and
the otherthat, although
loweryielding, o�ers the

management initiatives.

sustainable growth inour

occupancy,whichshould
lead to increasedvalues.

and distribute the pro�ts

potential for capital growth
through intense asset

We seekto produce

rental income and

Wethenaimto realise

to our shareholders.

Establishedstrengths

Industrialproperty Thefundamental
valuedynamics

andeconomical
commercialproperty
typewiththewidest
occupationalaudience

foraddingvalue

isthemostfexible
arestrong

Opportunitiesexist

Ourproperties arevalued

replacement cost,which

limits new supply.Ourproperties appealto

a huge rangeof occupiers

whichmeanswehavean

extremely diversetenant

basewithout relianceon

any particulartenantsor

industries.Occupational

demand inall threecore

regions is currently strong.

Withover40millionsqft of

predominantly industrial

property,we haveawide

rangeof spacetomeet

the requirementsof a Even ina low growth
diversemix of tenants. environment,we have

opportunities toaddvalue.

We haveamaterialvacant

element of the portfolio

that canbe let andwe have

toaddadditionalvalue.

at signi�cantly below

asigni�cant bankof land
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occupiers. Retailingtrends are changingwith

thetransferof goodsfromshopstosheds and
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JointChief Executives’statement

Hansteen has had the same business model and
strategy since the Company was founded in
November 2005. We aim to buy high-yielding assets
(normally multi-let or single-let industrial properties)
that are undervalued and undermanaged using our

buying property.
entrepreneurial and opportunistic approachto

We then apply speci�c asset management
initiatives to increase the income and value
before realising the added value through
sales of individual properties or larger
portfolio disposals. Finally,we distribute
the pro�ts to our shareholders through
well-covered dividend payments.

Light industrial property continues to provide
�exible and a�ordable commercial space for

retailers are reassessing how they will service
their customers quickly, in and around towns
and cities.As a result, occupational demand is
outstripping supply which has meant increased
occupancy and pockets of rental growth
across our portfolio. We have an established
network of 15 o�ces sta�ed with talented and
experienced asset management teams able
to capture this improving trend intheir local
markets across the UK and continental Europe.
Supported by a team of marketing and �nance
professionals, our in-house platformworks
together to drive income and value forward
across our £1.7 billion property portfolio. We
are very thankfulforthe continued e�orts
of our teams which have enabled us to
report on anotheryear of record results.

IanWatson

MorganJones

Joint Chief Executive

Joint Chief Executive
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"

Financial results for 2016
Since 2011, we have sought to emphasise 
realised returns and value growth as the most 
important measures of the performance 
of the Group. We have particularly focused 
on what we have called Normalised Income 
Profit (“NIP”) being the recurring earnings of 
the business, effectively income less costs. 
As the business has grown and investment 
markets have improved, we have carried out 
an increasing number of investment property 
sales which are now a regular, if fluctuating, 
feature of our business. As such, we use 
Normalised Total Profit (“NTP”), defined as 
NIP plus profits or losses from the sale of 
properties and realised profits from one-
off items, as one of our Key Performance 
Indicators (“KPIs”) along with NIP.

NIP for the year to 31 December 2016 
increased by 29.4% to £61.1 million (FY 2015: 
£47.2 million) and NTP increased by 4.4% to 
£66.0 million (FY 2015: £63.2 million). Both 
of these are record results for Hansteen. 
The main reason for the increase in NIP 
was the additional profits from AIF after 
the acquisition of the remaining units which 
we completed in July 2016. The NTP has 
not increased as much as the NIP, as during 
2015, the Group disposed of £278.4 million 
of property into a very buoyant investment 
market which generated profits of £14.5 
million over valuation. The equivalent sales 
number in 2016 was £34.2 million as a variety of 
factors, including the EU referendum, slowed 
investment activity markedly. These 2016 
sales have generated profits of £4.7 million.

The table below sets out the results for Normalised Income Profit and Normalised  
Total Profit and how they are calculated: 

2016
£m

2015
£m

Rental income 109.4 81.2
Cost of sales (14.7) (12.5)
Management fees 2.0 4.1
Share of associates 9.6 12.1
Overheads (20.7) (18.9)
Net interest payable (24.5) (18.8)

Normalised Income Profit 61.1 47.2
Profit on sale of properties 4.7 14.5
Other operating income 0.2 1.5

Normalised Total Profit 66.0 63.2

 

Light industrial property continues 
to provide flexible and affordable 
commercial space for occupiers. 
Retailing trends are changing with the 
transfer of goods from shops to sheds 
and retailers are reassessing how they 
will service their customers quickly,  
in and around towns and cities.”

We focus on EPRA NAV per share plus 
dividends as the best measure of value growth. 
During 2016, EPRA NAV per share increased 
from 111.2p to 128.9p and in addition there 
was the payment of a 5.35p dividend. This 
performance equates to a Total Annual 
Return to shareholders of 23.1p or 20.8%.

The euro has strengthened against sterling 
during 2016 meaning the net assets 
denominated in euros are translated at 
a more favourable rate at 31 December 
2016 compared to 31 December 2015. 
This has resulted in a £70.6 million 
increase in the IFRS net assets.

More details of the financial performance 
are contained in the Financial Review and 
the reconciliation of NIP and NTP to the 
IFRS profit before tax is contained in note 6 
to the financial statements. Basic NAV per 
share is reconciled to EPRA NAV per share 
in note 14 to the financial statements.
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Joint Chief Executives’ statement continued

Property portfolio
The built portfolio has a yield of 7.8% on the passing rent. Including the 447 acres of undeveloped land the yield of the total portfolio is 7.6% 
(2015: 7.8%). The summary analysis of the portfolio, at 31 December 2016, is set out in the table below:

Passing rent Value

No. props
Acres  

of land
Built area 

sq m
Vacant area 

%
Euros 

€m
Sterling 

£m
Euros 

€m
Sterling 

£m Yield

UK 286 16 1,459,702 7.7% 57.6 49.4 729.7 626.3 7.9%
UK Land – 431 – 0.0% 0.1 0.1 58.9 50.5 0.2%

UK Total 286 447 1,459,702 7.7% 57.7 49.5 788.6 676.8 7.3%
Germany 100 – 1,560,398 8.9% 65.3 56.1 887.5 761.7 7.4%
Benelux 80 – 773,572 10.5% 30.0 25.7 348.8 299.4 8.6%

Total portfolio 466 447 3,793,672 8.8% 153.0 131.3 2,024.9 1,737.9 7.6%

We have seen occupier demand increase 
from internet retailers for “last mile” logistics 
space to service same day/next day 
delivery requirements, space for customer 
returns handlers and from growing internet 
companies. The urban location of these “last 
mile” facilities is key for retailers with buildings 
needing to be in well-connected locations 
close to population centres. Our properties are 
generally well located enabling us to provide 
space for these retailers as well as a wide 
range of other occupiers looking to service 
their customer base in and around towns and 
cities across the UK and continental Europe.

2016 leasing activity
During 2016, our in-house asset management 
teams have completed 1,984 new lettings 
and lease renewals across the portfolio, an 
11.5% increase on the 1,780 new lettings 
and lease renewals completed in 2015. 
This high level of activity has secured 
£38.9 million of annual passing rent on 
almost 1 million square metres of space.

The vacancy at the start of the year of 5.0 
million sq ft (464,000 sq m) or 11.9% of the 
portfolio has been reduced to 3.6 million sq 
ft (332,000 sq m) or 8.8% of the portfolio at 
31 December 2016. This is a like-for-like net 
occupancy improvement of 1.4 million sq 
ft (131,000 sq m) or 28.2% of the vacancy 
at the beginning of the year. Like-for-like 
net occupancy is measured by taking the 
vacant area at the start of the year, adding 
vacancy on purchases and then comparing 
that with the vacancy at the end of the 
year. The improvement is split across our 
core regions with Germany improving 
31,800 sq m, Benelux improving 43,200 sq m 
and the UK improving by 56,000 sq m.

Our portfolio is focused more on smaller, 
urban distribution and light industrial 
warehouses rather than “big box” logistics 
properties. With 466 properties and 5,262 
tenants across five countries, most of 
our occupiers consist of stitches in the 
basic fabric of the local economies in each 
region as opposed to the larger national or 
international businesses. While we do cater for 
these types of tenants in a small proportion 
of our buildings, the vast majority of our 
tenant base are smaller, local businesses 
who undertake a wide variety of activities.

Our average unit size is just 587 sq m (or 6,313 
sq ft) across the 6,468 units in the portfolio 
with the UK properties containing a greater 
proportion of multi-let light industrial estates 
at an average unit size of 463 sq m (or 4,980 
sq ft). Germany has a greater mix of larger 
single-let buildings and multi-let estates with 
an average unit size of 606 sq m (or 6,525 sq 
ft). The Benelux and France portfolio contains 
the highest number of larger buildings with an 
average unit size of 1,047 sq m (or 11,267 sq ft).

"  

Our portfolio is focused more on smaller, 
urban distribution and light industrial 
warehouses rather than “big box” 
logistics properties. With 466 properties 
and 5,262 tenants across five countries, 
most of our occupiers consist of stitches 
in the basic fabric of the local economies 
in each region as opposed to the larger 
national or international businesses.”
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This is a very strong performance from our asset management teams who have increased 
like-for-like passing rent by £2.1 million during 2016 with each of our core regions (Germany, 
Benelux and the UK) contributing to this gain as follows:

Germany
£m

Benelux
£m

UK
£m

Total
£m

31 December 2015 passing rent roll 49.1 21.3 49.7 120.1
Passing rent added from acquisitions – 0.1 0.3 0.4
Passing rent lost from sales (1.9) (0.2) (0.9) (3.0)
Exchange effect on passing rent roll 8.3 3.5 – 11.8

55.5 24.7 49.1 129.3
31 December 2016 passing rent roll 56.1 25.7 49.6 131.4

Like-for-like improvement 0.6 1.0 0.5 2.1

Rental growth
In addition to a reduction in voids, all UK 
regions are experiencing pockets of rental 
growth and shorter incentives being offered 
to tenants as demand intensifies, particularly 
at estates where voids are zero or close to 
zero. We have a relatively short weighted 
average unexpired lease term (“WAULT”) 
on our UK portfolio of 3.2 years which allows 
this rental growth to be achieved relatively 
quickly. We believe this trend will continue as 
buoyant occupier demand remains high and 
no competing supply is coming through.

The picture across our continental European 
markets is similar to that in the UK. In 
Germany, there is evidence that rental growth 
is starting to emerge. Tenant letting and 
renewal incentives have been reducing for 
some time on assets that are well located to 
service urban conurbations and, where there 
is a lack of available supply, rental levels are 
moving forward. An example of this is at our 
Motzener Strasse asset, which was purchased 
in February 2013 with a passing rent of €3.52/
sq m. The main tenant vacated the warehouse 
later in 2013 and the space has recently 

been part re-let to an online food retailer and 
a document storage business at rents of 
€4.50/sq m and €4.19/sq m respectively. The 
WAULT of our German portfolio is 3.3 years.

Although the Dutch market is further behind in 
terms of rental growth, the occupier markets 
continue to gather momentum and there is 
expectation that supply will reduce in 2017.  
The WAULT of our Benelux portfolio is 2.7 years.

Property valuation
The like-for-like value of the total portfolio 
(which excludes any movements due to 
currency) has increased by £46.1 million or 
2.8% since December 2015 with all three core 
regions showing good valuation growth. The 
value of the German portfolio increased by 
€23.5 million or 2.7% with the Benelux and 
France portfolio increasing by €11.2 million 
or 3.3%. The UK portfolio value increased by 
£17.8 million or 2.7%. Despite the valuation 
increase, the built portfolio has a high simple 
yield of 7.8% (passing rent divided by value).

Acquisitions and disposals
The increase in investor appetite for multi-let 
light industrial property has made good value 
acquisitions hard to find, particularly in scale. 
However, we are still seeing smaller-scale 
opportunities sourced by our asset managers 
with in-depth knowledge and contacts in 
their local markets. In Germany, we have 
notarised the purchase of 11 buildings with 
a total area of 64,000 sq m for €14.0 million 
plus costs. At the time of the notarisation 
the buildings were all vacant but our team 
has taken over the management and lettings 
and so far we have let five buildings of the 
11 which represents 53% of the total area. 
The passing rent roll of the space let is €1.2 
million per annum and the market rent of 
the portfolio if fully let is €2.3 million.

As reported at the half year, we have acquired 
the remaining 18.2% of the units in the 
Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust (“AIF”). 
The total consideration paid was £49.7 million 
which was an effective 9% discount to the 
carrying value of the AIF units in Hansteen’s 
accounts which in large part represents the 
performance fee on the acquired units. These 
unit purchases represent the acquisition 
of £79.3 million of property at a yield on the 
passing rent of 8.0% which we believe is 
excellent value in the current market. There 
are practical benefits as well as cost savings 
from owning 100% of the Fund going forward.

"  

In addition to a reduction in voids, all UK 
regions are experiencing pockets of 
rental growth and shorter incentives 
being offered to tenants as demand 
intensifies, particularly at estates where 
voids are zero or close to zero.”
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The UK had 29 sales during 2016 for a total 
consideration of £17.4 million which generated 
£1.6 million of profit above the December 
2015 valuation. £1.0 million of this profit is 
attributable to Hansteen. A focus was made 
during the year to dispose of free standing 
vacant property to owner occupiers and 
non-core investments valued below £1 million. 
The largest sale was for £1.8 million and 26 
of the sales were at less than £1.0 million 
which reflects the strategy which was put in 
place. In addition to the normal marketing 
initiatives, some of the properties were sold 
through the buoyant auction market and this 
will be a strategy which is continued during 
2017. The total area of the sold properties 
was 522,000 sq ft of which 177,000 sq ft 
was vacant with circa 80,000 sq ft of this 
vacancy total sold to owner occupiers.

In Germany there were three sales which 
generated profits of €4.8 million. We sold our 
remaining residential holdings, all located in 
Magdeburg, for €6.0 million, our only hotel 
property located in Mönchengladbach 
for €2.8 million and an industrial building 
located in Berlin for €8.0 million.

One property was sold in the Netherlands 
and one property was sold in Belgium for a 
combined consideration of €3.8 million. These 
sales were at the 31 December 2015 valuation 
and although no profit was generated in 2016, 
the sales have been considered a success 
for other reasons. The Netherlands sale was 
part of a property swap transaction where 
we sold our building at the December 2015 
book value of €2.2 million and purchased the 
existing owner-occupied property for €1.2 

million. The property that we acquired is 
more suitable for being divided into smaller 
units making the building more flexible 
and marketable in the local area than the 
property we traded. In Belgium we sold our 
property located in Wommelgem which was 
100% vacant and had been for some time.

Developments
Part of our business model is to reshape 
our portfolio through the trade of assets 
as and when the business plans have been 
completed to realise the value added. In 
addition to this, we have the ability to reshape 
our assets themselves through specific 
capital expenditure as the needs of our 
tenants’ occupational requirements evolve. 
Our asset managers work alongside our 
tenants to understand how their businesses 
are changing and, if appropriate, we agree to 
invest in our properties in return for a longer 
lease. As we have looked for ways to add value 
to our portfolio, we have identified several 
opportunities in Germany to work with existing 
and new tenants to develop new properties 
on land connected to our existing holdings.

In a particularly noteworthy case we have 
agreed to redevelop our industrial estate at 
Ötigheim in Germany. Our tenant has agreed 
to take a new ten-year lease from completion 
of a new prime 35,000 sq m distribution 
unit and they will pay €2.15 million of rent 
per annum. The December 2016 valuation 
of the property together with all remaining 
costs to complete the initial development 
will be around €34.0 million and we believe 
that on completion of the works the value 
of the property will be materially higher.

Outlook and prospects
Our enormous diversity of tenants (numerical 
and sectorial) brings resilience to our income 
stream as well as asset management 
opportunities. The fundamentals of 
occupational supply and demand in our 
sector continue to be positive in all three of 
our regions. There is unlikely to be material 
new urban logistics development until rents 
and capital values rise further. In each region 
our teams have taken occupancy to historical 
highs and the extraordinary growth of internet 
retailing/delivery looks to continue growing 
supply for our type of properties. This is 
clearly translating into rental growth in our 
UK portfolio and we believe that in time this 
will follow in Germany and the Netherlands.

The gap between the high net yield of our 
properties and the low average borrowing costs 
leads to one of the highest normalised income 
profits in the sector. This in turn has translated 
into a consistently progressive and high 
dividend. The performance of our properties 
since “Brexit” has highlighted the robust and 
attractive nature of our business and it is clear 
that there is an increasing appreciation of 
the sector’s strengths from the investment 
community which we believe is leading to 
improving investment values and liquidity.

Post balance sheet events
On 22 February 2017 the Board made an 
offer for the entire issued ordinary share 
capital of Industrial Multi Property Trust 
PLC (“IMPT”). Under the terms of the offer, 
IMPT shareholders will receive 300p in cash 
for each IMPT share held which values the 
entire issued ordinary share capital of IMPT at 

"  

The gap between the high net yield of 
our properties and the low average 
borrowing costs leads to one of the 
highest normalised income profits  
in the sector.”

Joint Chief Executives’ statement continued
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uponcompletion.The price represents a
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£25.2million. Hansteenhas sinceacquired, premiumof approximately €75millionto

as disclosedon 17March2017, 21.71%of the 31December 2016valuationandthis

IMPT’s share capital and at the�rst closefor is a compellingopportunity to crystallise

theo�eron 15March2017had receivedvalid boththe revaluationsgains achieved by

acceptancesof 28.44%,which inaggregate our intensive asset management andthe

represent 50.15%of IMPT’s share capital. gains fromforeignexchangemovements.

Thevalue being realised is around30%

IMPT has a property portfoliovaluedat £85.3 higherthanthe bookvalue at December

millionat 31December 2016,comparedto 2015whenmeasured insterling.Thesale is

Hansteen’s portfoliovalued at £1.7billionon completely in linewithour long-termbusiness

thesamedate.Consequently,the impact of and portfolio strategy of buying at a low

theo�eronHansteenwill be relatively modest. point inthecycle,with low occupancy and

rents, addingvaluethrough improvedasset

The IMPT portfolio consists of urban management andsubsequently realisingthe

commercial and logistics propertiesvery investment at a higherpoint inthecycle.

similar in natureto Hansteen’s ownUK

portfolio.We believethis canbeabsorbed Moredetails canbefound inthe RNS

easily intoourasset management platform announcement andacircularwill be

with limitedadditionalcost.Withexperienced postedto shareholders shortly.

management teams inseveno�ces around

the UKthat build close relationshipswith

tenants and localstakeholders, Hansteen

iswell positionedto beableto achieve

sustainable growth inthe portfolio’s rental

incomeandoccupancy through its intense

asset management initiatives.Although

we have paid asmall premiumtothe

31December 2016NAV,weexpect this

acquisitionto bematerially accretivetoour

NIPfromtheoutset andaswe implement

various asset management initiatives,we

expect that itwill also be NAV accretive.

As stated intheChairman’s Review,we

haveannouncedthat contracts have been

exchangedontermsforthesaleof our

Germanand Dutchportfolios.The portfolios

are beingsoldonadebt free basis fora

cashconsiderationof €1.28 billionpayable

IanWatsonandMorganJones

Joint Chief Executives
19March2017

"
The fundamentals of occupational
supply and demand inour sector
continue to be positive in all three
of our regions.”
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loans securedagainst its Netherlands portfolio

hedging against 67%of the loan resulting inan

against theAIFportfoliowitha single loan

withhedging against 67.8%of thedrawn loan.
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This report sets out the key �nancial information
related to Hansteen.

RichardLowes

NAV

On30June 2016, Hansteen re�nancedtwo

withasingle loantotalling€145.0million.The
new�ve-yearfacility provided by INGBankN.V.
andvariousentitiesmanagedoradvised by
AXA REIMSGP, replacedthe€80.0million loan
with FGHBankN.V.and€57.8million loanwith
INGBankN.V.,duefor repayment inApril 2017
andJune 2019 respectively.At 31December
2016,the loan-to-value ratiowas 46.5%with

all-incost of 2.6%perannum.This resulted in
a like-for-like reduction inthecost of borrowing
onthe portfolio of €1.5millionperannum.

InJuly 2016, Hansteen re�nanced both its
existing corporate loanandthe loansecured

facility totalling £330.0million.The new
unsecuredfacility replacesthe £95.0million
corporate revolvingcredit facility provided
by the Royal Bankof Scotland andthe £138.1
million loan inAIFprovided by asyndicateof
lenders led by the Royal Bankof Scotland.
Thesetwo loanswereduefor repayment in
July 2018andOctober 2017 respectively.
Hansteenhaddrawn£280.0millionof the

The net assets attributabletoequity shareholders at 31December 2016were £923.6million
facility at 31December 2016and hasdrawna

(2015: £806.2million), an increaseof £117.4million.The increase in IFRS net assets is summarised
further £15.0million in February 2017.The loan

inthetable below andthemovement in EPRA NAV pershare is summarised inthe EPRA NAV
tovalue at theendof February 2017was 45%

bridgeonpage 17.

Theall-incost onthe new facility is 2.3%per
annum.This new facility providestheGroup

NormalisedTotal Pro�t
witha potential £35.0millionof undrawnfunds.

Property revaluationandgainonacquisition

Exchangeandfairvaluemovements

Tax

Share-based payments andshares issued

Dividends paid

2016

£m

66.0

50.6

73.7

(10.4)

(22.7)

(39.8)

IFRSNAVmovement 117.4

Finance Director

Financial review

Refnancing
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Gearing

EPRANAVpersharebridge

December 2015 NTPnet of tax Property FX net of hedging December 2016Dividend
EPRA NAV revaluation EPRA NAV

8p (5p)

129p

7p

8p

111p

At 31 December 2016, net debt was £734.1 million (31 December 2015: £475.2 million) and net debt to value was 42.2% (2015:
44.3%). This debt �gure includes the €100 million (£85.8 million) convertible bonds and an additional mark-to-market adj ustment
of £24.0 million. Excluding the £24.0 million mark-to-market adj ustment of the convertible bond, net debt to property value at
31 December 2016was 40.9% (2015: 41.2%). With 18 months left to run, the business performance has meant that the convertible
bonds are inthe money.Assuming the convertible bonds were treated as equity the net debt to value would be 35.9%.

Key
fnancials
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The Group also has €100.0 million of 
convertible bonds which were issued during 
2013, expiring in 2018, with a coupon rate of 
4.0%. In addition, the Group has a £2.6 million 
finance lease in place to fund a property in 
Belgium. As at 31 December 2016, the lease 
has an unexpired term of seven years and an 
interest rate implicit in the lease of 2.8%.

Currency and “Brexit”
To date we have not noticed any significant 
effect on our tenants’ demand for industrial 
space from the outcome of the “Brexit” vote. 
The one significant effect however has been a 
14.4% devaluation of sterling against the euro 
which has served to enhance our net assets and 
income. Hansteen reports its results in sterling 
and as at 31 December 2016, approximately 
56% (£519.1 million or €604.8 million) of the 
Group’s net assets were denominated in euros. 
A natural currency hedge arises from the Group 
maintaining borrowings denominated in the 
same currency as the assets that they secure.

Financial review continued

On 30 June 2016, the Group’s two €100.0 
million currency options expired and there 
was no value to the instrument on expiry. 
After careful consideration the Board decided 
not to renew these hedging instruments.

The Group’s hedging policy changed 
during the period and is now as follows:

 › Hedging instruments are used to cover a 
substantial proportion of Group estimated 
net euro income for the short term.

 › Hedges are implemented at levels which 
the Board believe are cost effective.

The Group has two options hedging a total 
of €67.5 million net euro income. These 
options expire on 30 June 2017 (€32.5 million) 
and 27 December 2017 (€35.0 million). The 
exchange rate on both the options is €1.60:£1.

The table below sets out the calculation of 
net debt and the net debt to value ratio:

2016
£m

2015
£m

Obligations under finance 
leases 2.6 2.4

Borrowings 704.2 428.7
Convertible bonds 109.8 107.5
Convertible bonds 

mark-to-market (24.0) (34.0)
Cash and cash equivalents (82.5) (63.4)

Net debt 710.1 441.2
Carrying value of 

investment and trading 
properties 1,737.9 1,071.5

Net debt to value ratio 40.9% 41.2%

Bank loan facilities as at 31 December 2016

Lender
Facility 

millions

Amount 
undrawn 

millions

Unexpired 
term  

Years

All-in 
interest 

rate

Loan to 
value 

covenant

Interest 
cover 

covenant

HSBC €104.1 – 2.0 3.1% 65% 2.00:1
Helaba €187.6 – 2.1 4.2% 65% 1.90:1
HSBC €50.0 €10.0 2.7 2.1% 65% 2.00:1
ING €143.5 – 4.5 2.6% 65% 1.50:1
BNP Paribas Fortis €5.3 – 8.0 1.5% – –

Total euro facilities €490.5 €10.0

Total euro facilities in GBP £421.1 £8.6
Royal Bank of Scotland £20.0 – 0.8 3.1% 60% 2.00:1
Royal Bank of Scotland £330.0 £50.0 4.6 2.3% 55% 2.00:1

Total facilities £771.1 £58.6 3.3 3.2%

 

To date we have not noticed any 
significant effect on our tenants’ demand 
for industrial space from the outcome  
of the “Brexit” vote.”

"

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 
borrowings, including obligations under 
finance leases and the mark-to-market value 
of the convertible bonds, of £816.6 million 
(31 December 2015: £538.6 million) of which 
£370.0 million was swapped at an average 
rate of 0.7% and £127.0 million was capped 
at an average rate of 1.2%. The average all-in 
borrowing rate for the Group, at 31 December 
2016, was 3.2% (31 December 2015: 3.6%).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total 
bank facilities of £771.1 million (31 December 
2015: £451.0 million), of which £712.5 million 
were drawn (31 December 2015: £433.5 
million). Borrowings are in the same currency 
as the assets against which they are secured. 
Cash resources at the year-end were £82.5 
million (31 December 2015: £63.4 million).

The weighted average debt maturity, at 
31 December 2016, was 3.3 years and the 
weighted average maturity of hedging was  
3.5 years.
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Environment
In line with Hansteen’s policy of being 
environmentally and socially responsible, 
environmental legislation and relevant codes 
of practice are adhered to. Where possible, 
Hansteen seeks to reduce emissions and 
pollution. Details of our greenhouse gas 
emissions are detailed in the Directors’ Report.

Community
Hansteen continues to support local and 
national charities. Regular events are held 
in each office to support charitable causes. 
We will support staff who voluntarily give 
up their time to participate in charitable 
programmes during working hours. 
We continue to run a work experience 
programme with a local school in London.

People
The present and future success of Hansteen 
is dependent upon its ability to recruit, 
motivate, manage and retain appropriately 
qualified staff. With this in mind we embarked 
upon our second year of internships in Asset 
Management during the summer of 2016.

Following the success of the previous 
year, when five paid interns were recruited, 
Hansteen recruited a further four paid 
interns across the United Kingdom, offering 
them the chance to manage a set number 
of properties. The interns were incentivised 
on lettings achieved within their property 
portfolio and as we discovered in the previous 
year, each intern demonstrated striking 
creativity in the marketing of their properties.

The scheme is designed to offer the interns a 
comprehensive view of asset management so 
that their learning experience as well as their 
employability after graduation is enhanced.
To date, Hansteen has offered four interns 
permanent jobs as Graduate Surveyors and 

are currently sponsoring their Assessment 
of Professional Competence (“APC”) 
development. The APC gives the interns 
the practical training and experience 
which, when combined with academic 
qualifications, leads to full RICS membership. 
This sponsorship involves providing 
the interns with peer-to-peer learning, 
workshops, senior mentorship and mock 
interview panels. Our Graduates continue 
to enjoy a 100% first-time APC pass rate.

We continue to seek new and innovative 
ways to enhance our support of the regional 
universities. We have conducted student 
workshops designed and led by our Asset 
Managers and for the past two years we have 
joined course leaders on judging panels to 
formally assess student presentations. In 
providing direct and constructive feedback, 
we aim to support and stretch the students’ 
personal and professional development 
in boardroom and interview scenarios.

Corporate and social responsibility

"  

Hansteen continues to support local  
and national charities. Regular events  
are held in each office to support 
charitable causes.”

 

Our approach to corporate  
and social responsibility.
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Equality and diversity
Hansteen has a diverse workforce and 
commitment to being an equal opportunities 
employer. We understand that the 
performance and engagement of our 
employees is critical to our business success. 
Our employment policies and practices reflect 
a culture where decisions are made solely on 
the basis of individual capability and potential 
in relation to the needs of the business.

We welcome and fully consider all suitable 
applications for employment, irrespective of 
gender, race, ethnicity, religion, age, sexual 
orientation or disability. All employees are 
eligible to participate in career development 
and promotion opportunities. Support also 
exists for employees who become disabled to 

continue in their employment or to be 
retrained for other suitable roles.

As at 31 December 2016, the composition  
of Hansteen’s employees, including both 
Executive and Non-Executive Directors,  
was as follows:

Underpinned by our values

Number Percentage

Male Female Male Female

Directors – including Non-Executive Directors 5 2 71 29
Senior managers and Company Secretary 4 3 57 43
All other staff 49 40 55 45

Corporate and social responsibility continued

Trust

We are  
honest, open 
and direct in 
our dealings

Entrepreneurship

We forge 
opportunities  
by considering 
investment 
prospects 
from multiple 
angles

Excellence

We strive  
for excellence 
in everything 
that we do

Teamwork

Our people 
are at the 
heart of our 
success

"  

We welcome and fully consider all suitable 
applications for employment, irrespective 
of gender, race, ethnicity, religion, age, 
sexual orientation or disability.”
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Slavery and human trafficking 
statement
Introduction
This slavery and human trafficking statement is 
made by Hansteen Holdings PLC (“Hansteen” 
or the “Company”) pursuant to Section 54(1) 
of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and relates to 
the Company and its subsidiaries in respect 
of the financial year ended 31 December 
2016. This statement sets out the measures 
that Hansteen has taken to address the 
risk of slavery and human trafficking taking 
place in our business and within our supply 
chain through 31 December 2016.

Our position on human rights
The principle of respect is one of Hansteen’s 
key tenets and this includes respect for 
human rights, including the right to be free 
from slavery and servitude. Hansteen’s 
Human Rights Policy recognises and seeks 
to safeguard the human rights of those the 
Company has contact with and responsibility 
for in the business areas in which we 
operate. We support the principles set out 
in the United Nations’ Universal Declaration 
of Human Rights and the International 
Labour Organization’s Declaration on 
Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work. 
Our Human Rights Policy is built on these 
foundations, and supports the principles 
of equal opportunity, collective bargaining, 
freedom of association and protection 
from forced adult or child labour. The Policy 
is being extended to embrace the specific 
concerns of the Modern Slavery Act 2015.

Hansteen is committed to act with integrity 
and this is central to the way we do business 
and crucial to our external credibility and 
reputation in the marketplace. As a business 
operating in the property investment market 

in the UK, Germany, the Netherlands, France 
and Belgium, Hansteen’s exposure to human 
rights risks, including modern forms of slavery, 
is limited. One area of vigilance is unpaid labour. 
Hansteen is specifically committed to ensuring 
there is no unpaid labour of any kind, both in 
our own business and in our supply chain.

Our Employee Handbook sets our expectation 
that our employees will maintain high 
standards when it comes to ethical business 
conduct and requires that our relationships 
with competitors, suppliers and clients must 
be based on high standards of personal and 
professional ethics. All of our employees have 
an important role to play in the management 
of risk and this includes being alert to the risk 
of slavery, forced labour and human trafficking 
in our business and in the wider supply chain.

Our people
We believe that the risk of any slavery or 
human trafficking in the employment or 
engagement of our own employees is low. 
Hansteen operates a robust recruitment 
and engagement programme and we 
have provided guidance and training to our 
employees with hiring and procurement 
responsibilities to support our expectations 
and legal obligations in respect of equal 
opportunities and fair labour practices. 
We also have in place a range of supporting 
employment policies, processes, procedures 
and guidelines which reflect current 
legislation and best practice and which are 
targeted at safeguarding the interests of 
employees and potential employees and 
other people (such as contractors) who 
work for our business. These include policies 
addressing: Diversity and Inclusion, Equal 
Opportunities, and Dignity at Work.

Our supply chain
We manage our business through our 
experienced regional teams working with 
trusted suppliers. The Hansteen philosophy 
is to develop long-term partnerships 
with suppliers whose policies, values and 
cultures, including respect and integrity, 
are complementary to our own.

Hansteen expects its suppliers to reflect our 
standards, including paying a fair wage to their 
workers, respecting human rights, meeting 
their obligations under employment legislation 
and investigating their own supply chains for 
slavery and human trafficking issues and risks.

Reporting
Any employee or any person engaged in our 
supply chain who has any concerns with our 
organisation or our supply chain may and 
is expected to raise their concerns directly 
with the Director of Operations or by making 
a report in accordance with Hansteen’s 
Whistleblowing Policy to the Designated 
Whistleblowing Officer. All such reports will 
be investigated by the relevant person.

This Statement was approved by 
the Board on 19 March 2017.

 

Hansteen is committed to act with 
integrity and this is central to the way  
we do business and crucial to our 
external credibility and reputation  
in the marketplace.”

"
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Principal risks and uncertainties

 

The Board recognises that effective risk management is 
essential to Hansteen achieving its objectives and has 
carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks 
facing the Group, including those that would threaten its 
business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity. 

The Board, senior management and staff 
continually monitor the significant risks 
which they believe the Group is facing. There 
will always be some risk when undertaking 
property investments and the control process 
is aimed at mitigating and minimising these 
risks where possible, rather than eliminating 
them. Appropriate controls are established 
to mitigate newly identified risks, parameters 
are set under which management can 
operate and, where necessary, action is 
taken to improve existing controls. The Audit 
Committee, as part of its remit, also consider 

in detail the significant risks faced by the 
Group and the adequacy of the controls in 
place. Further details regarding the Group’s 
internal control and risk management 
procedures are set out in the Report of the 
Audit Committee on pages 29 to 32.

Having refreshed its assessment of the 
principal risks facing the Group, the Board 
considers them to be consistent with the 
prior year with the exception of the risks 
related to foreign currency, the probability of 
which the Board considers to have increased, 

and the risks related to the availability of 
capital, the probability of which the Board 
considers to have reduced. Information and 
cyber security threats are currently a priority 
across all industries. The Group recognises 
that Hansteen has exposure in this area 
and has added this as a new principal risk.

The current key risks identified by the Board, 
their potential impact and the steps taken 
to mitigate them are presented below.

Principal risk Cause Impact Probability Risk management

Foreign currency 
exchange risk – 
Reduction in euro 
denominated 
revenues and 
impairment of euro 
denominated 
financial and 
non-financial assets

A significant reduction 
in the value of the euro 
relative to sterling

High Medium In response to this risk the Group’s borrowings in Europe 
are in euro denominated loan facilities and therefore, to the 
extent that investments are financed by debt, a self-
hedging mechanism is in place. In relation to the equity 
element of the Group’s euro investments, the Board 
monitors the level of exposure on a regular basis and 
considers the level and timing of when to take out 
appropriate hedging instruments.

The ongoing speculation about the impact of “Brexit”, the 
forthcoming elections in certain Eurozone countries, the 
stability of the Italian banking sector and concerns over the 
Greek economy all lead to increased uncertainty and 
volatility in the sterling:euro exchange rate. Management 
and the Board consider the impact of “Brexit”, the Eurozone 
and the European Union situation more generally on the 
business and markets in which the Group operates. Further 
details regarding this and its impact of the Group’s strategy 
are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 23.

Over reliance on 
key executives

High dependence on 
Joint Chief Executives

High Medium The Board believes such risk is to some extent mitigated 
through the appointment and support of high-calibre 
employees and professional advisers. All such 
appointments are approved by a member of the Board and 
performance is monitored regularly.

Tenant failure

Recession and 
reduced profitability

Over reliance on 
income from one 
particular type of 
tenant exposing the 
Group to industry 
specific periods of 
recession

High Medium Whilst there is always a risk that recession or new legislation 
may affect specific industry types, the Board is satisfied 
that Hansteen’s exposure is mitigated by operating in five 
different countries, including some of the stronger 
Eurozone economies, with an extremely diverse tenant 
base without reliance on any particular tenants or 
industries. Vacancy rates, arrears and bad debts are 
monitored on a monthly basis by country with trends 
investigated to determine any systematic problems with a 
portfolio or type of tenant.
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Principal risk Cause Impact Probability Risk management

Lack of availability 
of capital

Banks under internal 
pressure to improve 
liquidity

Banks considering 
unutilised loans too 
expensive

High Medium The Board acknowledges that there may be occasions 
when banks are under internal pressures which may conflict 
with existing financing arrangements and it may prove 
more difficult to secure the more challenging properties. 
Detailed due diligence is carried out prior to the purchase of 
each property. Regular meetings are held with a portfolio of 
banks to keep them fully appraised of commercial 
opportunities and alert to any potential issues early on. 
Hansteen also considers alternative sources of finance to 
develop its strategy and reduce exposure.

Information and 
cyber security 
breaches resulting 
in data leakage, 
financial loss, 
reputational 
damage or business 
disruption

Failure to protect 
information and 
information systems 
from unauthorised 
access, misuse, 
disruption, 
modification or 
destruction

High Medium The Board believes this risk to be mitigated to some extent 
by the Group outsourcing much of its day-to-day 
processing to reputable third party organisations. Due 
diligence designed to assess the integrity of third party 
processes and systems is undertaken by management as 
part of the tendering and appointment process and is 
maintained on an ongoing basis. Internally, the Group has 
developed policies and procedures designed to mitigate 
information and cyber security risk as far as possible, these 
including: the secure encryption of all payroll and personal 
data, rigorous use of passwords and firewall defences, 
externally facilitated staff training programmes, bulletins to 
raise risk awareness and encourage good practice, 
development of secure mobile working policies, incident 
response and disaster recovery procedures and the 
establishment of anti-malware defences.

Poor return on 
investment and 
deterioration in 
operating results

Overpaying for an 
acquisition

Prices driven up by 
increased competition

Reduced number of 
investment 
opportunities

High Low Supply and demand is reviewed continuously through direct 
information from Hansteen’s network of managing agents 
and managers. Experienced members of management 
review each acquisition and due diligence is carried out by 
external parties. The Board is required to approve all 
acquisitions and disposals over a prescribed amount.

Banking 
counterparty 
disruption

Lack of liquidity

Financial difficulties at 
institutions holding 
significant deposits

Medium Medium The Board believes such risks are reduced by adherence to 
a Cash and Liquidity Management Policy that sets out how 
funds can be invested. Cash balances and borrowings are 
maintained with a portfolio of considered counterparties. 
The Group Treasurer reviews the cash balances on a daily 
basis, and where possible, surplus cash is put on interest 
bearing deposit.
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Joined Hansteenon 1January

Gouldens. FounderDirectorand AccountantwithTouche Ross.

Joint Chief ExecutiveofAshtenne FounderDirectorandJoint Chief and appointed Finance Director in

from 1989to 2005. Founder ExecutiveofAshtennefrom 1989 October 2011. Priortothis he

Directorof Hansteen.Memberof to 2005. FounderDirectorof worked inasimilar role for

the NominationCommittee. Hansteen.Memberof the Ashtenne between 1997and

NominationCommittee. 2005andas Finance Directorof

TrafalgarHouse Property Limited

anda Directorof Ideal Homes

Holdings PLCfrom 1988to 1995.

Fellow of theACCA.

Audit Committee CommitteeChair

NominationCommittee Senior Independent Director

RemunerationCommittee

Annual Report andAccounts 2016

The Board currently comprises four Non-Executive
Directors, including theChairman, three of whomare
independent, and three Executive Directors.The Board
is responsible to the shareholders of the Company for
the strategy and future development of theGroupand
the e�cient management of its resources.

Boardof Directors

ExecutiveDirectors

IanWatson MorganJones RichardLowes

Joint Chief Executive Joint Chief Executive Finance Director

Quali�edas asolicitorwith Quali�edas aChartered

2006asChief FinancialO�cer
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Appointedtothe Board in Appointedtothe Board inJune Appointedtothe Board in Appointedtothe Board inOctober

October 2015.Currently also a 2015.Currently aNon-Executive

Non-ExecutiveChairmanof Non-Executive Directorof DirectorandSenior Independent

Hansteenon23August 2016. Properties PLC. Formerly BlackRockGroup Limited andwas DirectoratJohnLaingGroupPLC.

Currently alsoChairmanof FounderandChief Executive formerly a Non-Executive Formerly aNon-Executive

PendragonPLC,a Director Directorof BNY Mellon Directorat LandSecurities PLC

of theJames Family Trusts, Partners LLP,a Non-Executive InternationalAsset Management andXstrata PLC.Senior

DirectorofAga Rangemaster PLC LimitedandAA PLC.Chairof the Independent Directoranda

Estates Holdings Limited and and Finance Directorand Deputy RemunerationCommitteeanda memberof theAudit,Nomination

IrwinMitchell Holdings Limited. Chief Executiveof Quintain memberof theAudit and andRemunerationCommittees.

Formerly RegionalChairmanof Estates and Development PLC. NominationCommittees.

KPMGMidlands. Fellow of the Fellow of the ICAEW.Chairof the

ICAEW.Chairof the Nomination Audit Committeeandamember

Committeeandamemberof the of the Nominationand

RemunerationCommittee. RemunerationCommittees.
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Non-ExecutiveDirectors

MelvynEgglenton RebeccaWorthington MargaretYoung DavidRough

Non-ExecutiveChairman Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director

June 2014andappointed 2014.Currently alsoChief

FinancialO�cerof Countryside

O�cerof LodestoneCapital

a Non-Executive Directorof Soho
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The Board is responsible forensuringthat all our peopledothings in

the rightway by settingthetonefromthetopand by creating aculture

inwhichdoingthe right thing is integraltotheway Hansteenoperates.

characterandculture.Theseenduringqualities are afundamental

strengthof our business andwe bring allof themtoour professional

and personalconduct:

› Trust–weare honest,openanddirect inourdealings;

› Entrepreneurship–weforgeopportunities by considering

investment prospects frommultiple angles;

› Teamwork– our people are at the heart of oursuccess; and

› Excellence–westrive forexcellence ineverythingwedo.

Anexternally facilitatedevaluationof the Board andCommitteeswas

foundto beworkingwellwithnomajorconcernsorsystemic issues

the performanceof all the Directors proposedfor re-electioncontinues

ThisCorporateGovernanceStatement describes theGroup’s

corporategovernanceframework inthecontext of Leadership,

shareholders. Details are also providedontheextent of theCompany’s

compliancewiththe relevant provisionsof the UKCorporate

GovernanceCodeandtheways its principles have beenapplied.

Annual Report andAccounts 2016

Chairman’s corporategovernancestatement

Everything we do is guided by a set of principles that de�ne our

conducted during the year and I am pleased to con�rm that they were

being identi�ed. Following the Board evaluation, I remain satis�ed that

to be e�ective and that each Director demonstrates commitment

to their role.

E�ectiveness, Accountability, Remuneration and Relations with

MelvynEgglenton

MelvynEgglenton

Chairman

Chairman
19March2017

AsChairman, I am responsible for
Hansteen’s corporate governance
framework. During theyearwe achieved
andmaintained highstandards of
corporate governance underthis
framework andwewill continue to
adapt as necessary during 2017.
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HansteenHoldings PLChas adoptedthe principles and provisionsof
the UKCorporateGovernanceCode (the “Code”)whichcanbefound

Melvyn Egglenton 7 2 3 6onthe Financial ReportingCouncil’s (“FRC”)websitewww.frc.org.uk.

MorganJones 7 – 2 –
The Directors acknowledgetheir responsibility fortheGroup’s system IanWatson 7 – 2 –

Richard Lowes 7 – – –
monitoring procedures, inordertosafeguardshareholders’ investment David Rough 7 2 6
andthe assetsof theGroupaswell as the integrity of its accounting Margaret Young 7 3
records and provide reliable informationfor usewithinthe business and

RebeccaWorthington 6 5
for publication.TheGroup’s systemof internalcontrols is designedto

James Hambro 5 – – 3
manage ratherthaneliminatethe riskof failureto achieve business

Humphrey Price 1 1 –obj ectives andcanprovideonly reasonable and not absolute assurance
against materialmisstatement or loss.

controlforthe period under review and uptothedateof this report.

advisedof any failingsorweaknesseswhich it hasdeterminedto be

continueto bemonitoredand reviewed by the Board.

TheCompany compliedthroughout theyearwithall relevant provisions
set out intheCodewiththeexceptionof provisionD.1.1relatingto
malus andclawback.Thecurrent remunerationpolicy does not contain
malus andclawbackprovisions forthe annual performance related
bonus, PSPand Founder LTIPschemes because provisionD.1.1was
introducedtotheCodeafterthecurrent remunerationpolicywas
approved by shareholders and becausethe Founder LTIP is a legacy
arrangementwhichwas agreed before 27June 2012. Proposals to
includemalus andclawbackprovisions forthe annual performance
related bonus, PSPschemeand Founder LTIPare included inthe
proposed remunerationpolicy set out inthe Directors’ Remuneration Thedivisionof responsibilities betweenthe roleof Chairmanandthe

and reviewedannually by the Board.
TheCompany complieswiththeCorporateGovernanceStatement
requirementsof the FinancialConductAuthority’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules byvirtueof the information included inthis of the Board,ensuringthat allmembersof the Board, including in
CorporateGovernanceStatement supplemented by the information particularthe Non-Executive Directors, haveanopportunity to

Audit Committeeonpages 29to32,the Report of the Nomination communicationwithshareholders.

Committeeonpages 35to 52. TheJoint Chief Executives are responsible forthestrategic direction

delegatedthis responsibility by the Board.

The Board is responsible totheshareholdersof theCompany for

management of its resources.As a result,the Board has ascheduleof
matters reservedfor its decision,which includes approvalof annual
budgets, acquisitionanddivestment policy, approvalof maj orcapital

Non-Executive Directors alsomeet the property valuers independent
of management todiscuss theyear-endand half-year property James Hambro, Non-ExecutiveChairmanof theCompany, retiredfrom

the Boardon23August 2016andwas succeeded by Melvyn Egglenton
meetings as required. who had previously served asSenior Independent Directorsince 8June

2015andas a Non-Executive Directorsince his appointment tothe

independent onhis appointment asChairman.

Humphrey Price,a Non-Executive Director, retiredfromthe Boardon
6June 2016and David Rough,whowasoriginally appointedtothe
Boardon 1October 2015,succeededMelvyn EgglentonasSenior
Independent Director.

Annual Report andAccounts 2016

The Boardcurrently comprisestheChairman,three independent
Non-Executive Directors andthree Executive Directors.The biographies

themselvesfor re-electionat the 2017AnnualGeneralMeeting.

Theschedule belowsetsout thenumberof principal Boardand
Committeemeetings heldduringtheyearended31December2016
togetherwith individualattendanceby Boardmembersat thosemeetings.
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Corporategovernanceframework

�

�

�
of internalcontrols, includingthe review of its e�ectiveness andsuitable

� 4

� 4 4

4 4

�

� 4

The Board has reviewedthee�ectivenessof thesystemof internal

Duringthecourseof its review,the Board has not identi�ed nor been

signi�cant.Therefore acon�rmation in respect of necessary actions
is not considered necessary.The internalcontrolenvironmentwill

Policy Report onpages 46to 52. rolesof theJoint Chief Executives is clearly de�ned,set out inwriting

TheChairman is responsible forthe leadershipande�ectiveworking

contained inthe Directors’ Report onpages 53to 57,the Report of the contributee�ectively, andthat there is appropriate andtimely

Committeeonpages 33and34andthe Report of the Remuneration

andoperational and�nancial performanceof theGroup, having been

thestrategy andfuturedevelopment of theGroupandthee�cient

proj ects,the raisingof �nanceandmanagement policies.The

valuations.The Boardmeets at least �vetimesayearwithad hoc

Boardon 10June 2014.Melvyn Egglentonwasconsideredto be

of theseDirectors areset out onpages 24and 25.All Directorswillo�er

Leadership

The rolesof theChairmanandJoint Chief Executives

The roleof the Boardof Directors

Compositionof the Board

Board andCommitteemeeting attendance

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee

Numberof meetings

duringtheyear 7 4 4 6

1. Melvyn Egglentonwaseligible to attendtwoAudit Committeemeetings before his

resignationfromthat Committee.Althoughalsoeligible to attendfourNomination

Committeemeetings, hewasexcusedfromonemeeting and part of anotherso

that theCommittee coulddeliberate his appointment asChairman.

2. Eitherof theJoint Chief Executives attendsthe NominationCommittee

3. David Roughwaseligible to attendtwoAudit Committeemeetings following his

appointment tothat Committee.

following herappointment tothat Committee.

Committeemeetings before his retirement.Althoughalsoeligible to attendtwo

NominationCommitteemeetings before his retirement, hewasexcusedsothat

theCommittee could deliberate his succession.

6. Humphrey Pricewaseligible to attendfour Boardmeetings,oneAudit Committee

meeting andone NominationCommitteemeeting before his retirement.

4. Margaret Youngwaseligible to attendthree RemunerationCommitteemeetings

5. James Hambrowaseligible to attend�ve Boardmeetings andthree Remuneration

Efectiveness
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Corporate governance framework continued

All of the Directors are considered to be able to allocate sufficient 
time to the Company to discharge their responsibilities effectively. 
At the time of appointment, all Directors are made aware of the time 
commitment necessary to discharge their responsibilities and the 
letters of appointment for the Chairman and each Non-Executive 
Director set out an anticipated time commitment. In addition to his 
role as Chairman of Hansteen Holdings PLC, Melvyn Egglenton is 
Chairman of Pendragon PLC, Director of the James Family Trusts 
and Non-Executive Director of Soho Estates Holdings Limited and 
Irwin Mitchell Holdings Limited.

The Board is satisfied that the Non-Executive Directors, each of whom 
has no day-to-day involvement in the running of the Company, are 
independent from management, have no commercial, financial or other 
connection with the Company, other than as a shareholder, and are able 
to exercise independent judgement.

The service agreements of the Executive Directors and terms and 
conditions of the Non-Executive Directors’ appointments are available 
for inspection at the Company’s Annual General Meeting or at the 
Company’s registered office.

Appointments to the Board
In compliance with the Code, the Board has established a Nomination 
Committee. The primary role of the Nomination Committee is to keep 
under review the composition of the Board, to plan for its refreshment, 
with regard to balance and structure, and to consider issues of succession. 
The appointment of new Directors is a matter for the Board as a whole, 
following recommendations made by the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee works from terms of reference and these 
are available on the Company’s website www.hansteen.co.uk

The Nomination Committee’s report is set out on pages 33 and 34, and 
should be read in conjunction with this Corporate Governance Statement.

Information and support provided to the Board
The Board is supplied, in a timely fashion, with the information it needs 
to enable it to discharge its duties. In between Board meetings, the 
Board receives a monthly performance pack containing detailed 
information on the entire property portfolio. The Board is also kept 
informed of changes in relevant legislation and changing commercial 
risks, and each Director has access to independent professional advice 
and the advice and services of the Company Secretary.

Evaluation of the Board and its Committees
The Board formally evaluates its performance and that of its 
Committees annually.

The Chairman met with each of the Non-Executive Directors to 
evaluate their individual performances and the Non-Executive 
Directors met without the Chairman present to evaluate his 
performance as Chairman.

In line with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code, 
during 2016 the Board also undertook an external evaluation process. 
The evaluation process was facilitated by Independent Audit Limited, 
an organisation which, other than acting as advisers in the Board 
evaluation process, has no connection with the Company.

The evaluation process was conducted through a series of 
questionnaires, these covering:

 › strategy and risk-taking;
 › leadership and accountability;
 › management succession;
 › Board and committee operations and culture;
 › risk management; and
 › terms of reference, roles and engagement of committees.

The aim of the evaluation process was to identify what was working 
well, as well as the areas needing additional focus and the information 
needed to improve processes and meetings. Overall the Board and 
Committees were found to be working well and no major concerns or 
systemic issues were identified thus recognising the amount of work 
that the Board and senior management team has undertaken during 
the year to improve procedures in a number of areas.

The Board is confident that the performance of the Board and the 
Committees was and is effective and that all Directors demonstrate full 
commitment in their respective roles. A full review of the composition 
of each of the Committees was undertaken during the year following 
the retirements of Humphrey Price and James Hambro. Changes in the 
composition of the Committees are detailed in their respective reports.

Accountability
In compliance with the Code, the Board has established an Audit 
Committee. The primary roles of the Audit Committee are to increase 
shareholder confidence in the credibility and objectivity of the Group’s 
published financial information, assist the Board in meeting its financial 
reporting responsibilities, ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Group’s risk management and control procedures and oversee the 
Group’s relationship with the external auditors.

The Audit Committee works from terms of reference and these are 
available on the Company’s website www.hansteen.co.uk

The Audit Committee’s report is set out on pages 29 to 32 and should 
be read in conjunction with this Corporate Governance Statement.

Remuneration
In compliance with the Code, the Board has established a Remuneration 
Committee. The primary role of the Remuneration Committee is to 
determine and recommend to the Board the specific pay and benefits 
packages for the Executive Directors, to ensure that they are fairly, but 
responsibly, rewarded for their individual contributions to the Group’s overall 
performance taking into account their existing contractual entitlements.

The Remuneration Committee works from terms of reference and 
these are available on the Company’s website www.hansteen.co.uk

The Remuneration Committee’s report is set out on pages 35 to 52 and 
should be read in conjunction with this Corporate Governance Statement.

Relations with shareholders
The Executive Directors regularly meet with institutional shareholders 
and analysts. Private investors are also encouraged to meet with the 
Board and to participate in the Annual General Meeting. The Chairmen 
of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees are available 
to answer questions, where appropriate, at the Annual General Meeting.

In January 2017, the Company Chairman and Chair of the Remuneration 
Committee met with a number of major shareholders to discuss 
proposed changes to the remuneration packages of the Joint Chief 
Executives. Further details are set out in the Report of the 
Remuneration Committee on pages 35 to 52.
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Thecurrent membersof theAudit Committee areshownonpage 25,
these individuals having beenselectedto providethe right balanceof
knowledge,skill andexperiencetosupport the business in pursuing its
strategy andachieving its obj ectives.

Followingtheannouncement of Humphrey Price’s retirement inMarch
2016, RebeccaWorthington, havingoriginally beenappointedtothe

on6June 2016.Melvyn EgglentonsteppeddownfromtheAudit

appointedtotheAudit Committee in his place.Margaret Young
continuedas amemberof theAudit Committeethroughout theyear.

AllCommitteemembersareconsidered by the Boardto be
independent. RebeccaWorthington,MargaretYoungandDavid Rough

furtherdetails ofwhicharegivenonpage 25.TheAudit Committeeasa
whole have relevant industrial property experience.Nomembersof the
Committee have linkswiththeCompany’s externalauditor.

TheCommitteemeets regularly duringtheyear, itsmeetings being

theexternalauditors, Executive Directors andseniormanagement may
be invitedto attendthemeetings at theCommittee’s discretion.The
Company Secretary acts as secretary totheCommittee.

During 2016theCommitteemet threetimesforscheduledmeetings.Theobj ectivesof theCommitteeareto:
Detailsofmembers’attendanceat eachmeetingareshownonpage27.

›

› The performanceof theCommitteewasevaluated as part of the
externally facilitated Boardevaluationexercise undertakenduringthe

management and internalcontrol procedures andtoensurethat the
principles, policies and practices adopted inthe preparationof the
Annual Report and FinancialStatements complywithapplicable
statutory requirements; and

TheAudit Committee (the “Committee”) has beenestablished in
› strengthenthe independent positionof theexternal auditor by

accordancewiththe UKCorporateGovernanceCode (the “Code”).
providing channels of communicationbetweenthemandthe
Non-Executive Directors.

Thefull termsof referenceof theCommittee, reviewed in 2016,are
availableontheCompany’swebsitewww.hansteen.co.uk

identifyinganymattersonwhich it considersthat actionor improvement
TheCommittee’s principal responsibilities include:

is needed,andmake recommendationsonthestepsto betaken.

› reviewingthecontent of theAnnual Report and Financial
This report setsout:

Statements andadvisingthe Boardonwhether,takenas awhole,

› information regardingthecompositionof theCommittee,the
necessary forshareholders to assesstheGroup’s position,

meetings it heldduringtheyearandtheevaluationof its performance;
performance, businessmodelandstrategy;

› the responsibilities of theCommitteeandthemanner inwhich it
›

dischargesthem;and
submissiontothe Board,consideringwhethertheGroup’s chosen

›
accounting policies have beenproperly applied andwhetherany

duringtheyear.

dealtwith;
Iwould liketothankmy fellowmembersof theCommittee,together

› reviewingtheGroup’s principal risksona bi-annual basis;
withmanagement,fortheirsupport duringthe period sincemy

› ensuringthat theGrouphas in placethe internalcontrols, systems
appointment and lookforwardtoworkingwiththem incontinuingto
delivertheCommittee’s obj ectives.

› monitoringtheGroup’s internal audit requirements;
› ensuringthat theGrouphas in placethesystemsand procedures

necessary to complywith relevant legislation, regulationand best
practiceconcerningsocial, environmentalandethicalmatters;

Annual Report andAccounts 2016
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Report of theAudit Committee

CompositionoftheCommittee

MeetingsRebeccaWorthington

IntroductionbytheChairoftheAuditCommittee

Annualevaluationofperformance

ResponsibilitiesoftheCommittee

Chairof theAudit Committee

Boardon 10June 2014,tookovertheChairmanshipof theCommittee

Committeewithe�ect from23August 2016and David Roughwas

all have recent and relevant�nancialexperienceas required by theCode,

alignedtothe�nancial reportingtimetable.Senior representativesof

Iampleasedto present my�rst report asChairof theAudit Committee.

increaseshareholdercon�dence inthecredibility andobj ectivity

of theGroup’s published�nancial information;

assist the Board inmeeting its�nancial reporting responsibilities

by ensuringthe adequacy ande�ectivenessof theGroup’s risk

yearandtheCommitteewasfoundto beoperatinge�ectively.

TheAudit Committee is requiredto report its�ndingstothe Board,

it is fair, balancedand understandable and providesthe information

reviewingthe interimandfull-year�nancial statements priortotheir

the areasof signi�cantj udgement considered by theCommittee

changesto�nancial reporting requirements have beenproperly

and procedures reasonably neededtomitigate its identi�ed risks

andensurethe integrity of �nancial information;
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Report of the Audit Committee continued

 › reviewing the Group’s arrangements for its employees and 
contractors to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible 
wrongdoing in financial reporting or other matters, reviewing the 
systems and controls for the prevention of bribery and the 
procedures for detecting fraud;

 › considering all matters relating to the recommendation for 
appointment, re-appointment, remuneration and terms of 
engagement of the Group’s external auditor;

 › maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Group’s external 
auditor, reviewing their effectiveness, objectivity and independence, 
considering both the scope of their work and the fees paid to them 
for audit and non-audit services; and

 › developing and implementing the policy for the provision of 
non-audit services by the external auditor.

The Committee is satisfied that it receives sufficient, reliable and 
timely information from management in order to allow it to fulfil its 
responsibilities. The ways in which the Committee discharged its 
responsibilities during the year are described below.

Oversight of the financial reporting process
The Committee reviewed and considered the following areas in respect 
of financial reporting and the preparation of the interim and annual 
financial statements:

 › appropriateness of the accounting policies applied by management;
 › extent of compliance with external and internal financial reporting 

standards and policies;
 › appropriateness of the significant judgements made by management;
 › adequacy of statutory disclosures;
 › completeness and adequacy of the disclosure of the principal risks 

and uncertainties faced by the Group; and
 › whether the Annual Report and Financial Statements are fair, 

balanced and understandable.

In order to carry out this work, the Committee considered the work 
and recommendations of the finance team led by the Finance Director, 
Richard Lowes. In addition, the Committee received regular reports 
from the external auditor setting out their views of the accounting 
treatments and judgements included in the financial statements. 
The reports from the external auditor are based on a full audit of the 
annual financial statements and a review of the unaudited interim 
financial statements.

In November 2016, the Company received a comment letter from 
the Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”) requesting further information 
and explanation in relation to the Group’s 2015 Annual Report 
and Accounts. After due consideration and approval by the Audit 
Committee, the Company responded to the FRC’s requests. The 
Company’s correspondence with the FRC closed satisfactorily with 
no changes to reported results being required. As a result of the 
correspondence, the Company has refined the wording of certain of 
its significant accounting policies and extended certain disclosures in 
the 2016 Annual Report and Accounts.

The FRC has advised the Committee that while its review was 
conducted by staff with an understanding of the relevant legal and 
accounting frameworks, it is based only on a review of the Annual 
Report and Accounts and does not benefit from a detailed knowledge 
of the Group’s business or an understanding of the underlying 
transactions entered into. Accordingly, the Committee acknowledges 
that the FRC’s review provides no assurance that the Annual Report and 
Accounts are correct in all material respects.

Internal control and risk management
An ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the most 
significant risks faced by the Group has been in place throughout the 
year and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts. 
That process, which accords with the 2014 FRC Guidance on Risk 
Management, Internal Control and Related Financial and Business 
Reporting, is supported by regular meetings of the Board and 
Committee along with:

 › formalised management structure – comprising a clear 
organisational structure with well-defined lines of reporting and 
responsibility, along with set parameters under which the business 
can operate without further or specific consideration by the Board;

 › financial reporting disciplines – covering performance monitoring, 
profit and cash flow forecasting and the preparation of the 
consolidated accounts;

 › investment appraisal procedures – a clearly defined framework for 
capital and development expenditure and subsequent ongoing 
appraisals; and

 › risk identification and management procedures – risk identification 
and management is an integral part of the system of internal control. 
Identified risks along with the associated controls and monitoring 
procedures intended to mitigate then, are documented in a risk 
register. The risk register is reviewed bi-annually and updated where 
appropriate, reports are received from the executive on control 
procedures, and any areas for improvement are agreed for 
subsequent action. Information regarding the key risks the Group 
faces in pursuing its strategy and achieving its objectives is reported 
in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 23.

Internal audit
The majority of the processing and accounting for the day-to-day 
transactions of the Group is outsourced to third-party suppliers. 
Management maintain a close relationship with these suppliers and 
perform regular detailed reviews of their work, reporting to the 
Committee if any significant concerns are raised by these reviews. The 
Committee regularly reviews the internal controls to ensure that they 
are adequate for the size and complexity of the business. 

The Committee believes that the outsourcing of day-to-day processing 
and accounting routines, combined with the oversight and review 
procedures performed by management and the independent challenge 
and assurance provided by the external auditor, provides three lines of 
defence that mitigate the need for an internal audit function at this 
time. The Committee and the Board will continue to monitor this 
position on an ongoing basis.

Whistleblowing
The Group has in place a formal whistleblowing policy and a dedicated 
independent whistleblowing hotline, as part of the arrangements set 
up and monitored by the Committee, so that employees are able to 
report any matters of concern. The Board has appointed Rebecca 
Worthington as the Board member with responsibility for the 
Company’s whistleblowing arrangements.

External audit – Compliance with CMA Order 2014
The Committee confirms that the Company has complied with The 
Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market Investigation 
(Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and Audit 
Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014.
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External audit – Appointment
Deloitte have been the Group’s external auditor since 2006 when 
the Group prepared its first Annual Report and Financial Statements. 
The audit partner responsible for the Group’s audit matters is changed 
every five years in accordance with the Ethical Standards issued by the 
Auditing Practices Board.

The Committee has established a tendering policy that requires an 
audit tender every ten years. The audit for the year ended 31 December 
2016 was tendered during 2015. Three audit firms were invited to 
tender, including the previous incumbent, Deloitte. A panel, including 
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Finance Director, 
considered written submissions and oral presentations from each 
of the firms. Following this competitive tender process the Audit 
Committee recommended to the Board and the Board approved 
the reappointment of Deloitte for the year ended 31 December 2016. 
A new audit partner, Claire Faulkner, has led the audit for the year ended 
31 December 2016.

External audit – Independence and objectivity
In forming their opinion on the independence and objectivity of the 
external auditor, the Committee takes into account the safeguards 
operating within Deloitte and they are asked to provide a formal 
statement of their independence annually.

To safeguard the independence of the external auditor, the Committee 
ensures compliance with its policy governing the provision of non-audit 
services by the external auditor under which Deloitte may not provide a 
service which places them in a position where they may be required to 
audit their own work. Specifically, Deloitte are precluded from providing 
services relating to bookkeeping or other services relating to the 
accounting records or financial statements of the Group, financial 
information system design and implementation, appraisal or evaluation 
services, actuarial services, any management functions, investment 
banking services, legal services unrelated to the audit, remuneration 
related services or advocacy services.

To further fulfil its responsibilities regarding the independence and 
objectivity of the external auditor, the Committee reviewed:

 › the scope of the audit as set out in the external auditor’s 
engagement letter;

 › the external auditor’s overall work plan;
 › the external auditor’s fee proposal;
 › a report from the external auditor describing their arrangements to 

ensure objectivity and to identify, report and manage any conflicts 
of interest; and

 › the extent, nature and associated fees of non-audit services 
provided by the external auditor.

The Committee believes that it receives particular benefit from 
certain non-audit services being provided by the external auditor due 
to their wide and detailed knowledge of the Group and so discretion is 
used, subject to the controls set out above, in obtaining such services 
from Deloitte.

Where non-audit services are provided, the fees are based on the work 
undertaken and are not success related. Consideration is given to the 
nature of and remuneration received for other services provided by 
Deloitte to the Group and confirmation is sought from them that 
the fee payable for the annual audit is adequate to enable them to 
perform their obligations in accordance with the scope of the audit. 
The Committee has fully evaluated all non-audit work undertaken 
by Deloitte during the year against its policy and remains comfortable 
that it is appropriate and the fees justified.

In addition to acting as external auditor, services provided to the Group 
during 2016 by Deloitte and their associates included tax advice in 
respect of overseas income tax, VAT and property transfer taxes.

Payments made by the Group for non-audit fees for the year 
represented 16% of the total fees paid to Deloitte. Further details of 
audit and non-audit fees for the year are disclosed on page 80.

External audit – Effectiveness
The Committee has adopted a formal framework in its review of the 
effectiveness of the external audit process which includes:

 › considering how the audit process can support the work of 
the Committee;

 › determining the scope of the audit, including the completeness of 
the risks of material misstatement identified in the independent 
auditor’s report;

 › monitoring the planning and execution of the audit;
 › reviewing communications received from the auditor;
 › assessing the quality of the formal, audit report to shareholders;
 › appraising the audit partner and the audit team;
 › evaluating the extent to which the audit contributes insights 

and adds value; and
 › assessing the effectiveness of the management team in the 

audit process.

A comprehensive auditor assessment questionnaire is completed 
annually by each member of the Committee and the Finance Director. 
In addition, feedback is obtained from members of the senior 
management team, including the Joint Chief Executives, and from the 
wider finance team. The responses are collated and the resulting 
analysis considered by the Committee with any concerns being 
discussed with the auditor. Every year the external audit partner meets 
with the Committee Chairman and Finance Director to formally discuss 
the quality of the external audit process using this evaluation framework 
and the outcome of those discussions feeds into the audit process for 
the subsequent three years.

The Committee meets as considered necessary with the external 
auditor without management being present. The effectiveness of the 
management team’s role in the external audit process is assessed 
principally using the following performance measures:

 › the timely identification and resolution of areas of accounting 
judgement;

 › the quality and timeliness of papers analysing those judgements;
 › the management team’s approach to the value of independent 

audit and the booking of any audit adjustments arising; and
 › the timely provision of draft public documents for review by the 

auditor and the Committee.
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Areas of significant accounting judgement considered by the Audit Committee during 2016
The areas of significance considered by the Committee in relation to the financial statements and its responses to them were as follows:

Area considered Audit Committee response

Accounting for the Group’s acquisition of the 
remaining shares of Ashtenne Industrial Fund 
Unit Trust (“AIF”)

 › The Committee considered the form and substance of the Group’s influence over AIF in the 
period through to the Group’s purchase of the remaining minority interest.

 › The Committee considered the treatment of the performance fee payable by AIF to the Group.
 › The Committee considered and debated the external auditor’s findings in this area.
 › Further information is given in notes 15 and 20 to the financial statements.

Investment property valuations  › Members of the Committee with relevant and current expertise in property valuations met with 
the external valuers of the Group’s property portfolio to understand and challenge, where 
necessary, the valuations.

 › The Committee considered and debated the external auditor’s findings in this area.
 › Further information is given in note 18 to the financial statements.

Judgements and disclosures made in relation 
to going concern and long-term viability

 › The Committee reviewed and challenged the underlying assumptions used in the going concern 
forecasts and long-term viability calculations as well as the reasonableness of the stress tests 
carried out by management in relation to those forecasts.

 › The Committee considered the support for and adequacy of the disclosures made in the Annual 
Report and Financial Statements in relation to going concern, long-term viability, debt maturity 
and covenant compliance.

 › The Committee considered and debated the external auditor’s findings in this area.
 › Further information is given in the Directors’ Report on page 54.

Basis for qualification for REIT status and the 
recognition of overseas deferred tax assets

 › The Committee considered the Group’s process for monitoring and maintaining REIT status.
 › The Committee considered the supporting evidence for recognition of overseas deferred tax 

assets, particularly in relation to tax losses.
 › The Committee considered the reasonability of management’s assessment of the likelihood of 

future utilisation of tax losses in each relevant entity and jurisdiction.
 › The Committee considered and debated the external auditor’s findings in this area.
 › Further information is given in notes 12 and 21 to the financial statements.

Recognition of any expense for the Founder 
Long-Term Incentive Plan (“Founder LTIP”)

 › The Committee reviewed and challenged the assumptions applied by management in its 
valuation of the Founder LTIP, the charge to be recognised for the year and the dilutive impact 
on the calculation of earnings per share.

 › The Committee considered the adequacy of the presentation and disclosure regarding the 
Founder LTIP in the Annual Report and Financial Statements.

 › The Committee considered and debated the external auditor’s findings in this area.
 › Further information is given in note 33 to the financial statements.

Rebecca Worthington
Chair of the Audit Committee
19 March 2017
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The Board hasestablisheda NominationCommittee (the
“Committee”), themajority of membersofwhichare independent

GovernanceCode.

TheCommitteecomprisesMelvyn Egglenton (Chairman), Rebecca
Worthington,Margaret Young, David Roughandeitherof theJoint
Chief Executives,MorganJones and IanWatson,at any onetime.
James Hambroand Humphrey Priceweremembersof theCommittee
duringtheyearuntil their retirement fromthe Boardon23August 2016
and 6June 2016 respectively. RebeccaWorthingtonacted asChairman
of theCommitteefor its discussions concerningthe appointment of a
Chairmanto replaceJames Hambro uponhis retirement.TheCompany
Secretary acts as secretary totheCommittee.

The roleof theCommittee is to keepunder review thecompositionof
the Board,to planfor its refreshment,with regardto balanceand
structure, andtoconsider issuesof succession.

TheCommittee is responsible fora numberof matters relatingtothe
compositionof the Board and itsCommittees and indischarging its
responsibilities gives careful considerationtotheGroup’s policieson
diversity, includingthose relatingtogenderandethnicity.The
Committee’s responsibilities include:

The report below describes the NominationCommittee,

› successionplanningforDirectors,ensuringthat appropriate
contingency plans are in placeand beingcognisant of theGroup’sDuring 2016themainfocusof the NominationCommitteewasthe
strategy andculture;appointment of a newChairmananda review of thecompositionof the

›BoardCommittees followingthe retirementsof James Hambroand
Boardvacancies as andwhenthey arise;Humphrey Price.

› reviewing annually thetimecommitment requiredof Non-Executive
Directors; andA key obj ectiveof the NominationCommittee is toensurethat the

› making recommendationstothe Board regardingmembershipofBoard hasthe right balanceof skills andexperiencetoenable it to
theAudit and RemunerationCommittees inconsultationwiththeprovide leadershipandaccountability. Itwastherefore pleasingtosee
Chairmanof eachCommittee.

TheCommittee is required, inaccordancewith its termsof reference,
tomeet at least onceayear. During 2016theCommitteemet four
times:to considera replacement forJames HambroasChairman,to
review thecontract andfeesfortheChairman,to review thefees forthe
Non-Executive Directors andtomake recommendations forany
changestothe Executive Directors fortheir approval,to review the
membershipof the BoardCommittees andtoapprove its termsof
referenceforthecomingyear.

Annual Report andAccounts 2016

› reviewingthestructure,sizeandcompositionof the Boardandmaking
recommendationstothe Boardwith regardtoany changes required;

Thefulltermsof referenceof theNominationCommittee, reviewed in
October2016,areavailableontheCompany’swebsitewww.hansteen.co.uk

S
tra

te
g
ic
re
p
o
rt

F
in
a
n
c
ia
ls
ta
te
m
e
n
ts

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

Report of theNominationCommittee

CompositionoftheCommittee

RoleandresponsibilitiesoftheCommittee

MelvynEgglenton

IntroductionbytheChairmanofthe

Chairmanof the NominationCommittee

NominationCommittee

Non-Executive Directors as required by the 2014UKCorporate

its responsibilities and its key activities duringtheyear.

identifying and nominating,for Board approval, candidates to�ll

that thefeedbackfromthe Boarde�ectivenessevaluationprocess

undertakenduringtheyearprovidedcon�rmationthat the Board,

andthe BoardCommittees,continuetooperatee�ectively.
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Diversity
Hansteen strives to have an equal, diverse and inclusive workforce. 
The Company embraces diversity, including gender and ethnic 
diversity, and provides an environment where every employee has the 
opportunity to achieve their full potential. It is one of Hansteen’s core 
values that people treat each other with dignity and respect. The Board 
approved Hansteen’s diversity and inclusion policy in 2013 and reviewed 
it in 2016. The policy is set out in the Employee Handbook and, as part of 
their induction, all new employees must confirm that they have read and 
understood the policy.

The Board’s policy on diversity, including gender and ethnicity, together 
with objectives that it has set for implementing the policy, and progress 
on achieving these objectives are set out in the corporate and social 
responsibility section of the Annual Report.

Committee evaluation
The performance of the Committee was evaluated as part of the 
externally facilitated Board evaluation exercise undertaken during the 
year and the Committee was found to be operating effectively.

Activities during 2016
The Committee’s focus in 2016 was the replacement of James Hambro 
as Chairman and Rebecca Worthington was appointed Chair of the 
Committee to undertake this task.

The Nomination Committee noted that Melvyn Egglenton had 
recorded his interest in being considered for the position and 
considered whether it was appropriate to appoint headhunters to carry 
out an external search. The Nomination Committee was of the view 
that Melvyn Egglenton was a strong candidate, given his considerable 
commercial experience and public company experience as Chairman of 
Pendragon PLC. They also considered that over the previous two years 
on the Board he had shown himself to be independently minded and to 
offer a valuable contribution, whilst being supportive of the business. 
Over that time, he had gained the respect of the whole Board.

During the year, the Committee also reviewed the composition of 
the Board Committees and the role of Senior Independent Director, 
following the retirements of Humphrey Price and James Hambro 
and the appointment of Melvyn Egglenton as Chairman. Rebecca 
Worthington had already been appointed as the replacement for 
Humphrey Price as Chair of the Audit Committee. It was agreed that 
Margaret Young had the necessary skills and experience and would be 
appointed to and act as Chair of the Remuneration Committee. 
Margaret Young had attended a number of Remuneration Committee 
meetings since she joined the Board, despite not being a member of 
the Committee. It was also agreed that David Rough had the necessary 
skills and experience and would be appointed to the Audit Committee. 
In addition, because of David’s previous experience, he was appointed 
as the Senior Independent Director.

Melvyn Egglenton
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
19 March 2017

Report of the Nomination Committee continued
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Duringtheyear,theCommitteecarriedout thefollowing activities:

› review of the achievement of the 2015annual bonus scheme
performancemeasures against target;

› reviewedandapprovedthe Directors’ RemunerationReport forthe
yearended31December 2015;

› review of the awardsvesting underthe Founder Long-Term
Incentive Plan (“Founder LTIP”) forthethree-year performance
periodended31December 2015;

› review of the basesalaries forthe Executive Directors fortheyear
ending31December 2016;

› approvalof awards underthe PerformanceShare Plan (“PSP”) tothe
Executive Directors;agreeingthedesignof, andtargets for,the
annual bonus schemefortheyearending 31December 2016;

› review of theCommittee’s termsof referenceand performance
duringtheyear;

› obtaining anunderstandingof the reasonsforthevotes cast against
theAnnual Report onRemunerationat the 2016AnnualGeneral
Meeting andconsideringshareholderfeedback;

› review of thecontractualtermsof the Founder LTIP inthe light of
shareholderfeedbackandthe proposalof certainamendments
subj ect to shareholderapproval;

› review of thetermsof the PSP;and
›

The performanceof theCommitteewasevaluated as part of the
externally facilitated Boardevaluationexercise undertakenduring

Onbehalf of the Board, Iampleasedto introducethe Report of the
RemunerationCommittee (the “Committee”) fortheyearended
31December 2016.

Basesalaries foreachof theJoint Chief Executives in 2016wereFormost of theyear,the RemunerationCommitteecomprised
unchangedfromthe previousyear.The basesalary forthe FinanceMelvyn Egglenton (Chair),James Hambro, David Roughand Rebecca
Directorwas increased by 9.3%, in linewith increases foremployeesWorthingtonuntil 23August 2016whenJames Hambro retiredfrom
acrosstheGroupas awhole.the Board and itsCommittees. Havingoriginallyj oinedthe Boardon

1October 2015, Iwas appointedtothe RemunerationCommitteeon
23August 2016when Ialso succeededMelvyn EgglentonasChairof
theCommittee.

The primary roleof theCommittee is todetermineand recommend

111.2ptoa record 128.9p.This growthwas after payment of dividends
Directors andsenioremployees,toensurethat they arefairly but of 5.35ppershare,making atotalgainovertheyearof 23.1ppershare
responsibly rewardedfortheir individualcontributionstotheGroup’s
overall performancetaking into account theirexisting contractual payment underthe annual bonus schemeforthe Executive Directors
entitlements.TheCommittee’s obj ective is to support the business is appropriate at 85%of themaximum.
strategy of theGroup (details ofwhichare set out intheStrategic
Report onpages 1to 23),to promotetheGroup’s long-termsuccess
andtoalign remunerationwithshareholders’ returns.TheCommittee

– In respect of PSPawardswithathree-year performancealso administers theGroup’s share incentive plans.
periodended31December 2016, underwhich50%of eachaward is
measuredagainst NAVtargets and50%against TSRtargets, 100%
of the NAV part and0%of theTSRpart is expectedtovest.welcomesshareholderfeedbackandour responsetothefeedback

– The Founder LTIPwasestablishedat IPO inthechangesweare proposingtothe remunerationpolicy for 2017.
November 2005to rewardtheJoint Chief Executives (as founder
Directors) forthedelivery of highabsolute returnsoveranextended
period.Underthis plan, if thegrowth in EPRA NAV pershare (plus
dividends andother returns toshareholders) exceeds compound

performance period,theJoint Chief Executives each receive awards
insharesequivalent invalueto 12.5%of theexcess growth.The plan
is repeatedoverconsecutivethree-year performance periods and in

shares underthe Founder LTIPwasmadetotheJoint Chief Executives.
These awardsweremade in relationtothethree-year performance
periodended31December 2015.

Annual Report andAccounts 2016
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Report of the RemunerationCommittee

1.Annual statement of theChair of the RemunerationCommittee

MargaretYoung

IntroductionbytheChairofthe
RemunerationCommittee

Performanceandrewardduring2016

Chairof the RemunerationCommittee

Basesalaries– Executive Directors

Performance related bonus– Executive Directors

Share schemes– Executive Directors

review of the pay and bene�ts packagesof senioremployees.

theyearandtheCommitteewasfoundto beoperatinge�ectively.

The Group’s performanceduring 2016 resulted inan increaseof 29.4%

inthe Normalised Income Pro�t from£47.2millionto a record levelof

£61.1million.The EPRA NAV also increased by 17.7ppersharefrom
tothe Boardthespeci�c pay and bene�ts packagesforthe Executive

or 20.8%. Inthis context,the Committee is satis�edthat the levelof

In performing its role andful�lling its obj ectives,the Committee

receivedfollowingthe 2016AnnualGeneralMeeting is re�ected in

growthof morethan 10% perannumovera�xedthree-year

2016,forthe�rst timesince its establishment in 2005,an issueof

PSPawards

Founder LTIPawards
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Fees – Non-Executive Directors
During the year, James Hambro, the Non-Executive Chairman of the 
Company, and Humphrey Price, the Chair of the Audit Committee, both 
retired from the Board and were succeeded in those positions by Melvyn 
Egglenton and Rebecca Worthington respectively. The roles of Senior 
Independent Director and Chair of the Remuneration Committee, 
previously both held by Melvyn Egglenton, were assumed by David 
Rough and by me. In view of the changed responsibilities, the fees 
payable to the Non-Executive Directors, which had not been amended 
since 1 January 2013, were reviewed and benchmarked against FTSE 
250 companies and FTSE 250 property companies. The benchmarking 
exercise indicated that the Non-Executive Directors’ fees were below 
market level and, in the case of the Chairman, significantly below market 
level. As a result of this review, the fees payable to the Chairman and 
Non-Executive Directors were increased with effect from 23 August 
2016. Neither the Chairman nor the Non-Executive Directors 
participated in the determination of their own pay. Further details of 
these changes are given in the Single Figure Table on page 38.

Responding to shareholder feedback – proposed 
remuneration policy for 2017
At the Annual General Meeting on 6 June 2016, 23.4% of votes were 
cast against the Annual Report on Remuneration. Feedback from 
shareholders who voted against the Remuneration Report indicated 
that their main concerns were about the Founder LTIP and particularly 
about the scale of the first Founder LTIP payout which was made 
in 2016.

In light of these shareholder concerns, the Committee spent some 
time considering whether it would be possible to discontinue the 
existing Founder LTIP and replace it with a new long-term incentive plan 
for all senior executives, including the Joint Chief Executives, which 
would better reflect current shareholders’ views and current corporate 
governance recommendations on executive remuneration and LTIPs.

Having taken legal advice, the Committee has established that the 
Founder LTIP is a legally binding contract between the Company and 
the Joint Chief Executives and cannot be discontinued without their 
agreement. The Joint Chief Executives indicated that they would not 
provide such agreement unless the Founder LTIP was replaced with 
another LTIP on a comparable scale. The Committee therefore 
focused its efforts on obtaining the agreement of the Joint Chief 
Executives to a number of changes to the Founder LTIP and to their 
overall remuneration packages. This resulted in a set of proposed 
amendments which, in the Committee’s opinion, represent a 
material improvement from the point of view of the Company and its 
shareholders and will continue to incentivise the Joint Chief Executives.

The Chairman of the Company and I offered to meet with a number 
of major shareholders to discuss the proposed changes and, as a result, 
in January 2017, consulted with shareholders accounting for 45% of the 
Company’s shares. 

Given the concerns that some shareholders continued to express 
about the Founder LTIP in those meetings, despite the proposed 
changes, the Committee has held further discussions with the Joint 
Chief Executives who have now agreed in addition to the proposed 
changes, to the termination of the Founder LTIP following completion 
of the current three-year performance period ending 31 December 
2018 and allowing for the payment of any share awards in respect of 
that performance period, if shareholders approve the proposed 
Remuneration Policy. 

The agreement of the Joint Chief Executives to termination of the Founder 
LTIP at the end of the current three-year performance period represents 
a very significant concession on their part and reflects the Board’s 
understanding of the strength of shareholder views on this matter.

When the Founder LTIP terminates, the Committee will review all aspects 
of executive remuneration and will consult with shareholders at that time.

The changes to the Joint Chief Executives’ contractual remuneration 
packages now being proposed by the Committee are set out below. 
The Committee believes that the proposed changes constitute 
material improvements to those packages from the Company’s and 
the shareholders’ points of view. However, should shareholders not 
vote in favour of these changes, then the Committee will be obliged 
to continue to operate in accordance with the terms of the existing 
Remuneration Policy approved by the shareholders at the 2014 Annual 
General Meeting.

The Committee proposes that the terms of the Joint Chief Executives’ 
contractual remuneration packages remain as for 2016 subject to the 
following modifications:

1. They will not participate in future PSP awards.
2. Their increase in base salary will not exceed the average increase 

for employees across the Group as a whole.
3. They will be required to hold shares to the value of 200% of their 

base salary whilst they remain Joint Chief Executives (rather than 
100%, as at present).

4. In relation to the Founder LTIP:
a. It will be discontinued following completion of the current three-year 

performance period ending 31 December 2018 and the payment of 
any share awards in respect of that performance period.

b. Award shares may be satisfied by the issue of new shares and/or 
the use of market purchase shares.

c. Awards of shares for the current performance period will be 
subject to a two-year holding period whilst the Director remains 
employed as Joint Chief Executive, subject to their being allowed 
to sell sufficient shares to cover any income tax and national 
insurance obligations arising as a result of an award. This 
requirement will not apply in the event of a change of control of 
the Company.

d. Awards for the current performance period will be subject to 
malus and clawback, with potential awards subject to 
cancellation or reduction and actual awards subject to clawback 
over a period of two years from vesting if there has been a 
material misstatement of the Company’s financial results or 
fraud or gross misconduct on the part of the individual.

5. In relation to future awards under the annual performance related 
bonus scheme:
a. The potential annual bonus will be increased from 75% of base 

salary to 100% of base salary.
b. The awards will also be subject to malus and clawback on similar 

terms to those set out above for the Founder LTIP.

1. Annual statement of the Chair of the Remuneration Committee continued
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Quite separately from the above proposed changes, as part of its 
review of the Founder LTIP, the Committee has also taken the 
opportunity to clarify some of the terms applicable on a takeover of the 
Company occurring before the end of a performance period, when the 
performance period is shortened to end on the date of change of 
control. In such event:

 › growth in EPRA NAV per share over the shortened performance 
period will be measured by reference to the difference between the 
base EPRA NAV per share and the offer price per share under the 
relevant offer (rather than the higher of EPRA NAV per share and the 
offer price per share);

 › any amount vesting will be calculated by reference to the issued 
share capital of the Company before dilution by shares issued to 
satisfy awards (thereby avoiding an increase in the multiplier for 
the purposes of calculating the share award entitlement); and

 › measurement of the target EPRA NAV per share for compound 
growth purposes will be on a weekly basis (rather than a complete 
number of years within the performance period).

The following report has been prepared in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-Sized 
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2013 and 
meets the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial 
Conduct Authority and the UK Corporate Governance Code. The 
report is presented in two parts – the Remuneration Policy Report and 
the Annual Report on Remuneration. The parts of the Annual Report 
on Remuneration that are subject to audit are indicated in that report. 
The Statement by the Chair of the Remuneration Committee and the 
Remuneration Policy Report are not subject to audit.

Ordinary resolutions will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting on 13 June 2017 to approve separately the 
Remuneration Policy Report (which is subject to a binding shareholder 
vote) and the Annual Report on Remuneration and this Statement 
(which are subject to an advisory vote).

Margaret Young
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
19 March 2017
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This part of the Report of the RemunerationCommittee providesdetails onhow theGroup’s current approved Remuneration Policywas applied in

theyearended31December 2016andwill be subj ect to anadvisory vote by shareholders at theAnnualGeneralMeeting.

The remunerationof the Directors during 2016and 2015was as follows:

MorganJones

2016 50 268 180 67 985

2015 50 25,132 67 25,863

IanWatson

2016 268 180 67 989

2015 53 25,132 67 25,866

Richard Lowes

2016 295 38 188 682

2015 270 35 155 607

Melvyn Egglenton

2016 90 – – – – 90

2015 52 – – – – 52

David Rough

2016 – – – –

2015 11 – – – – 11

Margaret Young

2016 50 – – – – 50

2015 11 – – – – 11

RebeccaWorthington

2016 53 – – – – 53

2015 – – – –

James Hambro

2016 60 – – – – 60

2015 93 – – – – 93

RichardMully

2016 – – – – – –

2015 22 – – – – 22

RichardCotton

2016 – – – – – –

2015 36 – – – – 36

Humphrey Price

2016 21 – – – – 21

2015 50 – – – – 50

Total 2015 138 50,36 177 52,659

Annual Report andAccounts 2016

2.Annual report on remuneration

Introduction

Auditedinformation

A.Singletotalfguretable

Salary/fees bene�ts
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Taxable Performance Share
related bonus schemes Pension Total

Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Total 2016 1,458 142 724 474 181 2,979

420

420 194

420 54

420 194

114 47

104 43

�

49 49

�

48 48

�

�

�

�

1,433 543

Notes:

1. David RoughandMargaret Youngwere appointedtothe Boardon 1October 2015.

2. James Hambro retiredfromthe Boardon23August 2016.

3. RichardMully retiredfromthe Boardon8June 2015.

5. Humphrey Price retiredfromthe Boardon6June 2016.

4. RichardCotton retiredfromthe Boardon30September 2015.

Report of the RemunerationCommittee continued
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Salary and fees
Salaries and fees comprise base salary for Executive Directors and fees for Non-Executive Directors.

Effective from 23 August 2016, it was decided to increase the Chairman’s fees from £89,250 per annum and £3,000 per annum in respect of 
individual Committee membership to £150,000 per annum, inclusive of fees in respect of individual Committee membership. It was also decided to 
increase the fees for Non-Executive Directors from £42,000 per annum and £3,000 per annum in respect of individual Committee membership to 
£48,000 per annum, inclusive of fees in respect of individual Committee membership. The additional fees for the Chairs of the Audit and the 
Remuneration Committees were each increased from £7,500 per annum to £10,000 per annum. The additional fees for the role of Senior 
Independent Director remained unchanged at £7,500 per annum.

Taxable benefits
Taxable benefits comprise the monetary or deemed monetary value of the car allowance, private fuel and private medical insurance for the Executive 
Director and immediate family, and life assurance and income protection insurance provided by the Group. No analysis of the individual elements of 
taxable benefits has been given as the amounts are not considered to be significant in the context of an understanding of total remuneration.

Performance related bonus
The maximum potential bonus for the year ended 31 December 2016 for each of the Executive Directors was 75% of base salary (2015: 75%).

The 2016 bonus awards were measured against the following targets:

Target Performance measure Actual achieved % award granted

Financial Targets  
(up to 40% of award)

 › Normalised Income Profit before tax from £48 
million to £52 million, with adjustment for any capital 
raising excluding the Founder LTIP and Performance 
Share Plan shares, to achieve full award.

 › Normalised Income Profit before tax  
£61.6 million.

20% awarded

 › Normalised Total Profit before tax from £48 million 
to £64 million, with adjustment for any capital raising 
excluding the Founder LTIP and Performance Share 
Plan shares, to achieve full award.

 › Normalised Total Profit before tax  
£66.0 million.

20% awarded

Occupancy/Cost 
Efficiency Targets 
(up to 20% of award)

 › The occupancy target range is a net improvement of 
50,000 square metres to 100,000 square metres 
(pro-rata). The cost efficiency target range is an 
administrative expenses/rent ratio of 16.0% to 
17.5% (pro-rata).

 › Improvement of 131,069 square metres 
(pro-rata).

 › Administrative expenses/rent ratio of 15.4%.

10% awarded
 
10% awarded

Corporate Target  
(up to 20% of award)

 › Production and execution of a two-year operational 
business plan.

 › To submit a succession plan to the Board.
 › Development of strategy to include asset, liability 

and hedging strategies.

 › Production of clearly defined two-year 
business plan and delivery against that plan 
had not, in the view of the Committee, been 
fully met. In the light of this, it had been 
difficult to formulate a clear succession plan.

15% awarded

Discretionary 
Element (up to 20% 
of award)

 › Based on overall performance.  › Restricted to reflect the lower than expected 
achievement of the Corporate Target.

10% awarded

In total, the Committee awarded bonuses to each Joint Chief Executive of £267,750, representing 85% of his maximum potential bonus, and 
£188,063 to the Finance Director, representing 85% of his maximum bonus potential.

Share schemes – Performance Share Plan
The value included under share schemes includes an estimate of the value of the PSP awards that will vest subject to TSR and NAV performance 
targets for the three-year period that ended on 31 December 2016. Based on an assessment of performance targets as at 19 March 2017, it is 
estimated that the Group will achieve 0% of the TSR ranking and 100% of the NAV growth ranking (i.e. a total vesting of 50%). The value of the share 
awards expected to vest is based on £1.09, being the average share price over the last quarter of 2016. To the extent that the share awards vest, the 
options over the vested shares will become exercisable in three equal annual tranches from April 2017 to April 2019.

In the Annual Report on Remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2015, it was estimated that the Group achieved 0% of the TSR ranking and 
75% of the NAV growth ranking at the time of publishing the report. The actual rankings did not change. The share price used to calculate the value 
of the awards in 2015 was £1.17. The share price on the day that the awards vested was £1.08. The comparative amounts disclosed in the 2015 table 
above have been restated to reflect these changes to the estimated value.

Share schemes – Founder LTIP
As part of the founder arrangements established at IPO in 2005, each Joint Chief Executive is entitled to a share award dependent on Company 
performance over consecutive three-year performance periods. The current performance period runs from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.
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Any amount payable under the Founder LTIP is to be satisfied by the award of ordinary shares of the Company. The number of shares awarded 
depends on the Company’s net asset value growth per share (including dividends and other returns to shareholders) exceeding a compound 
growth rate of 10% per annum (the “Target NAV”) over a defined three-year period. For the purposes of the Founder LTIP, net asset value is taken 
to be the diluted net asset value adjusted in accordance with the guidelines issued by the European Public Real Estate Organisation (“EPRA NAV”). 
To the extent that EPRA NAV per ordinary share (including dividends and other returns to shareholders) exceeds the Target NAV per share, 12.5% 
of such excess multiplied by the number of ordinary shares in issue will be payable to each of the Joint Chief Executives as an award.

The value included under share schemes for each of the Joint Chief Executives includes the value of the Founder LTIP awards vesting in that 
financial year.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, 22,906,127 shares were due to be issued to each of the Joint Chief Executives under the Founder LTIP in 
respect of the three-year performance period which ended on 31 December 2015. In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of 
the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 Part 3, the estimated value of those shares was 
included in the Single Figure Table in the Annual Report on Remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2015 based on the average share price 
over the last quarter of 2015, being £1.17 per share, resulting in £26,909,470 being attributed to each of the two Founder Directors. The share price 
on 15 March 2016, the day that the awards vested, was £1.09 per share. The comparative amounts disclosed in the 2015 table above have been 
restated to reflect these changes to the estimated value.

Whilst 22,906,127 shares were due to be issued to each of the Joint Chief Executives under the Founder LTIP in respect of the three-year 
performance period which ended on 31 December 2015, they surrendered part of their awards equal in value to their PAYE income tax and 
employee’s national insurance liabilities due on vesting of the awards and the Company settled those liabilities on their behalf. Each Joint Chief 
Executive was therefore issued with 12,140,247 shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, no Founder LTIP awards vested since the current three-year performance period commenced on 1 January 
2016 and ends on 31 December 2018. For the current performance period, the base NAV per share is 111.2p per share and the Target NAV is 148.0p 
per share.

Pensions
The value included represents the amounts paid by the Company to each Executive Director to facilitate his own pension arrangements. None of 
the Executive Directors have a prospective right to a defined benefit pension.

Payments to past Directors
No payments were made during the year.

Payments for loss of office
No payments were made during the year.

B. Share scheme interests awarded during the year
Performance Share Plan
Awards made to the Executive Directors under the PSP during the year were as follows:

Award date
Share price 

for award (p) Face value Performance period Exercise period

Number of 
options 

awarded

Ian Watson 14 April 2016 108.10 £315,000 01/16 – 12/18 04/19 – 04/21 291,397
Morgan Jones 14 April 2016 108.10 £315,000 01/16 – 12/18 04/19 – 04/21 291,397
Richard Lowes 14 April 2016 108.10 £221,250 01/16 – 12/18 04/19 – 04/21 204,672

 › Face value has been calculated using the share price at date of grant.
 › None of the options awarded during the year lapsed or vested. 
 › In accordance with the current approved Remuneration Policy, annual awards to Ian Watson and Morgan Jones under the PSP are made in the 

form of nil cost options subject to a maximum value at grant of 150% of base salary but limited to 75% of base salary.
 › In accordance with the current approved Remuneration Policy, annual awards to Richard Lowes under the PSP are made in the form of nil-cost 

share options subject to a maximum value at grant of 150% of base salary.
 › As noted on page 39, the PSP awards vest based on a TSR and NAV growth ranking and 25% of the PSP awards vest if the minimum 

performance threshold is met.

C. Directors’ shareholdings and share interests
Shareholding guidelines
The Company introduced a policy requiring Executive Directors to maintain a minimum holding of shares in the Company at the 2013 Annual 
General Meeting. Within three years of their appointment, Executive Directors are expected to build, and then maintain, a holding of shares in the 
Company equal to one year’s base salary.

The current shareholdings of the Executive Directors on 31 December 2016 compared to their respective base salaries are: Ian Watson – 2,476%, 
Morgan Jones – 2,476% and Richard Lowes – 656%.

Report of the Remuneration Committee continued

2. Annual report on remuneration continued
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MorganJones 151,706 – –

IanWatson 151,706 – –

Richard Lowes 253,892 – –

Melvyn Egglenton – – – – –

David Rough 75,000 – – – – –

Margaret Young – – – – – –

RebeccaWorthington – – – – – –

James Hambro 375,000 – – – – –

Humphrey Price 200,000 – – – – –

Noneof theordinary shares held by Directors are subj ect to performancemeasures.

pagefrom31December 2016to 19March2017.

The Executive Directors are permitted,subj ect tothe priorwrittenconsent of the Board,to accept appointments as Non-Executive Directorson
other boards so longas noneof such interests prej udicethe business interests of theCompany orof any Groupcompany.Noneof the Executive
Directors have any fee-payingexternaldirectorships.

Thefollowinggraphs comparetheCompany’sTotalShareholder Return (“TSR”) totwo FTSEReal Estate indices.TSRmeasures share pricegrowth,
withdividendsdeemedto be reinvestedontheex-dividenddate.Thecomparator indices used have beenchosenby theCommitteeasthey are
consideredthemost appropriate benchmarks againstwhichto assessthe relative performanceof theCompany forthis purpose andforthese
time periods.Thegraphs are basedonunderlyingdata provided byThomsonReuters Datastream.

All-Share Real Estate Investment &Services Index (whichupuntil that point theCompanywould have beenaconstituent memberof). From
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Directors’ interests as at 31December 2016ordateof resignation
Shares subj ect
to Founder LTIP

Shares Shares subj ect to PSPawards awards

Unvestedwith Vested but Exercised
Ordinary performance not Vested and during the
shares measures exercisable exercisable year Vested

9,164,056 847,989 391,744

9,164,056 847,989 391,744

1,704,107 559,564 97,124

72,406

There have beennochangestothe bene�cial andother interestsof the Directors intheordinary sharesof HansteenHoldings PLCas shownonthis

Thefollowinggraphdetails theCompany’sTSRperformancesince�otation. Priorto 6October 2009,the index usedforcomparison is the FTSE

6October 2009,the index usedforcomparison is the FTSEAll-Share Real Estate InvestmentTrusts Index,to re�ect theCompany’s conversion

into a REITwithe�ect fromthat date.

Non-auditedinformation

D.Externaldirectorships

E.PerformancegraphsandJointChiefExecutives’remunerationtable

Performancesince�otation

300 IndexHansteen

250

200

150

100

50

0
01/01/09 31/12/09 31/12/10 31/12/11 31/12/12 31/12/13 31/12/14 31/12/15 31/12/16



42 HansteenHoldings PLC

Thefollowingeight-year performancegraphcompares solely against the FTSEAll-Share Real Estate InvestmentTrusts Index.

eight years.

2016 MorganJones 985 85.0 50.00

IanWatson 989 85.0 50.00

2015 MorganJones 25,863 61.7 37.50

IanWatson 25,866 61.7 37.50

MorganJones 1,106 97.5 50.00

IanWatson 1,109 97.5 50.00

2013 MorganJones 1,050 97.5 56.25

IanWatson 1,052 97.5 56.25

2012 MorganJones 789 82.9 –

IanWatson 793 82.9 –

2011 MorganJones 667 95.0 –

IanWatson 671 95.0 –

2010 MorganJones 600 87.7 –

IanWatson 87.7 –

2009 MorganJones 89.8 –

IanWatson 89.8 –

maximumopportunity, but basedonperformanceagainst set criteria.The long-term incentivevesting rates against maximumopportunity

therefore relateonly tothe PerformanceShare Plan.

remunerationof all employees.

Joint Chief Executives – 0.2 38

Allotheremployees 10.8 2.8 15

Annual Report andAccounts 2016

Eight-year performance

Joint Chief Executives’ remunerationtable
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The following table shows the single �gure remuneration and percentage of bonus and incentive vesting for the Joint Chief Executives forthe last

2014

604

497

499

As described on pages 39 and 40, the Joint Chief Executives participate in the Founder LTIP. The potential share entitlement is not subj ect to a

The table below shows the percentage change in remuneration of the Joint Chief Executives for the last �nancialyear compared with the

Long-term
Annual bonus incentive

payout vesting rates
against against

Single maximum maximum
opportunity opportunity

Year Joint Chief Executive % %

Taxable Performance
related bonus

%change 2015to 2016 % % %

�gure
£000

Salary/fees bene�ts

F.Percentagechangeinremuneration

1

1. Excludingj oiners and leavers duringtheyear.

2.Annual report on remunerationcontinued
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G. Relative importance of spend on pay
The chart below shows the relative importance of overall expenditure on pay by the Group compared to the Group’s key financial measures and 
dividends paid to shareholders in the year.

(29)%

(67)%

29%

2015 2016

47.2

61.1

36.3

11.8

56.2

39.8

2015 2016 2015 2016

Normalised Income Profit Dividends Overall expenditure on pay

Normalised Income Profit has been chosen as a metric for this comparison as the Directors believe that it represents underlying earnings of the 
Group and is a key performance indicator. The percentage movement reflects the year-on-year change. The reduction in dividends reflects the 
fact that the previous year included a special dividend of £20.5 million. The reduction in the overall expenditure on pay reflects the fact that the 
previous year included a charge for the Founder LTIP awards which has not been repeated in the current year.

H. The Committee and its advisers
Melvyn Egglenton was Chairman of the Committee until 23 August 2016, after which he was succeeded by Margaret Young. Melvyn Egglenton 
remained a member of the Committee. Other members of the Committee were James Hambro, until 23 August 2016, Rebecca Worthington and 
David Rough.

The Committee meets regularly, and no less than twice a year. In 2016, the Committee met six times. Details of attendance at meetings can be 
found in the Corporate Governance Report.

The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, updated following a review undertaken in October 2016, are available on the 
Company’s website at www.hansteen.co.uk

The performance of the Committee was assessed during the year as part of the externally facilitated evaluation of the Board and its Committees 
and was found to be operating effectively.

The Committee seeks external advice to assist it where appropriate. PricewaterhouseCoopers were appointed by the Committee in September 
2015 following a review of the Company’s remuneration advisers. The Committee consulted PricewaterhouseCoopers during the year and 
approved fees to them of £110,000, excluding VAT, for independent remuneration advice, charged on a time and expenses basis. Having 
considered that PricewaterhouseCoopers provided tax advisory and compliance services to the Company during the year, the Committee is 
satisfied that the advice provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers is both independent and objective. PricewaterhouseCoopers adhere to the 
Remuneration Consultants’ Group Code of Conduct.

The Committee seeks internal support from the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary where necessary, and they may all attend 
Committee meetings by invitation, but are not present for any discussions that relate directly to their own remuneration.

I. Implementation of policy for 2017
We summarise below the key elements of the 2017 remuneration package for the Executive Directors in line with the current approved 
Remuneration Policy and subject to adjustment in line with the proposed Remuneration Policy set out on pages 46 to 52 if the proposed policy is 
approved by shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting on 13 June 2017. Those key elements are:

 › Fixed pay/benefits – base annual salary and benefits, pension contributions and insurance cover.
 › Variable annual pay – cash payments under the annual performance related bonus scheme.
 › Variable long-term pay – share-based long-term incentives under the PSP and the Founder LTIP with performance criteria.
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Fixed pay/benefits
The Committee has approved an increase to base annual salary of 5% for Morgan Jones, Ian Watson and Richard Lowes with effect from 1 January 
2017. No increase has been approved for the Non-Executive Directors.

2016 
Salary 

£000

2017 
Salary 

£000

Executive Directors
Morgan Jones 420 440
Ian Watson 420 440
Richard Lowes 295 310

No changes will be made to pension and benefit provision.

Variable annual pay
The Board has set new targets for the Executive Directors for the annual bonus in line with the Group’s strategic, financial and operational 
objectives. In line with the proposed Remuneration Policy, the maximum potential bonus is set at 100% of base salary for each of the Joint Chief 
Executives. In line with the current approved Remuneration Policy and the proposed Remuneration Policy, the maximum potential bonus is set at 
100% for the Finance Director. The changes to the annual bonus targets are within the scope of the current approved Remuneration Policy and the 
proposed Remuneration Policy. The bonus criteria for 2017 include four elements:

Target Performance measure % of potential award

Financial Targets  
(up to 40% of award)

 › Normalised Income Profit before tax from £63 million to £67 million, with 
adjustment for any capital raising excluding the Founder LTIP and Performance 
Share Plan shares, to achieve full award.

Up to 20% of award

 › Normalised Total Profit before tax from £65 million to £71 million, with 
adjustment for any capital raising excluding the Founder LTIP and Performance 
Share Plan shares, to achieve full award.

Up to 20% of award

Occupancy/Cost Efficiency Targets  
(up to 20% of award)

 › The occupancy target range is set at a minimum/maximum range of 33,000 
square metres (representing 10% to 20% of opening vacancy).

Up to 10% of award

 › The cost efficiency target range is an administrative expenses/rent ratio of 15% 
to 16% (pro-rata).

Up to 10% of award

Corporate Target  
(up to 20% of award)

 › Production of a clear plan for strategy and finance.
 › Further and regular consideration of the options in relation to the Convertible 

Bonds.
 › Implement a move to electronic Board Papers.
 › Carry out a review of financial advisers.

Up to 20% of award

Discretionary Element  
(up to 20% of award)

 › Based on overall performance. Up to 20% of award

Performance Share Plan
Annual awards are subject to a maximum value at grant of 150% of base salary but, in accordance with the current approved Remuneration Policy, 
limited to 75% of base salary for each of the Joint Chief Executives in view of their participation in the Founder LTIP. If the proposed Remuneration 
Policy is approved by shareholders, no awards will be made to either of the Joint Chief Executives for 2017. The Finance Director will be awarded 
nil-cost share options under the PSP with a value at grant of 100% of his base salary, which is within the scope of the current and the proposed 
Remuneration Policy. The award will vest based on two separate performance conditions: 50% will vest by reference to the Group’s TSR ranking 
and 50% by reference to the Group’s EPRA NAV ranking, in each case relative to a comparator group over a three-year performance period. To the 
extent that an award vests, the options over the vested shares will become exercisable in three equal annual tranches following the end of the 
performance period.

The comparator group is determined by the Committee and comprises a peer group of companies in the property sector. When granting awards, 
the Committee reserves the right to vary the constituents of the comparator group or take such other actions as it considers reasonable in the 
event that any member of the comparator group ceases to exist, or its shares cease to be listed in the Official List of the London Stock Exchange 
or other recognised stock exchange, or it is so changed as to make it, in the opinion of the Committee, unsuitable as a member of the comparator 
group. The percentage of the award that vests is subject to the following schedule:

TSR/NAV growth ranking Vesting

Below Median Nil
Median 25%
Between Median and Upper Quartile On a straight-line basis between 25% and 100% in proportion to the Company’s ranking between Median 

and Upper Quartile.

2. Annual report on remuneration continued

Report of the Remuneration Committee continued
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Founder LTIP
Under the Founder LTIP, the current three-year performance measurement period commenced on 1 January 2016 and will end on 31 December 
2018. Each Founder Director will be entitled to an award of shares with a value equivalent to 12.5% of the Company’s NAV growth per share 
(including dividends and other returns to shareholders) in excess of a 10% per annum compound growth in the NAV per share over the performance 
measurement period. If the proposed Remuneration Policy is approved by shareholders, the awards will be subject to the following conditions:

 › Award shares may be satisfied by the issue of new shares and/or the use of market purchase shares.
 › Shares awarded will be subject to a two-year holding period whilst a Director remains employed as Joint Chief Executive, subject to his being 

allowed to sell sufficient shares to cover any income tax and national insurance obligations arising as a result of the award. This requirement will 
not apply in the event of a change of control of the Company.

 › Awards will be subject to malus and clawback, with potential awards subject to cancellation or reduction and actual awards subject to clawback 
over a period of two years from vesting if there has been a material misstatement of the Company’s financial results or fraud or gross 
misconduct on the part of the individual.

J. Voting at the Annual General Meeting
At the Annual General Meeting held on 6 June 2016, votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of the Annual Report on Remuneration were 
as set out below. The current Remuneration Policy was most recently put to shareholders and approved at the Annual General Meeting on 9 June 
2014, and votes cast by proxy and by a poll at the meeting were as set out below.

Resolution text Votes for % for Votes against % against Total votes cast
Votes withheld 

(abstentions)

6 June 2016 Approval of Annual Report on Remuneration 427,998,625 76.60% 130,743,937 23.40% 558,742,562 48,623,234
9 June 2014 Approval of Remuneration Policy 499,072,167 92.92% 38,009,265 7.08% 537,081,432 45,239

The Committee’s deliberations regarding the votes cast against approval of the Annual Report on Remuneration, and the action taken by the 
Committee, are summarised in the Annual Statement of the Chair of the Remuneration Committee on pages 35 to 37.
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This part of the Report of the Remuneration Committee sets out the proposed Remuneration Policy for Directors of the Company which will be 
subject to a binding vote by shareholders at the 2017 Annual General Meeting. This policy is intended to take effect immediately following 
shareholder approval.

Policy overview
In setting the Remuneration Policy for the Executive Directors, the Remuneration Committee will take into account the following:

 › the strategy of the Company;
 › the need to attract, retain and motivate high-calibre individuals;
 › alignment between remuneration of the Executive Directors and the Group’s business objectives;
 › alignment between remuneration and the interests of the shareholders;
 › pay and benefits practice and employment conditions within the Group and the geographic regions in which the Group operates; and
 › current market trends and practices with regard to equivalent roles in groups of similar size, complexity and geographic spread as well as their 

relative performance.

Consideration of shareholder views
The Committee will be committed to an ongoing dialogue with shareholders and will seek the views of significant shareholders when any major 
changes are being made to remuneration arrangements. The Committee will take into account the views of significant shareholders when 
formulating and implementing the policy. The Committee will also consider shareholder feedback received in relation to the Annual General 
Meeting each year.

Consideration of employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
Whilst it does not consult with the Group’s employees directly, the Committee will consider pay and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group 
when considering the remuneration policy for the Executive Directors. When considering base salary increases, the Committee will consider the 
general level of salary increases across the Group. Salary increases for Executive Directors will be aligned with those received elsewhere in the 
Group unless the Committee considers that specific circumstances require a different level of salary increase for any of the Executive Directors.

The remuneration arrangements for employees below the main Board will reflect the seniority of the role and, therefore, the components and 
levels of remuneration for different employees may differ from the policy for Executives as set out in the Future Policy Table below. Other than the 
Joint Chief Executives’ participation in the Founder LTIP, the structure of the remuneration package for the Executive Directors is generally 
consistent with that for senior management.

Legacy arrangements
The Committee reserves the right to make remuneration payments and payments for loss of office that fall outside the Remuneration Policy as 
described below where the terms of payment remain unchanged and were agreed before the policy came into effect or at a time when the relevant 
individual was not a Director of the Company. Such payments could be made where, in the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not in 
consideration for the individual becoming a Director of the Company. For these purposes, payments include the Committee satisfying awards 
of variable remuneration and, in relation to an award of shares, the terms of payment agreed at the time the award was granted. Details of any 
payments will be disclosed in the Annual Report on Remuneration for that year.

Operation of the annual bonus arrangements and share schemes
In operating and administering the annual bonus scheme and the Group share schemes in accordance with their respective rules and in accordance 
with the Listing Rules, where relevant, the Committee will retain certain discretions which will include, but not be limited to, the following:

 › the selection of participants;
 › the timing of the grant of an award and payments;
 › the size of an award within the limits of the contractual obligations if part of a legacy agreement or, if not subject to a legacy arrangement, 

in accordance with the Future Policy Table as set out below;
 › the determination of the extent to which performance measures have been met and the corresponding vesting or payment levels, including 

time pro-rating of awards;
 › the action to be taken when dealing with a change of control or restructuring of the Group;
 › determination of the treatment of leavers in accordance with the relevant rules of each incentive plan and the appropriate treatment chosen, 

including pro-rating of awards;
 › adjustments to awards, if any are required, in certain circumstances (e.g. rights issues, corporate restructuring events and special dividends);
 › the annual review of performance measures, weighting and targets for the annual bonus scheme and PSP; and
 › the method by which awards can be satisfied (i.e. through the use of issue of new shares, the funding of the Company’s employee benefit trust 

to purchase shares, the use of treasury shares, by way of cash payment or by settlement of income tax and national insurance liabilities on the 
employee’s behalf).

The Committee will also retain the ability to adjust the targets and/or set different performance measures for the annual bonus scheme and PSP 
if events occur (e.g. a material acquisition and/or divestment of a Group business) which cause it to consider that the targets and measures are 
no longer appropriate to achieve the original purpose of incentivising the Executive Directors, provided that the revised targets/performance 
measures are no less challenging bearing in mind the revised circumstances.

Any use of the above discretions would be explained in the Annual Report on Remuneration for the relevant year and may, as appropriate, be the 
subject of consultation with the Company’s major shareholders.

3. Directors’ remuneration policy report

Report of the Remuneration Committee continued
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A. Future policy table
The following table summarises the key elements of the Group’s proposed Remuneration Policy for Directors.

Executive Directors

Fixed pay

Element Base salary
Purpose and link to strategy  › To attract, retain and motivate high-calibre individuals.

 › To provide competitive non-variable remuneration relative to the external market.
 › To recognise and reward performance, skills and experience.

Operation Normally reviewed in January each year having regard to market practice, to Group and individual performance, 
to general increases across the Group and to the individual’s experience, skills, qualifications and scope 
of responsibility.

Maximum opportunity There is no prescribed maximum. Salary increases will generally be limited to the average increase in salary for 
employees across the Group as a whole, although the Committee has discretion to increase above this level to 
take account of individual circumstances such as increase in scope and responsibility, individual development 
and performance in role, and alignment to market level.

Performance measures None, but individual and Group performance will be considered when deciding salary levels.

Element Pension
Purpose and link to strategy To help recruit and retain high-calibre individuals reflecting their skills and experience.

Operation Individuals will be responsible for their own pension arrangements and funds will be provided by the Company to 
enable them to facilitate those arrangements.

Maximum opportunity Employer contribution of maximum of 16% of base salary.

Performance measures None.

Element Benefits
Purpose and link to strategy To provide a competitive and cost-effective benefits package appropriate to the role and location of individuals.

Operation Benefits will comprise the provision of a company car allowance, private fuel, private medical insurance for the 
individual and immediate family, life assurance and income protection insurance. Individuals will also be provided 
with the technology required to enable them to carry out their duties effectively and efficiently.

The benefits package may be adjusted by the Committee from time to time to reflect an individual’s particular 
circumstances and to align to market level.

In addition to the above, other benefits such as relocation allowances may be offered if considered appropriate 
and reasonable by the Committee.

Maximum opportunity There is no prescribed maximum as the costs of provision may fluctuate depending on individual circumstances 
and changes in provider costs, but the Committee must be satisfied that the cost is reasonable in the particular 
individual’s circumstances.

Performance measures None.
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Executive Directors continued

Variable pay

Element Annual performance related bonus scheme
Purpose and link to strategy To reward excellent financial performance and achievement of strategic, financial and operational objectives 

linked to investor expectations at the beginning of the year.

Operation Measures and targets will be reviewed and set annually by the Committee at the beginning of the financial year 
and the levels of award will be determined by the Committee after the year-end based on the performance 
against targets. Bonus awards will be paid in cash, will be non-pensionable and will be subject to malus and 
clawback, with potential awards subject to cancellation or reduction and actual awards subject to clawback over 
a period of two years from vesting if there has been a material misstatement of the Company’s financial results 
or fraud or gross misconduct on the part of the individual.

Maximum opportunity Up to 100% of base salary.

Performance measures A combination of financial and non-financial targets, such as occupancy and cost efficiency targets, corporate 
targets and a discretionary element to reward overall performance. The exact measures, weightings and 
targets will be determined by the Committee each year taking into account the Group’s key strategic priorities, 
financial and operational objectives, and the budget for the year. Details of the targets set for 2016 under 
the current approved Remuneration Policy and their relative weightings are set out in the Annual Report on 
Remuneration at page 39. Details of the targets set for 2017 under the proposed Remuneration Policy and their 
relative weightings are set out in the Annual Report on Remuneration at page 44.

Element Performance Share Plan (“PSP”)
Purpose and link to strategy To incentivise and reward outstanding performance and ensure alignment with shareholders’ interests.

Operation Awards of conditional shares or share options on an annual basis. Awards will normally vest no earlier than three 
years from grant, subject to continued employment and performance conditions. Awards will be subject to 
malus and clawback, with awards subject to cancellation or reduction and, after awards have vested, to clawback 
over a period of two years from vesting if there has been a material misstatement of the Company’s financial 
results or fraud or gross misconduct on the part of the individual.

Maximum opportunity Annual awards subject to a maximum value at grant of 150% of base salary, but the Joint Chief Executives will 
not be eligible for awards in view of their participation in the Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan.

Performance measures Targets are set by the Committee in accordance with the strategic, financial and operational objectives of the 
Group at the time the awards are granted and measured over a three-year performance period commencing 
with the beginning of the financial year in which the awards are granted. Details of the targets set for 2016 under 
the current approved Remuneration Policy and their relative weightings are set out in the Annual Report on 
Remuneration at page 39. Details of the targets set for 2017 under the proposed Remuneration Policy and their 
relative weightings are set out in the Annual Report on Remuneration at page 44.

Element Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan (“Founder LTIP”)
Purpose and link to strategy Legacy contractual arrangements forming part of the Joint Chief Executives’ service agreements established 

at IPO (November 2005) to incentivise them and to reward the delivery of exceptional returns to shareholders 
that will be discontinued at the end of the current three-year performance period ending 31 December 2018. 
The Founder LTIP is not available to any other Directors.

Operation Contractual rights to share awards operating over a three-year performance where the Company’s EPRA NAV 
growth per share (including dividends and other returns to shareholders) exceeds 33.1% over the three-year 
performance period (“Target EPRA NAV”). The current, and final, performance period is 1 January 2016 to 
31 December 2018 and awards in relation to that period will be subject to the following conditions:

 › Award shares may be satisfied by the issue of new shares and/or the use of market purchase shares.
 › Shares awarded will be subject to a two-year holding period whilst a Director remains employed as Joint 

Chief Executive, subject to their being allowed to sell sufficient shares to cover any income tax and national 
insurance obligations arising as a result of the award. This requirement will not apply in the event of a change 
of control of the Company.

 › Awards will be subject to malus and clawback, with potential awards subject to cancellation or reduction 
and actual awards subject to clawback over a period of two years from vesting if there has been a material 
misstatement of the Company’s financial results or fraud or gross misconduct on the part of the individual.

Maximum opportunity For each Joint Chief Executive, an award of shares, subject to the above conditions, with a value equal to 12.5% 
of the EPRA NAV per share growth in excess of the Target EPRA NAV per share multiplied by the number of 
shares in issue at the end of the relevant three-year performance period.

Performance measures In the relevant three-year performance period, the EPRA NAV per share will be required to have compound 
growth in excess of 10% per annum. The EPRA NAV per share growth and the Target EPRA NAV per share will be 
measured after including dividends and other returns to shareholders. The performance measure has been 
chosen to reward the Joint Chief Executives if the Group’s return to shareholders is significant in absolute terms.

3. Directors’ remuneration policy report continued

Report of the Remuneration Committee continued
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Executive Directors continued

Variable pay

Element Shareholding requirement
Purpose and link to strategy To demonstrate the commitment of individuals to the Company and to ensure alignment of their personal 

interests with those of the Company and the shareholders.

Operation Within three years of their appointment, individuals will be required to build and then maintain a shareholding in 
the Company equal in value to their pre-tax base salary. In the case of each of the Joint Chief Executives, this 
requirement will be 200% of their base salary in view of their participation in the Founder LTIP.

Non-Executive Directors

Element Fees
Purpose and link to strategy To attract and retain high-calibre individuals.

Operation Fees will be reviewed periodically. Non-Executive Directors will not participate in the annual bonus or long-term 
incentive schemes and will receive no other benefits.

Fees will be paid in cash.

Maximum opportunity There will be no individual maximum fee or maximum fee increase. Fees will be set at a level to reflect time 
commitment and responsibilities of the relevant role and by reference to surveys of fees paid to Non-Executive 
Directors of companies with comparable market capitalisation.

The Chairman will be paid an all-inclusive fee for all Board responsibilities determined by the Board on the 
recommendation of the Nomination Committee.

Non-Executive Directors will be paid a basic fee plus additional fees for chairing Board Committees or for acting 
as Senior Independent Director. These will be determined by the Board on the recommendation of the 
Nomination Committee.

Neither the Chairman nor the Non-Executive Directors will participate in the determination of their own pay. 
Overall fees will be required to remain within the limit in the Articles of Association of £750,000 in aggregate.

Performance measures None.

Notes:
The Group’s proposed Remuneration Policy set out above incorporates the following changes from the current approved Remuneration Policy, as described in the Annual 
Statement of the Chair of the Remuneration Committee:

 › The termination of the Founder LTIP at the end of the current performance period ending 31 December 2018.
 › The limitation on the increase in base salary for the Joint Chief Executives, which will not exceed the average for employees across the Group as a whole.
 › The cessation of PSP awards to either of the Joint Chief Executives.
 › The requirement for the Joint Chief Executives to hold shares to the value of 200% of their base salary whilst they remain Joint Chief Executives (rather than 100%, as at present).
 › The increase in potential annual bonus for the Joint Chief Executives under the annual performance related bonus scheme from 75% of base salary to 100% of base salary.
 › Modification to the terms of the Founder LTIP to introduce a two-year holding period for future awards of shares.
 › The inclusion of malus and clawback provisions in awards under the annual performance related bonus scheme, the PSP and the Founder LTIP.
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B. Recruitment and promotion policy
If it becomes necessary for the Company to appoint a new Executive Director, whether recruited externally or promoted from within the Company, 
the Committee will seek to align his/her remuneration package in accordance with the policy outlined below:

Element of remuneration Policy

Base salary Starting base salary will be set in accordance with the roles and responsibilities of the individual together with his/her 
relevant skills and experience, taking into account the market rates for companies of comparable size and complexity, 
the existing remuneration arrangements for other Executive Directors and the business circumstances.

Where it is appropriate to offer a lower salary initially, to reflect the individual’s experience at the date of appointment, 
the Committee may award a series of increases over time, potentially above inflation, and increases offered to the wider 
employee population, to achieve the desired salary position subject to performance and market conditions.

Pension An employer contribution in respect of the individual’s own pension arrangements will be provided at the same level as 
that provided to existing Executive Directors.

Benefits Benefits will be provided to a new appointee on the same basis as those provided to existing Executive Directors.

Where necessary, the Committee may approve the payment of reasonable relocation expenses to facilitate recruitment, 
and flexibility is retained for the Company to pay reasonable legal fees and other costs incurred by the individual in relation 
to his/her appointment.

Annual bonus The annual bonus will operate and be assessed on an ongoing basis in the same manner as outlined in the Remuneration 
Policy for the current Executive Directors, as described above and in the Annual Report on Remuneration. However, 
depending on the timing and nature of appointment, it may be necessary to set tailored performance criteria for the first 
bonus award.

Depending on the timing of the appointment of a new Executive Director, it may be inappropriate to provide a bonus for 
the initial year if there is insufficient time to assess performance for that period. In such circumstances, the amount 
relating to the months employed in the initial year may be transferred to the subsequent year so that the reward is 
provided on a fair and appropriate basis.

The maximum level of bonus potential will be 100% of base salary. However, in the year of appointment, it would be 
pro-rated to reflect the employment period during the bonus year.

Performance Share Plan A new appointee will be eligible for consideration for an award under the PSP as set out in the Remuneration Policy for the 
existing Executive Directors.

The Committee may apply different performance measures, performance periods and/or vesting periods for initial 
awards made following appointment, subject to the rules of the PSP, if it determines that the circumstances and timing 
of the recruitment merit such alteration. The rationale behind any such decision will be clearly explained in the Annual 
Report and Financial Statements of the relevant year under report. Subsequent awards would be measured against the 
same performance metrics as existing Executive Directors.

In respect of an internal promotion to the position of Executive Director, existing awards will continue over their original 
vesting period and remain subject to their original terms.

The ongoing maximum annual award value will be 150% of base salary.

Buy-out awards In order to facilitate an external recruitment, the Committee will have discretion to offer additional cash and/or share-
based elements to replace deferred or incentive pay forfeited by an Executive Director leaving a previous employer. 
When determining the amount and structure of any buy-out awards, the Committee will take into account the following:

 › the form of remuneration e.g. cash or shares;
 › the timing of expected payment/vesting; and
 › expected value taking into account the likelihood of achieving the existing performance criteria.

The Committee’s intention will be to make any replacement awards on a comparable basis to the forfeited awards and 
replacement share awards if used, will, to the extent possible, be granted using the Company’s existing share schemes. 
If necessary, however, awards may be granted outside these schemes and as permitted under the Listing Rules.

New Non-Executive Directors will be appointed by way of letters of appointment. Non-Executive Directors’ base fees, including those of the 
Chairman, will be set at a competitive market level reflecting experience, responsibility and time commitment. Fees will be reviewed annually. 
Additional fees will be payable in line with those paid to existing Non-Executive Directors for the Chairmanship of the Audit and Remuneration 
Committees, for individual membership of the Audit and Remuneration Committees and for the additional responsibilities of the Senior 
Independent Director.

The Committee will always seek to ensure that arrangements in respect of appointments to Executive Director and Non-Executive Director 
positions are in the best interests of both the Company and its shareholders and that the pay is appropriate.

Report of the Remuneration Committee continued

3. Directors’ remuneration policy report continued
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It is theCompany’s policy that Executive Directors should have rolling contracts providingforamaximumof 12months’ notice.

MorganJones (Joint Chief Executive) 22November 2005 Not less than 12months

IanWatson (Joint Chief Executive) 22November 2005 Not less than 12months

Richard Lowes (Finance Director) 18October 2010 Not less than 12months

Melvyn Egglenton Not less than3months

David Rough 1October 2015 Not less than3months

RebeccaWorthington Not less than3months

Margaret Young 1October 2015 Not less than3months

re-electionat theforthcomingAnnualGeneralMeeting.

TheJoint Chief Executives’service agreements areeachterminable by either party giving not less than 12months’ notice.

If theCompany gives noticetothe relevant Executive (exceptwheretermination is forcause),theCompanymust makea payment in lieuof notice

preceding 12-monthperiod, including any contractual bonus payment made inthat period, net of tax. Payment underthe Founder LTIP is dealt

in lieuthereof.

TheCompany also hasthe right toterminateeachof theJoint Chief Executives’service agreements summarilywithout noticeor payment in lieuof
noticeformaterial breachby the Executiveof the relevant agreement (that is “forcause”,e.g.grossmisconduct).

Richard Lowes’service agreement is terminable by either party giving not less than 12months’ notice.Once notice has beengivenby either party,
theCompanymay, in its absolutediscretion,terminate his employment at any timeduringthe applicable notice period bymaking a payment in lieu

including annual bonus).TheCompany reservesthe right to require himtotakeany outstanding holiday during any notice periodortomake
payment in lieuthereof.

TheCompanymay terminate Richard Lowes’employment by giving less than 12months’ notice andmay requirethat hemitigates his losses by
seeking alternativeemployment.TheCompany shall assess hismitigationprospects indeterminingtheamount of any payment in lieuof notice.

TheCompany also hasthe right toterminate Richard Lowes’service agreement summarilywithout noticeorpayment in lieuof noticeforcause.

Notice periods for new Executive Directorswill be limitedto 12months.

Once notice has beengivenby either party,theCompanywill reservethe right toterminatethe Executive Director’s employment at any timeduring
the applicable notice period bymaking a payment in lieuof the remaining periodof notice.Consistentwithbest practice, any payment in lieuof

alternativeemployment,andwillassessthe ExecutiveDirector’smitigationprospects indeterminingtheamountof any payment in lieuof notice.

Annual Report andAccounts 2016
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C.Servicecontracts

Notice period by either
Executive Directors Company or Director

Notice period by either
Non-Executive Directors Company or Director

E�ective date of contract

E�ective date of engagement

TheNon-Executive Directors eachhavespeci�ctermsof engagement anddo not haveservice contractswiththeCompany.They do not
participate intheannual bonus schemeor long-term incentive schemesandthey do not receive any other bene�ts.

9June 2014

9June 2014

Inaccordancewiththe UKCorporateGovernanceCode,all the Directors, both Executive and Non-Executive,will retire ando�erthemselves for

of the Executive’s basesalary plus anamount equaltothecost totheCompany of providing allothercontractual bene�tsoverthe immediately

withbelow.TheCompany reservesthe right to requirethe Executivetotake any outstanding holiday during any notice periodortomake payment

of the remaining periodof notice consistingof his basesalary andthecost totheCompany of providing allothercontractual bene�ts underhis
service agreement forthe remaining periodof notice, net of tax (but excluding any otherentitlementsorbene�ts referableto his employment,

noticewill consist solely of the Executive Director’s basesalary andthecost totheCompany of providing allothercontractual bene�ts under his/
herservice agreement forthe remaining periodof notice, net of tax, butwill exclude annual bonus andotherentitlementsorbene�ts referableto
his/heremployment.

TheCompanywillalso reservethe right togive lessthan 12months’noticeand requirethe ExecutiveDirectortomitigatehis/her losses by seeking

1

1. Melvyn Egglentonentered into a new letterof engagementwithe�ect from23August 2016following his appointment asChairmanof theCompany.

D.Lossofo�ce

Existing Executive Directors

New Executive Directors
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Underthe Founder LTIP, if eitherof theJoint Chief Executives is agood leaver (e.g.ondeathorfor ill health,disability, retirement or redundancy and
includingterminationby theCompany in breachof contract orunfairdismissal), awards are still subj ect to performance but the performance period
is shortenedtothedateof cessationof employment.Awards areforfeitedwherecessationof employment is foranother reason,suchas
terminationforcause.

The PSPrules incorporatethefollowing leaver provisions:

› Forgood leavers (e.g.ondeathorfor ill health,disability, retirement or redundancy) priortotheendof the relevant performance period,awards
willvest overthe numberof shares reasonably determined by theCommitteetaking account of factors that theCommittee reasonably
considers relevant (including, but not limitedto,the proportionof the performance periodwhichhaselapsedandtheextent towhichany

› Forgood leavers aftertheendof the performance period but beforethevestingdateof anaward (ora proportionof the award), awardswillvest
overthe numberof shares reasonably determined by theCommittee, but theonly factortheCommitteemay take into account inthat
determination is the proportionof thevesting periodwhichhaselapsed.

› Wheredeparture is foranother reason,suchas resignationorterminationforcause, unvestedawards aregenerally forfeited althoughthe
Committee hasdiscretionto permit vesting uptoa level not exceedingthegood leaver levelas determinedabove.

› Vestingoccursonthedateof theCommittee’s determinationonearly vesting (as described above), andexerciseof options (if appropriate)

›

andthe Non-Executive Directorwill beentitledto a payment of aquarterof theannualfee;
› If theNon-Executive Director resignsvoluntarily but solely becauseof havinga reasonableobj ectionto,or reasonabledisagreementwith,a Board

Directorwill beentitledtoaseverance payment equivalent toaquarterof theannualfeeor, if less,thetotalamount of feesthatwould have been

initialappointment orany extensionthereof.

whichthe policywould apply.

Thefollowingassumptions have beenmade inpreparingthecharts:

› Basesalary is basedonthe 2017annualsalarywith pension, performance related bonus andawards underthe PSPbasedonthe percentages
laidout inthe Future PolicyTable. Noaccount has beentakenof the Founder LTIPbecause nosuchawardswillvest in 2017.

›

This reportwas approved by the Boardof Directors on 19March2017andsignedon its behalf by:

Annual Report andAccounts 2016

› Target performance is basedontheGroupachievingthemiddleof the rangeof performancemeasures relevant to annualand long-termbonus.

Founder LTIP

PerformanceShare Plan

Non-Executive Directors

Chairof the RemunerationCommittee

performance conditions have been or would have been satis�ed if pro-rated to the date of cessation of employment).

is permitted for a period determined by the Committee, but not exceeding 12 months from the date of cessation of employment.

Non-Executive Directors will not receive compensation for loss of o�ce except in the following circumstances:

When an o�erfor the entire issued share capital of the Company becomes wholly unconditional (unless requested to continue in o�ce by the
Board), except where an o�er is wholly unconditionalfrom the outset, in which case the appointment will terminate at the end of the o�er period

decision on a material matter of policy or a material commercial matter a�ecting the Company orthe Group. Inthis case,the Non-Executive

paid had the Non-Executive Director continued in o�ce untilthe date of expiry of the Non-Executive Director’s appointment,whether of the

The following chart shows an illustration of the application of the proposed Remuneration Policy for the Executive Directors in the �rst year to

Bene�ts have been assumed at 2016 levels.

E.Illustrationofapplicationof remunerationpolicy

MargaretYoung
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Report of the RemunerationCommittee continued

3. Directors’ remuneration policy report continued
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The Directors present their Annual Report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016. 
This report on pages 53 to 57 together with the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 23 and the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 26 to 28 form 
the Management report as required by the Financial Conduct Authority’s (“FCA”) Disclosure and Transparency Rule 4.1.5R. Other information that is 
relevant to the Directors’ Report, and which is incorporated by reference into this report, can be located as follows:

Information Section in Annual Report Page numbers

Financial instruments and risk management Note to the financial statements 101 to 104
Future developments Joint Chief Executives’ Statement 14 and 15
Directors in office during the year Corporate governance framework 24 and 25
Directors’ interest in shares Annual Report on Remuneration 41
Employee involvement Corporate and Social Responsibility 19 to 21

The Company has chosen, in accordance with Section 414 C (1) of the Companies Act 2006 and as noted in this Directors’ Report, to include certain 
matters in its Strategic Report that would otherwise be required to be disclosed in the Directors’ Report. The Strategic Report can be found on 
pages 1 to 23.

Principal activities
The Company is the parent company of a group whose principal activities comprise property investment, development, management and 
associated business, focusing on industrial property investments in Continental Europe and the UK, although it will also seek to profit from 
opportunistic acquisitions in other property sectors both in the UK and abroad.

The subsidiary undertakings of the Group in the year are listed in note 19 to the financial statements.

Business review
The Group’s focus is on UK and Continental European industrial investments which in the opinion of the Board have high income yields compared to 
relatively low financing costs. To date these investments have been in the UK, Belgium, France, Germany and the Netherlands. A smaller part of the 
Group’s activity is dedicated to opportunistic property investment opportunities which to date have included land and residential investments. 
More detailed information about the Group’s business, activities and financial performance is incorporated into this report by reference and can be 
found in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 23.

There are no further matters to report under Section 417 of the Companies Act 2006.

Results
The results for the year ended 31 December 2016 are shown in the income statement on page 65 of the financial statements. The pre-tax profit for 
the year ended 31 December 2016 was £119.9 million (2015: £171.4 million) and the net assets are shown in the balance sheet as £924.2 million 
(2015: £806.7 million). The EPRA NAV per share was 129p (2015: 111p). In the Directors’ view the Normalised Income Profit, Normalised Total Profit 
and EPRA NAV are the most appropriate performance measures for the Group.

Key performance indicators
The Directors consider the following to be key performance indicators (“KPIs”), as disclosed in the Strategic Report:

Key performance indicator 2016 2015

Normalised Income Profit £61.1m £47.2m
Normalised Total Profit £66.0m £63.2m
IFRS Net asset value (“NAV”) per share 124p 105p
EPRA NAV (per share) 129p 111p
Annualised rental income £131.4m £82.6m
Net debt to value 40.9% 41.2%
Dividend (per share) 5.9p 5.25p
Yield 7.6% 7.8%
Occupancy (area) 91.2% 88%

Dividend
For the year ended 31 December 2016, an interim dividend of 2.2p per share was paid on 18 November 2016 (2015: 2.1p), of which 1.9p per share 
(2015: 1.5p) was attributable to a REIT Property Income Distribution (“PID”) in respect of the Group’s tax exempt property rental business. The 
second dividend of 3.7p per share will be payable on 18 May 2017 (2015: 3.15p) to shareholders on the register on 20 April 2017 of which 2.1p per 
share (2015: 1.35p) will be attributable to a PID.

The total dividend payable in relation to the 2016 results will be £43.9 million (2015: £38.6 million).

Directors’ report
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Post balance sheet events
A second dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 of 3.7p per share will be payable on 18 May 2017 to shareholders on the register 
on 21 April 2017. Based on the number of shares in issue at 31 December 2016 this will result in a distribution of £27.5 million.

On 22 February 2017 the Board made an offer for the entire issued ordinary share capital of Industrial Multi Property Trust PLC (“IMPT”). Under the 
terms of the offer, IMPT shareholders will receive 300p in cash for each IMPT share held which values the entire issued ordinary share capital of IMPT 
at £25.2 million. Hansteen has since acquired, as disclosed on 17 March 2017, 21.71% of IMPT’s share capital and at the first close for the offer on 
15 March 2017 had received valid acceptances of 28.44%, which in aggregate represent 50.15% of IMPT’s share capital.

As stated in the Chairman’s Review, we announced that contracts have been exchanged on terms for the sale of Hansteen’s German and Dutch 
portfolios. More details are contained in the RNS announcement and a circular will be posted to shareholders shortly.

Financial instruments and risk management
The Board agrees and reviews policies and financial instruments for risk management. Further information on financial instruments is contained 
in note 36 to the financial statements.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties to which the Group is exposed are detailed in the Strategic Report on pages 22 and 23.

Going concern and future developments
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position as well as the financial 
position of the Group, its cash flows, liquidity position and the borrowing facilities are described in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 23. In addition, 
note 36 to the financial statements includes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial risk management 
objectives; details of its financial instruments and hedging activities; and its exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s debt maturity profile for its long-term funding is detailed in the Strategic Report on page 18. None of the Group’s significant current 
bank loan facilities are due to expire within the next 12 months. As part of its risk management process the Group has considered its forecast cash 
flows and forecast covenant compliance taking into account:

 › the impact on the various loan covenants of reductions in the property valuations, decline in rental income and increase in interest rates; and
 › the impact of potential events arising from adverse movements in general economic conditions on the Group’s operating cash flow generation, 

including tenancy failures and increased vacancies.

These forecasts show that the Group has sufficient headroom and available finance to manage its business risks successfully. Based on this 
assessment, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern 
basis in preparing the Annual Report and Accounts.

Long-term Viability Statement
In accordance with provision C2.2 of the 2014 revision of the Code, and in light of the Group’s current position and the principal risks detailed on 
pages 22 and 23, the Directors have assessed the Group’s prospects and viability. The Directors’ assessment is over a three-year period to 
December 2019 in line with the typical lease lengths of its tenants. The review is based on a detailed three-year forecast, taking into account 
financial and operating positions, forecast cash flows, debt maturity and renewal prospects, forecast covenant compliance and REIT compliance 
along with current and available mitigating actions. 

The financial model has been stress tested for severe but plausible scenarios, both individually and in aggregate, specifically to understand the 
impact of reductions in property valuations, declines in rental income and therefore operating profit and increases in interest rates along with 
current and available mitigating actions. The stress tests enable the Group to model the impact of a variety of external and internal events that 
could threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity and allow the Board to assess the effectiveness of any management 
actions that may be required to mitigate the impacts of the events.

The nature of the Group’s business as the owner and asset manager of a diverse high-yielding portfolio of industrial property principally located in 
three different countries let to a wide variety of tenants reduces the impact of adverse changes in the general economic environment or market 
conditions in any one sector or country on the overall Group.

The Group’s property portfolio comprises predominantly light industrial units. These are the most simple, flexible and economical of all 
commercial property types and have shown themselves to be extraordinarily adaptable to changing working practices and new occupational 
trends. Furthermore, in the main the properties are valued at substantially below replacement cost and let at rents below the levels necessary 
to justify new builds. Taken together these factors operate to limit the supply of new stock and help to maintain the demand for the existing stock.

Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities 
as they fall due over the three-year period of their detailed assessment.

Directors’ report continued
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Share capital
Details of the issued share capital, together with details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital during the year, are shown in 
note 30 to the financial statements. The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. Each share carries the right 
to one vote at general meetings of the Company.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general provisions of the 
Articles of Association and prevailing legislation. The Directors are not aware of any agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that 
may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or on voting rights.

Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

No person has any special rights of control over the Company’s share capital and all issued shares are fully paid.

Own shares
The existing authority for the Company to purchase its own shares, which expires at the end of this year’s AGM, was given at the AGM held on 
6 June 2016 and permitted the Company to purchase, in the market, 74,572,790 of its own shares.

The Company has in previous years purchased its own shares into Treasury to meet the Company’s future obligations to participants under the 
Company’s Performance Share Plan 2012 (“PSP”). On 8 March 2016 the Company established the Hansteen Employee Benefit Trust (the “HEBT”) 
to be used, in addition to Treasury shares, to satisfy awards made to employees under its employee share option schemes including the PSP and 
the Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan (“Founder LTIP”).

On 15 March 2016, the Company gifted the HEBT £2,428,049.40 which was immediately used to meet the par value subscription cost of 24,280,494 
ordinary shares in the Company issued by the Company to the participants in the Founder LTIP. On 18 March 2016, the Company gifted the HEBT a 
further £635,671. This sum was immediately used to purchase 600,000 ordinary shares in the Company which will be used to satisfy awards under 
the Company’s share plans, including the PSP and the LTIP.

On 6 April 2016, the Company transferred from treasury to participants in the PSP, 12,768 ordinary shares in the Company for nil consideration 
in order to satisfy the exercise of nil-cost call rights by participants under the PSP.

On 14 June 2016, the Company transferred from treasury to participants in the PSP, 102,959 ordinary shares in the Company for nil consideration 
in order to satisfy the exercise of nil-cost call rights by participants under the PSP.

On 6 September 2016, the Company transferred from treasury to participants in the PSP, 55,389 ordinary shares in the Company for nil 
consideration in order to satisfy the exercise of nil-cost call rights by participants under the PSP.

As at 31 December 2016, there remain own shares of 1,975,225 of which 1,375,225 are held in treasury and 600,000 are held in the HEBT. This represents 
0.26% of the issued ordinary shares.

Directors
The Directors who served throughout the year are detailed on pages 24 and 25. Humphrey Price retired as a Director at the Annual General Meeting 
on 6 June 2016 and James Hambro retired as a Director on 23 August 2016. The appointment and replacement of Directors by the Company is 
governed by its Articles of Association, the Companies Acts and related legislation. The Articles themselves may be amended by special resolution 
of the shareholders.

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all the current serving Directors will retire and offer themselves for re-election at the 
forthcoming 2017 Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors had any interests in any material contract during the year relating to the business of the Group.

Subject to the Company’s Memorandum of Association, the Articles, any legislation and any directions given by special resolution, the business 
of the Company will be managed by the Directors, who may exercise all the powers of the Company, whether relating to the management of the 
business of the Company or not. In particular, the Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge 
any of its undertakings, property, assets and uncalled capital and to issue debentures and other securities and give security for any debt, liability or 
obligation of the Company to any third party.

Political donations
No political donations were made by the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.

Directors’ indemnities
The Company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors which were made during the year and remain in 
force at the date of this report.
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Substantial interests
As at 1 March 2017, the Company had been notified, in accordance with the UK Listing Authority’s Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules, 
that the following shareholders held, or were beneficially interested in, 3% or more of the voting rights in the Company’s issued share capital:

No. of ordinary 
shares held Percentage

Aberdeen Asset Management 40,814,875 5.48
Aberforth Partners 39,217,405 5.27
M & G Investment Management 33,415,235 4.49
Jupiter Asset Management 30,000,000 4.03
Rathbone Investment Management 29,970,222 4.03
Legal & General Investment Management 29,626,832 3.98
Standard Life Investments 27,552,255 3.70
Baillie Gifford & Co 26,999,196 3.63
Norges Bank Investment Management 25,228,233 3.39

282,824,253 38.0

Payment policy
The Group’s policy is to settle all agreed liabilities within the terms established with suppliers. At 31 December 2016 there are 15 days’ purchases 
outstanding (2015: 15 days) in respect of the Company’s trade creditors.

Corporate and social responsibility
Greenhouse gas emissions
It is Hansteen’s policy to comply with environmental legislation and relevant codes of practice. In line with recent guidance issued by DEFRA 
(the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs), we set out below the required information for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Quantification and reporting methodology
We have followed the 2013 UK Government environmental reporting guidance. DEFRA greenhouse gas conversion factors have been used for the 
purposes of this report.

We have used the operational control approach, which therefore only includes information regarding those emissions for which we have direct 
control and influence on. We have therefore included carbon emissions derived from gas, electricity, heating oil and district heating consumptions 
attributable to Hansteen. Energy consumption is assessed as attributable to Hansteen if it is used for the benefit of vacant property space or for 
common parts or communal facilities at properties which are held directly or managed by Hansteen.

Operational scopes
We have measured our Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions as detailed below.

Base year
We have used 2013 as our base year as it is the first year for which we have reliable data and it was typical in respect of our operations.

Intensity measurement
We have chosen the metric gross global Scope 1 and 2 emissions in tonnes of CO2e per vacant m2, per m2 and per £m revenue as these are 
common metrics for our industry sector.

2016

2016  
(tonnes CO2e)

Intensity 
measurement 
tonnes CO2e/

vacant m2

Intensity 
measurement 
tonnes CO2e/

total m2

Intensity 
measurement 

tonnes 
CO2e/£m 

revenue

Specific 
exclusions,  

% this 
represents  

for relevant 
scope

Scope 1 – direct emissions from owned/controlled operations – – – – None
Scope 2 – indirect emissions from the use of purchased electricity and heating 

under our operational control:
 Belgium 156 0.0501 0.0052 0.0012 None
 France – – – – None
 Germany 1,687 0.0122 0.0011 0.0130 None
 Netherlands 273 0.0035 0.0004 0.0021 None
 UK 454 0.0037 0.0003 0.0035 None

Total gross emissions 2,570
Carbon offsets –
Green tariff –

Total annual net emissions 2,570

Directors’ report continued
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– – – – None

Scope 2– indirect emissions fromthe useof purchasedelectricity and heating
underouroperationalcontrol:

Belgium 312 0.0096 0.0025 None

France – – – – None

Germany 0.0076 0.0008 0.0103 None

Netherlands 205 0.0017 0.0003 0.0016 None

UK 292 0.0063 0.0006 0.0023 None

Associates 0.0030 0.0032 None

Totalgross emissions 2,520

–

–

Total annual net emissions 2,520

A target had beenset to reduceourgross globalScope 1and 2emissions intonnesof CO ona like-for-like basis by 10%from2015to 2020

reductionyear-on-yeargoingforward (subj ect to acquisitions anddisposals).Weachieveda like-for-like reductionof 2%during 2016.

Theaverage numberof employeesemployed by theCompany ineachweekduringtheyearended31December 2016did not exceed 250.

Company’s auditor is unaware,andeachDirector hastakenall the stepsthat heorsheought to havetakenas a Director inordertomake himself
awareof any relevant audit informationandtoestablishthat theCompany’s auditor is awareof that information.

AnnualGeneralMeeting.

Approved by the Boardof Directors andsignedonbehalf of the Board.
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2015

Intensity exclusions,
Intensity Intensity measurement %this

measurement measurement tonnes represents
2015 tonnes CO tonnes CO CO for relevant

(tonnes CO e) vacant m totalm revenue scope
2 2 2

2 2

2

Speci�c

e/ e/ e/£m

Scope 1– direct emissions fromowned/controlledoperations

0.0049

1,304

407 0.0004

Carbono�sets

Greentari�

e/m
(2%perannum).Changes inthe portfoliomakeupcausedamoresigni�cant reductionduring 2015, howeverweare continuingtotarget a 2%

Sofaras the Directors are aware,there is no relevant audit information (as de�ned by Section418of theCompaniesAct 2006)ofwhichthe

This con�rmation is givenandshould be interpreted inaccordancewiththe provisionsof s418of theCompaniesAct 2006.

Deloitte LLPhaveexpressedtheirwillingnesstocontinue ino�ceas auditoranda resolutionto reappoint themwill be proposedat theforthcoming

Targets

Employees

Auditor

Company Secretary

2

2

TeresaFurmston

19March2017
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requires that Directors:

› properly select and apply accounting policies;

› present information, including accounting policies, in a mannerthat provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;

›

› make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence fortaking reasonable steps

for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

j urisdictions.

›

taken as a whole;

› the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and the

undertakings included inthe consolidationtaken as a whole,togetherwith a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face; and

› the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for

shareholders to assess the Company’s performance, business model and strategy.

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors and is signed on its behalf by:

Annual Report and Accounts 2016

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the �nancial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare �nancial statements for each�nancialyear. Underthat law the Directors are required to prepare
the Group�nancial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as adopted by the European Union and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have also chosen to prepare the parent company �nancial statements under IFRSs as adopted by the EU. Under
company law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satis�ed that they give a true and fairview of the state of a�airs of the
Company and of the pro�t or loss of the Company forthat period. In preparing these �nancial statements, International Accounting Standard 1

provide additional disclosures when compliance with the speci�c requirements in IFRSs are insu�cient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s �nancial position and �nancial performance; and

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are su�cient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the �nancial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the �nancial statements

The Directors are responsible forthe maintenance and integrity of the corporate and �nancial information included on the Company’s website.
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of �nancial statements may di�erfrom legislation in other

We con�rm that to the best of our knowledge:

the �nancial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, give a
true and fairview of the assets, liabilities, �nancial position and pro�t or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation

Responsibilitystatement

IanWatsonandMorganJones

Joint Chief Executives
19 March 2017

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
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to the members of Hansteen Holdings PLC

Independent Auditor’s report

Opinion on financial statements of Hansteen Holdings PLC
In our opinion:

 › the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2016 
and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended;

 › the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) 
as adopted by the European Union;

 › the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and 
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

 › the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group 
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The financial statements that we have audited comprise:

 › the Consolidated Income Statement;
 › the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income;
 › the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets;
 › the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements;
 › the Group and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity; and
 › the related notes 1 to 36.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and, 
as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued by the IASB
As explained in note 2 to the Group financial statements, in addition to complying with its legal obligation to apply IFRSs as adopted by the European 
Union, the Group has also applied IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

In our opinion the Group financial statements comply with IFRSs as issued by the IASB. 

Going concern and the Directors’ assessment of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity of 
the Group
As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the Directors’ statement regarding the appropriateness of the going concern basis of accounting 
contained within note 1 to the financial statements and the Directors’ statement on the longer-term viability of the Group contained within the 
Directors’ report on page 54.

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation to:

 › the Directors’ confirmation on page 22 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including those 
that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity;

 › the disclosures on pages 22 and 23 that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated;
 › the Directors’ statement in note 3 to the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of 

accounting in preparing them and their identification of any material uncertainties to the Group’s ability to continue to do so over a period of at 
least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements; and

 › the Directors’ explanation on page 54 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period they have done so and why 
they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to 
continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing 
attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We confirm that we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in respect of these matters.

We agreed with the Directors’ adoption of the going concern basis of accounting and we did not identify any such material uncertainties. 
However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the Group’s ability to continue 
as a going concern.

Independence
We are required to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards for Auditors and confirm that we are independent of the Group 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those standards.

We confirm that we are independent of the Group and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those standards. 
We also confirm we have not provided any of the prohibited non-audit services referred to in those standards.
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IndependentAuditor’s report continued

Ourassessmentof risksofmaterialmisstatement

Theassessed risks of materialmisstatement described below arethosethat hadthegreatest e�ect onouraudit strategy,the allocationof
resources intheaudit anddirectingthee�orts of theengagement team.

At 31December 2016,theGroupheldwholly-owned investment property valued at £1,718million.

Investment properties are held at fairvalueonthe balancesheet. Duringtheyear, a net valuationgainof £43.4million
was recorded (excluding acquisitions,disposals andforeignexchangegain).Thefairvalues are calculated by third party
valuationexperts using information,suchas lease agreements andtenancy data, inadditionto professionalj udgement
concerning marketing conditions andfactors impacting individual properties.

Thevaluationprocess is inherentlyj udgemental,which iswhyweconsiderthis to bea key riskof materialmisstatement.
In particular, changes inassumptions suchasthetimea propertywill remainvacantwhenatenant leaves,the rent free
period requiredto attract a new tenant, andthe levelof expenditure requiredto maintainthe property can leadto
signi�cant movements inthevalueof the property, as canchanges inthe underlying market conditions.

Seealso critical accountingj udgements in note 4,andthe investment property in note 18of the�nancial statements
andtheAudit Committee’s report onpages 29to32.

Forall signi�cantj urisdictions,we met andchallengedtheexternalvaluerswithourownspecialist valuationexpert, and
assessedwhethertheywere acting independently, includingconsiderationof any otherservices providedtothe Group
andthe basis uponwhichtheirfees arecalculated.This included reviewingthetermsof theirengagement.

Wetestedthetenancy schedules for integrity by agreeing asampleof entries to lease agreements, andagreeing a
sampleof leaseagreements tothetenancy scheduletotest forcompleteness. Inaddition,wevisited aselectionof
propertieswith bothoccupied andvacant units inGermany andthe UKtoobtainassurancesurroundingtheexistence
of assets inthe portfolio.

Audit analyticswere appliedto comparethe auditedtenancy schedulewiththedata providedtothevaluers thereby
testingthe integrity of the underlyingdata used by thevaluers intheirvaluations.Thiswas supported by review of the
reconciliationthat management had performedtodeterminewhetherthedata used by thevaluers matchedthe
tenancy schedules maintained by the Group.

Wefurtheremployedaudit analytics to identify propertieswhichexhibitedvaluationmovements andyieldsoutsideof
ourpredeterminedthresholds.Thesewerediscussed indetailwiththeexternalvaluers and key explanations provided
werecorroboratedto underlying leaseorcost data. Inaddition,wetestedasampleof other properties todetermine
whetherthevaluationswere appropriately performed,andconsideredthevalue realisedonproperty disposals
comparedto previousvaluationsto assess historicalvaluation reliability.

Wecheckedthat thevaluation reports have been recordedcorrectly inthe�nancial statements andappropriate
disclosures have beenmade.

Weconcludedthat the assumptions used inthevaluationsweresupportable in light of available andcomparable
market evidence.

Investment propertyvaluation

Riskdescription

Howthescopeof our

audit respondedto

Key observations

the risk
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Signifcant non-recurringtransactions

Riskdescription

Howthescopeof our

audit respondedto

the risk

Key observations

Groupmateriality

Basis fordeterminingmateriality

Rationale forthe benchmarkapplied

The natureof theGroup’s operationsgive riseto non-recurringtransactionswhichcan result insigni�cant gains
and losses.

Inthecurrent year,theGroupcompletedthe acquisitionandconsolidationof the remainingAshtenne Industrial Fund
General Partnershares andthe remaining units intheAshtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust.

Thesetransactions are, by their nature,one-o� andare complex.There aremanagementj udgements inherent intheir
measurement,suchas incalculatingthevalueof thetransactionor its resultinggainor loss,andtheir presentation inthe
�nancial statements has amaterial impact onthe results fortheyear.

Seealsosigni�cant accounting policies in note 3and business combinations in note 15andtheAudit Committee’s
report onpages 29to 32.

Weevaluatedthe presentationof signi�cant non-recurringtransactions intheAnnual Report.Throughout ouraudit
workwewerealert to signi�cant non-recurringtransactions, inadditiontocompleting a review of legalcorrespondence
and Boardmeetingminutes,to assesswhetherthe list of thesetransactionsweconsideredwascomplete.

Speci�cally in relationtotheAshtenne Industrial Fundtransaction,we have performedthefollowing procedures:

we haveauditedthe underlying�guresthat arose as part of thetransaction;
we haveassessedwhethertheaccountingtreatment proposed, includingthetransferof controltotheGroupand
full consolidationas a subsidiary, has beenappropriately recorded inthe accounts;
we haveassessedthedisclosures intheAnnual Report forconsistencywith IFRS3 .

Weconcludedthat signi�cant non-recurringtransactionsduringtheyearwere properly accountedforanddisclosed.
Wefound nomaterial issues as a result of our procedures.

Thesematterswere addressed inthecontext of ouraudit of the�nancial statements as awhole, and informingouropinionthereon,andwedo not
provide aseparateopiniononthesematters.

Inthe prioryearthethree-year Founder LTIPvestedforthe�rst timeandwe identi�edthecalculationand presentationof this as a key risk,dueto
thesizeof the award. Forthecurrent year, no Founder LTIPawardsvestedsincethecurrent three-year performance periodcommencedon
1January 2016,andthereforethis has no longer been identi�ed as a key risk.

Wede�nemateriality as themagnitudeof misstatement inthe�nancial statements that makes it probablethat theeconomicdecisionsof a
reasonably knowledgeable personwould bechangedor in�uenced.Weusemateriality both in planningthescopeof ourauditworkand inevaluating
the results of ourwork.

Basedonourprofessionalj udgement,wedeterminedmateriality forthe�nancial statements as awhole as follows:

£14million (2015: £10.4million)

1.5%net assets.

WedeterminedGroupmateriality using net assetsonthe basis that theGroup is anasset-intensive
business,withshareholdervalue beingdrivenby net asset valuemovements.Themost signi�cant
balances inthe�nancial statements are investment property andassociated borrowings.

Inadditionto net assets,weconsider EPRA earnings pershareto beacritical�nancial performance
measurefortheGrouponthe basis that it is a keymetric to analysts and investors. EPRA earnings per
share is basedontheGroup’s EPRAearningswhich is reconciledto IFRS pro�t aftertax attributableto
equity holders of the parent in note 14.Weapplied a lowerthresholdof £2.7million,which represents 5%
of EPRAearnings,fortesting all balances impacting EPRAearnings.

Business Combinations

Ourapplicationofmateriality
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IndependentAuditor’s report continued

WeagreedwiththeAudit Committeethatwewould report totheCommitteeallaudit di�erences inexcessof £700,000 (2015:£200,000),aswellas
di�erencesbelowthat thresholdthat, inourview,warranted reportingonqualitativegrounds.Wealso report totheAudit Committeeondisclosure
mattersthatwe identi�edwhenassessingtheoverall presentationof the�nancialstatements.Ourthreshold usedtocalculatethiswas5% (2015:2%)
andthe increase intheyearwastoalignwithmarket practice.

Ourauditwas scoped by obtaining anunderstandingof theGroupand its environment, includingGroup-widecontrols, andassessingthe risksof
materialmisstatement.

As inthe prioryear,ourGroupaudit scopefocused primarily ontheauditwork inthe United Kingdom,Germany andthe Netherlands,wherefull
auditswere carriedout basedonourassessment of the identi�ed risksof materialmisstatement identi�ed above.TheGroupaudit team
performedtheaudits of thewholly ownedentities inthe United KingdomandGermany,andcomponent auditors performedtheaudits, basedon
instructions fromtheGroupaudit team,of thewholly ownedentities inthe Netherlands. Ina changefromthe prioryear,following its consolidation,
we have performedtheaudit of the UK-basedAshtenne Industrial Fund (“AIF”) ratherthan relying uponcomponent auditors. Inaddition,the
Groupteamalsotestedtheconsolidationprocess andcarriedout analytical proceduresto con�rmourconclusionthat therewere nosigni�cant
risks of materialmisstatement of theaggregated�nancial informationof the remaining components not subj ect to audit oraudit of speci�ed
account balances.

Thecomponents subj ect to afull audit represent the principal business units of theGroupandaccount for98% (2015:97%)of theGroup’s revenue,
99% (2015:98%)of theGroup’s pro�t beforetax and99% (2015:98%)of theGroup’s net assets.Ourauditworkwasexecuted at levels of materiality
applicabletoeachcomponent and ranged between£7millionto £9.1million (2015: £4.2millionto £7.8million).

TheGroupaudit teamcontinuedtofollow a programmeof plannedvisits that has beendesignedsothat eithertheSeniorStatutoryAuditoror
anotherseniormemberof theGroupaudit teamvisits eachof theGroup’s principal business units every year, includingtheoverseas components
auditeddirectly by theGroupaudit team. Intheyearended31December 2016,wevisitedoperations inGermany,the Netherlands andthe UK.

Anoverviewofthescopeofouraudit

NAV

Groupmateriality

Component materiality range

Audit committee reporting threshold

£924.2m

£14m

£7-9.1m

£0.7m

EPRA Earnings

Groupmateriality

Component materiality range

Audit committee reporting threshold

£52.6m

£2.7m

£1.385

-1.8m

£0.7m
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OpiniononothermattersprescribedbytheCompaniesAct2006

Mattersonwhichwearerequiredtoreportbyexception

Inouropinion, basedontheworkundertaken inthecourseof theaudit:

the part of the Directors’ RemunerationReport to beaudited has beenproperly prepared inaccordancewiththeCompaniesAct 2006;
the informationgiven intheStrategic Report andthe Directors’ Report forthe�nancialyearforwhichthe�nancial statements are prepared
is consistentwiththe�nancial statements; and
theStrategic Report andthe Directors’ Report have beenprepared inaccordancewithapplicable legal requirements.

Inthe light of the knowledgeand understandingof theCompany and its environment obtained inthecourseof theaudit,we have not identi�ed
anymaterialmisstatements intheStrategic Report andthe Directors’ Report.

UndertheCompaniesAct 2006weare requiredto report toyou if, inouropinion:

we have not received all the informationandexplanationswe require forouraudit;or
adequate accounting records have not beenkept by the parent company,or returns adequateforouraudit have not been receivedfrom
branches not visited by us;or
the parent company�nancial statements are not inagreementwiththeaccounting records and returns.

We have nothingto report in respect of thesematters.

UndertheCompaniesAct 2006weare also requiredto report if inouropinioncertaindisclosuresof Directors’ remunerationhave not beenmade
orthe part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to beaudited is not inagreementwiththeaccounting records and returns.

We have nothingto report arisingfromthesematters.

Underthe Listing Rulesweare also requiredto review part of theCorporateGovernanceStatement relatingtotheCompany’s compliancewith
certain provisionsof the UKCorporateGovernanceCode.

We have nothingto report arisingfromour review.

Under InternationalStandardsonAuditing (UKand Ireland),we are requiredto report toyou if, inouropinion, information intheAnnual Report is:

materially inconsistentwiththe information intheaudited�nancial statements;or
apparently materially incorrect basedon,ormaterially inconsistentwith,our knowledgeof theGroupacquired inthecourseof performing
ouraudit;or
otherwisemisleading.

Revenue Pro�t beforetax Net assets

Adequacy of explanations receivedandaccounting records

Directors’ remuneration

CorporateGovernanceStatement

Ourduty to readother information intheAnnual Report

Full audit scope Full audit scope Full audit scope

Review at group level Review at group level Review at group level

1% 1%2%

98% 99% 99%
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In particular,weare requiredtoconsiderwhetherwe have identi�ed any inconsistencies betweenour knowledgeacquiredduringthe audit andthe
Directors’statement that they considertheAnnual Report is fair, balancedand understandable andwhethertheAnnual Report appropriately
disclosesthosematters thatwecommunicatedtotheAudit Committeewhichweconsidershould have beendisclosed.

Wecon�rmthatwe have not identi�ed any such inconsistencies ormisleadingstatements.

Asexplainedmorefully inthe Directors’ Responsibilities Statement,the Directors are responsible forthe preparationof the�nancial statements
andfor beingsatis�edthat they give atrueandfairview.Our responsibility is to audit andexpress anopiniononthe�nancial statements in
accordancewithapplicable law and InternationalStandardsonAuditing (UKand Ireland).Wealso complywith InternationalStandardonQuality
Control 1(UKand Ireland).Ouraudit methodology andtools aimtoensurethat ourquality control procedures aree�ective, understoodand
applied.Ourquality controls andsystems includeourdedicated professionalstandards review teamand independent partner reviews.

This report ismadesolely totheCompany’smembers,as a body, inaccordancewithChapter3of Part 16of theCompaniesAct 2006.Ouraudit
work has beenundertakensothatwemight statetotheCompany’smembers thosemattersweare requiredtostatetothem inanauditor’s report
andfor noother purpose.Tothefullest extent permitted by law,wedo not accept orassume responsibility to anyoneotherthantheCompany and
theCompany’smembers as a body,forourauditwork,forthis report,orfortheopinionswe haveformed.

Anaudit involvesobtainingevidenceabout the amounts anddisclosures inthe�nancial statements su�cient togive reasonable assurancethat
the�nancial statements arefreefrommaterialmisstatement,whethercaused by fraudorerror.This includes anassessment of:whetherthe
accounting policies are appropriatetotheGroup’s andthe parent company’s circumstances and have beenconsistently applied andadequately
disclosed;the reasonablenessof signi�cant accountingestimatesmade by the Directors; andtheoverall presentationof the�nancial statements.
Inaddition,we readall the�nancial and non-�nancial information intheAnnual Report to identify material inconsistencieswiththeaudited�nancial
statements andto identify any informationthat is apparently materially incorrect basedon,ormaterially inconsistentwith,the knowledgeacquired
by us inthecourseof performingthe audit. Ifwe becomeawareof any apparent materialmisstatementsor inconsistenciesweconsiderthe
implications forour report.

forandonbehalf of Deloitte LLP
CharteredAccountants andStatutoryAuditor

19March2017

RespectiveresponsibilitiesofDirectorsandauditor

Scopeoftheauditofthe�nancialstatements

ClaireFaulkner

(Seniorstatutory auditor)

IndependentAuditor’s report continued
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Consolidated incomestatement

for theyearended 31December 2016
Group
2015

Note £m

Group
2016
£m

Revenue 5 85.3

5 (10.2)

5 75.1

Administrativeexpenses 8 (43.8)

Otheroperating income 1.2

Shareof results of associates and pro�t onsaleof associate 53.2

Negativegoodwill andothergains

Pro�t onsaleof investment properties 4.4

Fairvaluegains on investment properties 18 110.8

200.9

Finance income 5.2

Financecosts (34.7)

171.4

(23.1)

8 148.3

Equity holdersof the parent 148.2

Non-controlling interests 0.1

148.3

Basic 14 21.3p

Diluted 14 19.4p

All results derivefromcontinuingoperations.

112.6

(15.8)

96.8

(21.1)

0.2

13.4

4.3

3.9

43.4

140.9

15.2

(36.2)

119.9

(10.4)

109.5

109.5

–

109.5

Earnings pershare

14.8p

13.8p

Gross pro�t

Operating pro�t

Pro�t beforetax

Pro�t fortheyear

Attributable to:
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for theyearended 31December 2016

Consolidatedstatement of comprehensive income

Group
2016
£m

Group
2015
£m

Pro�t fortheyearaftertax 109.5

72.9

(2.3)

70.6

Totalcomprehensive incomefortheyear 180.1

180.0

0.1

180.1

148.3

Othercomprehensive income/(expense):

Exchangedi�erences arisingontranslatingforeignoperations (19.6)

Exchangedi�erences recycledtothe incomestatement ondisposalof subsidiaries

Totalothercomprehensive income/(expense)fortheyear (19.6)

128.7

Equity holders of the parent 128.6

Non-controlling interests 0.1

128.7

All componentsof othercomprehensive income/(expense)may be recycledto pro�t and loss.

Attributable to:
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16 –

–

–

–

20 –

21 –

22

–

Trading properties –

22

26

Current tax liabilities

–

–

– –

–

– –

22

21 –

–

Retainedearnings

–
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as at 31December 2016

Balancesheets

Group Company
2015 2015

Note £m £m

Group Company
2016 2016
£m £m

Non-current assets

Non-current liabilities

Goodwill 0.3

Property, plant andequipment 17 0.4

Investment property 18 1,059.1

Investment insubsidiary undertakings 19 585.2

Investment inassociates 261.3

Deferredtax asset 0.6

Derivative�nancial instruments 0.4 0.4

1,322.1 585.6

Investment properties held forsale 18 1.6

23 10.8

Tradeandother receivables 24 24.6 106.7

Derivative�nancial instruments 9.4 9.4

Cashandcashequivalents 25 63.4 43.4

109.8 159.5

1,431.9 745.1

Tradeandother payables (38.9) (105.8)

(6.1) (0.8)

Borrowings 27 (6.2)

Obligations under�nance leases 28 (0.2)

Provisions 29

(51.4) (106.6)

Borrowings 27 (530.0) (77.0)

Obligations under�nance leases 28 (2.2)

Provisions 29

Derivative�nancial instruments (5.2) (36.0)

Deferredtax liabilities (36.4)

(573.8) (113.0)

(625.2) (219.6)

806.7 525.5

Share capital 30 72.2 72.2

Share premium 114.5 114.5

Other reserves (1.4) (1.7)

Translation reserves (8.7)

629.6 340.5

Equity attributabletoequity holders of the parent 806.2 525.5

Non-controlling interest 0.5

806.7 525.5

As permitted by Section408of theCompaniesAct 2006,the pro�t and loss account of theCompany is not presentedas part of theseaccounts.
TheCompany’s pro�t forthe�nancialyearended31December 2016amountedto £56.7million (2015: £64.8million).Of theCompany’s retained
earningsof £332.7million (2015: £340.5million), £308.2million (2015: £338.8million) is available fordistribution.

The�nancial statementsof HansteenHoldings PLC, registered number05605371,were approved by the Boardof Directors andauthorisedfor
issueon 19March2017.Signedonbehalf of the Boardof Directors

– –

0.4 –

1,717.5 –

– 661.2

– –

0.6 0.5

2.1 1.9

1,720.6 663.6

Current assets

10.4 –

10.0 –

31.1 250.4

– –

82.5 34.8

134.0 285.2

Totalassets 1,854.6 948.8

Current liabilities

(54.0) (124.7)

(6.6) (1.1)

(20.5) –

(0.2) –

(0.1) –

(81.4) (125.8)

(793.5) (278.0)

(2.4) –

(0.7) –

(4.3) (25.4)

(48.1) –

(849.0) (303.4)

Total liabilities (930.4) (429.2)

Net assets 924.2 519.6

Equity

74.6 74.6

114.5 114.5

(1.9) (2.2)

61.8 –

674.6 332.7

923.6 519.6

0.6 –

Totalequity 924.2 519.6

MorganJonesandIanWatson

Joint Chief Executives



68 HansteenHoldings PLC

– – –

– – – – –

– – – – –

– – – – – –

– – – – –

– – – –

– – – – –

– –

– – –

– – – – –

– – – – –

– – – – – –

– – – – –

– – – – –

– –

Annual Report andAccounts 2016

for the year ended 31 December 2016

Statements of changes inequity

Share Share Other Translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserves reserves earnings Total interest Total

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Share Share Other Translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserves reserves earnings Total interest Total

Company £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Non-

Non-

Balance at 1January 2015 68.6 114.4 (0.5) 10.9 482.6 676.0 0.4 676.4

Shares issued 3.6 0.1 35.7 39.4 39.4

Dividends (56.2) (56.2) (56.2)

Share-based payments 19.5 19.5 19.5

Share options exercised 0.2 (0.2)

Purchase of own shares (1.1) (1.1) (1.1)

Pro�t for the year 148.2 148.2 0.1 148.3

Other comprehensive income for the year (19.6) (19.6) (19.6)

Balance at 31 December 2015 72.2 114.5 (1.4) (8.7) 629.6 806.2 0.5 806.7

Shares issued

Dividends

Share-based payments

Share options exercised

Purchase of own shares

Pro�t for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 1January 2015 68.6 114.4 (0.8) 276.9 459.1 459.1

Shares issued 3.6 0.1 35.7 39.4 39.4

Dividends (56.2) (56.2) (56.2)

Share-based payments 19.5 19.5 19.5

Share options exercised 0.2 (0.2)

Purchase of own shares (1.1) (1.1) (1.1)

Pro�t for the year 64.8 64.8 64.8

Balance at 31 December 2015 72.2 114.5 (1.7) 340.5 525.5 525.5

Shares issued

Dividends

Share-based payments

Share options exercised

Purchase of own shares

Pro�t for the year

Other reserves comprises a gain upon acquisition of a minority interest and a de�cit relating to the purchase of the Company’s own shares.
See note 30.

2.4 – – – – 2.4 – 2.4

– – – – (39.8) (39.8) – (39.8)

– – – – (24.7) (24.7) – (24.7)

– – 0.2 – – 0.2 – 0.2

– – (0.7) – – (0.7) – (0.7)

– – – – 109.5 109.5 – 109.5

– – – 70.5 – 70.5 0.1 70.6

Balanceat 31December2016 74.6 114.5 (1.9) 61.8 674.6 923.6 0.6 924.2

2.4 – – – – 2.4 – 2.4

– – – – (39.8) (39.8) – (39.8)

– – – – (24.7) (24.7) – (24.7)

– – 0.2 – – 0.2 – 0.2

– – (0.7) – – (0.7) – (0.7)

– – – – 56.7 56.7 – 56.7

Balanceat 31December2016 74.6 114.5 (2.2) – 332.7 519.6 – 519.6
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for the year ended 31 December 2016

Cash flow statements

Note

Group
2016

£m

Group
2015

£m

Company
2016

£m

Company
2015

£m

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 31 48.0 31.0 (136.8) (19.1)
Investing activities
 Interest received 0.1 0.3 3.8 2.5
 Dividends received – – 63.4 177.8
 Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings (38.1) – (76.2) (251.7)
 Investments in associates (10.2) (130.1) – –
 Proceeds from sale of associate – 45.0 – –
 Additions to property, plant and equipment (0.2) (0.1) – –
 Additions to investment properties (21.2) (79.9) – –
 Proceeds from sale of investment properties 25.9 53.2 – –
 Distributions received from associates 22.4 32.1 – –

Net cash used in investing activities (21.3) (79.5) (9.0) (71.4)
Financing activities
 Dividends paid (39.8) (56.2) (39.8) (56.2)
 Proceeds from issue of shares – 40.0 – 40.0
 Settlement of liabilities in respect of 2015 Founder LTIP (see note 33) (23.5) – (23.5) –
 Cost of issuing shares – (0.7) – (0.7)
 Own shares acquired (0.7) (1.1) (0.7) (1.1)
 Repayments of obligations under finance leases (0.2) (0.2) – –
 New borrowings raised (net of expenses) 409.2 84.0 294.5 76.7
 Bank loans repaid (354.7) (62.7) (95.0) –
 Outflows on derivative financial instruments (3.2) (0.6) (0.7) (0.6)
 Proceeds on disposal of derivative financial instruments 0.5 1.1 0.5 1.1

Net cash (used in)/generated by financing activities (12.4) 3.6 135.3 59.2

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 14.3 (44.9) (10.5) (31.3)
 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 63.4 110.3 43.4 75.5
 Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 4.8 (2.0) 1.9 (0.8)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 25 82.5 63.4 34.8 43.4
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Notes to the financial statements

1. General information
Hansteen Holdings PLC is a company which was incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales on 27 October 2005. 
The Company is required to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. The address of the registered office is 1st Floor, Pegasus House, 
37-43 Sackville Street, London W1S 3DL.

The Group’s principal activity is investing in mainly industrial properties in Continental Europe and the United Kingdom.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 
Company operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in note 3.

2. Adoption of new and revised standards
In the current year, the Group has applied a number of amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) that 
are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1 January 2016. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the 
disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 11   Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to IAS 1   Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38  Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41  Agriculture: Bearer Plants
Amendments to IAS 27   Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2012-2014  Annual Improvements to IFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but 
are not yet effective:

IFRS 9     Financial Instruments
IFRS 15     Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 16     Leases
IFRS 2 (amendments)    Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
IAS 7 (amendments)    Disclosure Initiative
IAS 12 (amendments)    Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (amendments)  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
IAS 40 (amendments)    Transfers of Investment Property
IFRIC 22     Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group in 
future periods, except as noted below:

 › IFRS 9 may impact both the measurement and disclosures of financial instruments;
 › IFRS 15 may have an impact on revenue recognition and related disclosures although, as the Group is primarily a lessor of property and lease 

income is outside the scope of IFRS 15, the impact of this standard is not expected to be material; and
 › IFRS 16 may have an impact on the reported assets, liabilities, income statement and cash flows of the Group. Furthermore, extensive 

disclosures may be required by IFRS 16.

Beyond the information above, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of these standards until a detailed review has been 
completed. The Group intends to undertake a detailed impact study over the course of the coming months.

3. Significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, as detailed in the Directors’ Report on pages 53 to 57 and in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) adopted by the European Union and therefore the Group financial statements comply 
with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of investment properties and certain 
financial instruments.
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Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) 
made up to 31 December. Control is achieved when the Company:

 › has the power over the investee;
 › is exposed, or has rights, to variable return from its involvement with the investee; and
 › has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

In the consolidated balance sheet, the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of subsidiaries acquired are initially recognised at their 
fair value at the acquisition date. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income 
statement from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity. Non-controlling interests 
consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination and the non-controlling interests’ share of changes 
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interest in excess of the non-controlling interest in the 
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interest of the Group except to the extent that the non-controlling interest has a binding obligation 
and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair 
values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group. Acquisition-related 
costs are recognised in the income statement as incurred. The acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities are recognised at their fair values at the 
acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the 
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree, if any, over the net amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed at the acquisition date.

Non-controlling interests in the acquiree are measured at the non-controlling shareholder’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable 
net assets.

Foreign currencies
The individual financial statements of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which it 
operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group 
company are expressed in pounds sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated 
financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign 
currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and 
liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried 
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are included in profit or loss for the 
period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss 
for the period in which they arise except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are 
recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated at 
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, 
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange 
differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve. Such translation differences 
are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed of.
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3.Signifcantaccountingpolicies continued

Revenue recognition

Share-based payments

Operating pro�t

Goodwill

Property, plant andequipment

Investment properties

Investments insubsidiary undertakings

Revenue ismeasuredat thefairvalueof theconsideration receivedor receivable and represents amounts receivable forgoods andservices

provided inthe normalcourseof business, net of discounts,VAT andothersales-relatedtaxes.

Rental income is recognisedonanaccruals basis.Wherea lease incentive is granted,whichdoes not enhancethevalueof the property,ora rent-free

period isgranted,thee�ectivecost is amortisedonastraight-line basisoverthe leaseterm.

Property management fees are recognised inthe periodtowhichthey relate.

Interest income is accruedonatime basis, by referencetothe principaloutstanding andat thee�ective interest rate applicable.

Revenuefromthesaleof trading and investment properties is recognisedwhenthesigni�cant risks and returns have beentransferredtothe buyer.

This generally coincideswiththetransferof the legaltitle orthe passingof possessiontothe buyer.The pro�t ondisposalof trading and investment

properties is determinedasthedi�erence betweentheconsideration receivedandthecarrying amount of the asset at thecommencement of the

accounting period plus any additions inthe period.

Thefairvalueof equity-settledshare-based paymentstoemployees is determinedat thedateof grant and is expensedonastraight-line basis over

thevesting period basedontheCompany’s estimateof optionsthatwill eventually vest. Fairvalue ismeasured by useof a binomialmodelorthe

Company’s share price less thediscountedvalueof estimatedfuturedividends,as appropriate.Theexpected life used inthe binomialmodel has

beenadj usted basedonmanagement’s best estimate,forthee�ectsof non-transferability,exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Operating pro�t is stated aftertheshareof results of associates, pro�t onsaleof subsidiaries and investment properties andfairvaluegains on

investment properties, but before changes infairvalueof derivative�nancial instruments,�nance income,�nancecosts andforeign

exchangemovements.

Goodwill arising ina business combination is recognised as anasset and initially measured at cost. If theGroup’s interest inthefairvalueof the

acquiree’s identi�able assets, liabilities andcontingent liabilities exceedsthesumof theconsiderationtransferred andtheamount of any non-

controlling interest inthe acquiree,theexcess is recognised immediately in pro�t or loss as a bargain purchasegain.

Goodwill is allocatedtoeachof theGroup’s cash-generating units expectedto bene�t fromthecombination.Cash-generating units towhich

goodwill has beenallocatedaretestedfor impairment annually,ormorefrequentlywhenthere is an indicationthat the unit may be impaired. If the

recoverable amount of thecash-generating unit is less thanthecarrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated�rst to reducethe

carrying amount of any goodwill allocatedtothe unit andthentotheotherassetsof the unit pro-rataonthe basis of thecarrying amount of each

asset inthe unit.An impairment loss recognisedforgoodwill is not reversed ina subsequent period.

This comprises computerequipment and�xtures and�ttings,whicharestatedat cost less accumulateddepreciationandany recognised

impairment loss.

Depreciation is chargedsoastowriteo� thecost orvaluationof computers,�xtures and�ttings ando�ceequipment, less residualvalue,over

theirestimated useful lives, usingthestraight-linemethod,onthefollowing bases:

Computerequipment threeyears

Fixtures and�ttings �veyears

Investment properties,whichcomprises freehold and leasehold property heldtoearn rentals and/orforcapital appreciation,are treatedas

acquiredwhentheGroupassumesthesigni�cant risks and rewardsof ownership.Acquisitionsof investment properties including related

transactioncosts andsubsequent additionsof a capital nature are initially recognised inthe accounts at cost.At each reportingdatethe

investment properties are revaluedtotheirfairvalues basedona professionalvaluationat the balancesheet date.Gains or losses arising from

changes inthefairvalueof investment property are included inpro�t or loss forthe period inwhichthey arise.

Investments insubsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provisions for impairment.

Notestothefnancialstatements continued
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Investments inassociates

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Anassociate is anentity overwhichtheGroup is ina positiontoexercise signi�cant in�uence, but not controlorj oint control,throughparticipation
inthe�nancial andoperating policy decisionsof the investee.Signi�cant in�uence is the powerto participate inthe�nancial andoperating policy
decisionsof the investee but is not controlorj oint controloverthose policies.

The results andassets and liabilities of associates are incorporated inthese�nancial statements usingtheequity methodof accounting.
Investments inassociates are carried inthe balancesheet at cost as adj usted by post-acquisitionchanges intheGroup’s shareof the net assets of
the associate, less any impairment inthevalueof individual investments. Lossesof anassociate inexcessof theGroup’s interest inthat associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, insubstance,formpart of theGroup’s net investment intheassociate) are recognisedonly tothe
extent that theGrouphas incurred legalorconstructiveobligationsormade paymentsonbehalf of the associate.

Any excessof thecost of acquisitionovertheGroup’s shareof the net fairvalueof the identi�able assets, liabilities andcontingent liabilities of the
associate recognised at thedateof acquisition is recognisedas goodwill.Thegoodwill is includedwithinthecarrying amount of the investment and
is assessedfor impairment as part of that investment.Any excessof theGroup’s shareof the net fairvalueof the identi�able assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities overthecost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in pro�t or loss.

Where aGroupcompany transactswithanassociateof theGroup, pro�ts and losses areeliminatedtotheextent of theGroup’s interest in
the relevant associate. Lossesmay provideevidenceof an impairment of theasset transferred inwhichcaseappropriate provision ismade
for impairment.

Thetax expense representsthesumof thetax currently payable anddeferredtax.TheGroup’s liability forcurrent anddeferredtax is calculated
usingtax rates that have beenenactedorsubstantively enacted by the balancesheet date.

Thetax currently payable is basedontaxable pro�t fortheyear.Taxable pro�t di�ers fromnet pro�t as reported inthe incomestatement because it
excludes itemsof incomeorexpensethat aretaxableordeductible inotheryears and it furtherexcludes itemsthat are nevertaxableordeductible.

Deferredtax is thetax expectedto be payableor recoverableondi�erences betweenthecarrying amountsof assets and liabilities inthe�nancial
statements andthecorrespondingtax bases used inthecomputationof taxable pro�t, and is accountedforusingthe balancesheet liability
method.Deferredtax liabilities aregenerally recognisedforall taxabletemporary di�erences anddeferredtax assets are recognisedtotheextent
that it is probablethat taxable pro�tswill be available againstwhichdeductible temporary di�erences canbe utilised.Deferredtax ismeasuredon
a non-discounted basis.

Deferredtax is calculated at thetax rates that areexpectedtoapply inthe periodwhenthe liability is settledortheasset is realised.

Deferredtax is chargedorcredited inthe incomestatement,exceptwhen it relates to itemschargedorcrediteddirectly toequity, inwhichcase
thedeferredtax is alsodealtwith inequity.

Deferredtax assets and liabilities areo�setwhenthere is a legally enforceable right toset o� current tax assets against current tax liabilities andwhen
they relateto incometaxes levied by thesametaxationauthority andtheGroup intendstosettle its current tax assets and liabilitiesona net basis.

Financial assets and�nancial liabilities are recognised intheGroup’s balancesheetwhentheGroupbecomesa party tothecontractual provisions
of the instrument.

All�nancial assets are recognised andderecognisedonatradedatewherethe purchaseorsaleof an investment is underacontractwhoseterms
require delivery of the investmentwithinthetimeframeestablished by themarket concerned,and are initially measuredat fairvalue, plus
transactioncosts,except forthose�nancial assets classi�ed as at fairvaluethroughpro�t or loss,whichare initially measuredat fairvalue.

Financial assets are classi�ed intothefollowingcategories:�nancial assets “at fairvaluethroughpro�t or loss” (“FVTPL”), “held-to-maturity”
investments, “available-for-sale” (“AFS”)�nancial assets and “loans and receivables”.Theclassi�cationdependsonthe nature and purposeof the
�nancial assets and is determinedat thetimeof initial recognition.

Financial assets are classi�ed as at FVTPLwherethe�nancial asset is either held fortradingor it is designatedas at FVTPL.

A�nancial asset is classi�edas held fortrading if:

it has beenacquired principally forthe purposeof selling inthe nearfuture;or
it is a part of an identi�ed portfolio of �nancial instruments that theGroupmanagestogetherand has a recent actual patternof short-term
pro�t-taking;or
it is aderivativethat is not designatedande�ective as a hedging instrument.

Taxation

Financialassetsat FVTPL
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3.Signifcantaccountingpoliciescontinued

A�nancial asset otherthana�nancial asset held fortradingmay bedesignated as at FVTPLupon initial recognition if:

suchdesignationeliminatesorsigni�cantly reduces ameasurement or recognition inconsistency thatwouldotherwise arise;or

the�nancial asset forms part of agroupof �nancial assets or�nancial liabilities or both,which ismanagedand its performance is evaluatedon

afairvalue basis, inaccordancewiththeGroup’s documented riskmanagement or investment strategy,and informationabout theGroup is

provided internally onthat basis;or

it forms part of a contract containingoneormoreembeddedderivativesthat canbedesignatedas FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPLare stated at fairvalue,withany resultant gainor loss recognised in pro�t or loss.The net gainor loss recognised in pro�t

or loss incorporates any dividendor interest earnedonthe�nancial asset.

Trade receivables, loansandother receivablesthat have�xedordeterminable paymentsthat are not quoted inanactivemarket areclassi�edas

loansand receivables. Loansand receivables aremeasuredat amortisedcost usingthee�ective interest method, less any impairment. Interest

income is recognised by applyingthee�ective interest rate,except forshort-termreceivableswhenthe recognitionof interestwould be immaterial.

Financial assets,otherthanthose at FVTPL,are assessedfor indicators of impairment at eachbalancesheet date. Financial assets are impaired

wherethere is obj ectiveevidencethat, as a result of oneormoreeventsthat occurredafterthe initial recognitionof the�nancial asset,the

estimatedfuture cash�owsof the investment have been impacted.Obj ectiveevidenceof impairment could include:

signi�cant �nancialdi�culty of the issuerorcounterparty;or

default ordelinquency in interest or principal payments;or

it becoming probable that the borrowerwill enter bankruptcy or�nancial re-organisation.

Thecarrying amount of the�nancial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly forall�nancial assetswiththeexceptionof trade receivables,

wherethecarrying amount is reducedthroughthe useof anallowanceaccount.Whenatrade receivable is considered uncollectible, it iswritteno�

against the allowanceaccount.Subsequent recoveriesof amounts previouslywritteno� are credited against theallowanceaccount.Changes

in≈thecarrying amount of theallowanceaccount are recognised in pro�t or loss. If, ina subsequent period,the amount of the impairment loss

decreases andthedecreasecanbe relatedobj ectively to anevent occurring afterthe impairmentwas recognised,the previously recognised

impairment loss is reversedthroughpro�t or loss totheextent that thecarrying amount of the investment at thedatethe impairment is reversed

does not exceedwhat theamortisedcostwould have beenhadthe impairment not been recognised.

Cashandcashequivalents comprisecashonhandanddemanddeposits andothershort-termhighly liquid investments that are readily convertible

to a knownamount of cashandaresubj ect to an insigni�cant riskof changes invalue.

TheGroupderecognises a�nancial asset onlywhenthecontractual rights tothecash�owsfromtheasset expire;or it transfers the�nancial asset

andsubstantially all the risks and rewardsof ownershipof theasset to anotherentity. If theGroupneithertransfers nor retains substantially all

the risks and rewardsof ownershipandcontinuestocontrolthetransferredasset,theGroup recognises its retained interest inthe asset andan

associated liability foramounts it may haveto pay. If theGroup retains substantially all the risks and rewardsof ownershipof atransferred�nancial

asset,theGroupcontinuesto recognisethe�nancial asset andalso recognises acollateralised borrowingforthe proceeds received.

Financial liabilities andequity instruments are classi�edaccordingtothesubstanceof thecontractualarrangementsentered into.

Financial liabilities are classi�edas either�nancial liabilities “at FVTPL”or “other�nancial liabilities”.

Financial liabilities are classi�edas at FVTPLwherethe�nancial liability is either held fortradingor it is designatedas at FVTPL.A�nancial liability

is classi�ed as held fortrading if:

it has been incurred principally forthe purposeof disposal inthe nearfuture;or

it is a part of an identi�ed portfolio of �nancial instruments that theGroupmanagestogetherand has a recent actual patternof short-term

pro�t-taking;or

it is aderivativethat is not designatedande�ective as a hedging instrument.

A�nancial liability otherthana�nancial liability held fortradingmay bedesignated as at FVTPLupon initial recognition if:

suchdesignationeliminatesorsigni�cantly reduces ameasurement or recognition inconsistency thatwouldotherwise arise;or

the�nancial liability forms part of agroupof �nancial assetsor�nancial liabilities or both,which ismanagedand its performance is evaluated

onafairvalue basis, inaccordancewiththeGroup’s documented riskmanagement or investment strategy,and informationabout theGroup

is provided internally onthat basis;or

it forms part of a contract containingoneormoreembeddedderivativesthat canbedesignatedas at FVTPL.

Loansand receivables

Cashandcashequivalents

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Impairment of�nancialassets

De-recognitionof �nancialassets

Financial liabilities andequity

Notestothefnancialstatements continued
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Financial liabilities at FVTPLarestated at fairvalue,withany resultant gainor loss recognised in pro�t or loss.The net gainor loss recognised in pro�t
or loss incorporates any interest paidonthe�nancial liability.

Theconvertible bonds aredesignated as fairvaluethroughpro�t or loss andare presentedonthe balancesheet at fairvaluewithall gains and
losses, includingthewriteo� of issuancecosts, recognised inthe incomestatementwithin net �nancingcosts.The interest charge in respect of
thecoupon rateonthe bonds has been recognisedwithin net�nancingcosts onanaccruals basis.

Other�nancial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fairvalue, net of transactioncosts.Other�nancial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortisedcost usingthee�ective interest method,with interest expense recognisedonane�ectiveyield basis.Thee�ective
interest rate is the ratethat exactly discounts estimatedfuturecashpaymentsthroughtheexpected life of the�nancial liability,or,where
appropriate, a shorter periodtothe net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financialguaranteecontract liabilities aremeasured initially at theirfairvalues andare subsequently measured at the higherof:

the amount of theobligationunderthecontract, as determined inaccordancewith IAS37Provisions,Contingent Liabilities andContingent
Assets; and
the amount initially recognised less,where appropriate,cumulative amortisation recognised inaccordancewiththe revenue recognitionpolicies
set out above.

TheGroupderecognises�nancial liabilitieswhen,andonlywhen,theGroup’s obligations aredischarged,cancelledorthey expire.Where anexisting
�nancial liability is replaced by anotherfromthesame lenderonsubstantially di�erent termsorthetermsof anexisting liability are substantially
modi�ed,suchanexchangeormodi�cation is treatedas ade-recognitionof theoriginal liability andthe recognitionof a new liability, andthe
di�erence inthe respective carrying amounts is recognised inthe incomestatement.

Anequity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest inthe assetsof theGroupafterdeducting allof its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by theGroupare recordedat the proceeds received, net of direct issuecosts.

TheGroupenters into avariety of derivative�nancial instruments tomanage its exposureto interest rate andforeignexchange rate risk, including
foreignexchangeforward contracts andoptions and interest rate swaps andcaps.

Derivatives are initially recognisedat fairvalue at thedate aderivative contract is entered into andare subsequently re-measuredtotheirfairvalue
at eachbalancesheet date.The resultinggainor loss is recognised in pro�t or loss immediately.

A derivative is presentedas a non-current asset ora non-current liability if the remainingmaturity of the instrument ismorethan 12months and it is
not expectedto be realisedorsettledwithin 12months.Otherderivatives are presented as current assets orcurrent liabilities.

Non-current assets anddisposalgroups are classi�edas held forsale if theircarrying amountwill be recoveredthroughasale transaction rather
thanthroughcontinuing use.This condition is regardedasmet onlywhenthesale is highly probable andtheasset (ordisposalgroup) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition.Management must becommittedtothesalewhichshould beexpectedtoqualify for recognitionas a
completedsalewithinoneyearfromthedateof classi�cation.

Non-current assets (anddisposalgroups) classi�edas held forsale,except investment properties,aremeasuredat the lowerof carrying amount
andfairvalue less costs tosell. Investment properties classi�ed as held forsale are carried at fairvalue.

Trading properties are carried at the lowerof cost and net realisablevalue andaretreatedas acquiredwhentheGroupassumesthesigni�cant risks
and rewardsof ownership.Cost includesdevelopment costs speci�cally attributableto properties inthecourseof development. Net realisable
value represents theestimatedselling price less furthercosts expectedto be incurredtocompletionanddisposal.

Leases are classi�ed as�nance leaseswheneverthetermsof the leasetransfersubstantially all the risks and rewardsof ownershiptothe lessee.
Allother leases are classi�ed asoperating leases.

Whenaccountingfora leaseof land and buildings,theGroupconsiders the landand buildingselements separately.Whereonly the buildings
element of a property lease is classi�edas a�nance lease,theground rent paymentsforthe landelement are shownwithinoperating leases.
TheGroupdoes not classify those landelements that are held underoperating leases as investment property.

Rentals receivable underoperating leases are recognised inthe incomestatement onastraight-line basis overthetermof the relevant lease. Inthe
event that lease incentives aregrantedtoa lessee,such incentives are recognised as anasset.Theaggregatecost of the incentives is recognised
as a reduction in rental incomeonastraight-line basis overthetermof the relevant lease.

Other�nancial liabilities

De-recognitionof �nancial liabilities

Financialguaranteecontract liabilities

Equity instruments

Leases– theGroupas lessor

Derivative�nancial instruments

Non-current assets held forsale

Trading properties

Leases
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3.Signi�cantaccountingpolicies

4.Criticalaccountingj udgementsandkeysourcesofestimationuncertainty

continued

Leases– theGroupas lessee

Rentals payable underoperating leases are chargedtothe incomestatement onastraight-line basis overthetermof the relevant lease. Inthe
event that lease incentives are receivedtoenter into anoperating lease,such incentives are recognisedas a liability.Theaggregate bene�t of the
incentives is recognisedas a reduction in rentalexpenseonastraight-line basis overthetermof the relevant lease.

Wherea property is held undera head leaseclassi�edas a�nance lease, it is initially recognised as anasset as thesumof the premiumpaidon
acquisitionandthe present valueof minimumground rent payments.Thecorresponding rent liability tothe head leaseholder is included inthe
balancesheet as a�nance leaseobligation.

Provisions are recognisedwhentheGrouphas a present obligation (legalorconstructive) as a result of a past event, it is probablethat theGroupwill
be requiredtosettle that obligationanda reliable estimatecanbemadeof theamount of theobligation.

Theamount recognised as a provision is the best estimateof theconsideration requiredtosettle the present obligationat the balancesheet date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surroundingtheobligation.Where a provision ismeasured usingthecash�owsestimatedtosettle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present valueof thosecash�ows (whenthee�ect of thetimevalueof money ismaterial).

Whensomeorallof theeconomic bene�ts requiredtosettle a provisionareexpectedto be recoveredfromathird party, a receivable is recognised
as anasset if it isvirtually certainthat reimbursementwill be receivedandtheamount of the receivable canbemeasured reliably.

Intheapplicationof theGroup’s accounting policies,the Directors are requiredtomakej udgements,estimates andassumptions about the
carrying amountsof assets and liabilities. Inmakingtheseestimates andassumptions,the Directorsmake referenceto historicalexperienceand
otherfactors that they considerto be relevant.Actual resultsmay di�erfromtheseestimates.Theestimates andassumptions are reviewedonan
ongoing basis. Revisionsto accountingestimates are recognised inthe period inwhichtheestimate is revised if the revisiona�ects only that period,
or inthe periodof revisionandfuture periods if the revisiona�ects bothcurrent andfuture periods.

Thefollowingarethecriticalj udgements,apart fromthose involvingestimations (whicharedealtwithseparately below),theDirectors havemade inthe
processof applyingtheGroup’saccountingpoliciesandthat havethemost signi�cant e�ect ontheamounts recognised inthe�nancialstatements.

Indeterminingwhetheranexpenseshould be recognised in relationtothe Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan,the Directors are requiredtoform
aj udgement overthe likelihoodof anawardvesting.

Thecurrent performance period runs from 1January 2016to31December 2018. Indeterminingwhether it is appropriateto recognise acharge
inthe�nancial statements fortheyearended31December 2016,the Directors have performeddetailed calculationstoestimatethecharge
thatwould be requiredoverthethree-year performance period undervarious scenarios.Suchcalculations require signi�cant assumptionsto be
madeover itemssuchas futuremovements inexchange rates andfuturemovements inthevalueof the investment property portfolio.Such
assumptions are inevitably characterised by uncertainty and in performingtheircalculations at 31December 2016,the Directors have beenmindful
of thefact that thecurrent position regarding both "Brexit"andthe political andeconomicenvironment inthe Eurozone,signi�cantly increasesthis
uncertainty.While it is hopedthat the levelof uncertainty overbothwill reduceoverthethree-year performance period,there canbe noguarantee
of this and it is likely that adegreeof market volatilitywill beexperienced,at least intheshort term. Inview of this uncertainty,the challengingtargets
set underthetermsof the Founder LTIPschemeandthefact that only oneyearof thethree-year performance period hasexpired,the Directors
concludedthat the levelof certainty attachedtoanaward beingmade undertheschemeat 31December 2018 is not currently su�cient toj ustify
a charge being recognised inthe�nancial statements.

Determiningtheamount of tax lossesto be recognised asdeferredtax assets requires the Directors toestimatethe leveland probability of future
taxable pro�ts that those losses canbeo�set against, ineach relevant entity andj urisdiction.

Details regardingdeferredtax, includingthej udgementsmade regardingthe recoverability of deferredtax assets against futuretaxable pro�ts,
are set out in note 21.

Provisions

Criticalj udgements inapplyingtheGroup’s accounting policies

Recognitionof expenseforshare-based payments

Recognitionof deferredtax assets

Notestothe�nancialstatements continued
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Accountingforone-o� andcomplex transactions

TheGroupfrequently enters intotransactionsforthe purchase andsaleof investment property, associates,subsidiaries andother�nancial assets.
Thesetransactionstendto beone-o� andcanbecomplex.Accountingforthetransactions requiresj udgements to bemadeovermatters suchas
calculating any gainor loss, anddeciding uponthe presentation inthe�nancial statements.Transactions aredisclosedandwheretheir impact is
signi�cant thenthey are presentedseparately fromtheongoing�nancial results of theGroup.

Duringtheyear,theGroupacquiredthe remaining units of HansteenSaltley Unit Trust andAshtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust. Details regarding
the accounting appliedtothesetransactions are set out in note 15.

Determiningtheappropriatenessof accountingfor investments inassociates requiresmanagement to assessthecontroltheGrouphasoveran
investee,speci�cally,the powertheGrouphasoverthe investee,exposureor rights tovariable returns from its involvementwiththe investeeand
the ability to use its poweroverthe investeeto a�ect theamount of investor returns.

As notedabove,duringtheyeartheGroupacquiredthe remaining units ofAshtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust.As a result of this transaction,
theGroup’s investment inAshtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust is now fully consolidated as asubsidiary undertaking. Priortothis transaction,the
Group’s investmentwasequity accountedfor,the Directors havingformedaj udgement that it should beclassi�ed as anassociated undertaking.
Thisj udgementwasmadeonthe basis thatwhile theGroupexercisedsigni�cant in�uence, it did not at that time havecontrol. Furtherdetails
regarding accountingforassociated undertakings areset out in note 20.

The key assumptions concerningthefuture, andother key sourcesof estimationuncertainty that may have asigni�cant riskof causingmaterial
adj ustment tothecarrying amountsof assets and liabilitieswithinthe next �nancialyear, are set out below.

Indeterminingthefairvalueof investment properties there is adegreeof uncertainty andj udgement involved.Thevaluations are basedona
numberof assumptions,thesigni�cant onesofwhicharethe appropriatediscount rates,estimatesof future rental incomeandcapitalexpenditure.
TheGroupusesexternal professionalvaluers to provide independent valuationsof the investment properties.

Details of the investment property valuations undertakenduringtheyear, includingthesigni�cant assumptionsmadeand inputs used inthe
valuationprocess,are set out in note 18.

Ananalysis of theGroup’s revenueandcost of sales is as follows:

Investment property rental income 81.2

Trading property sales

Property management fees 4.1

Revenue 85.3

Direct operatingexpenses relatingto investment properties that generated rental income (12.5)

Direct operatingexpenses relatingto investment properties that did not generate rental income

Direct operatingexpenses (12.5)

Reversalof previouswrite downof trading properties 2.3

(10.2)

Gross pro�t 75.1

Including interest incomeof £0.1million (2015: £0.3million),total revenuewas £112.7million (2015: £85.6million).

Accountingfor investments inassociates

Investment property valuations

Key sourcesof estimationuncertainty

5.Revenueandcostofsales

Group
2016
£m

Group
2015
£m

109.4

1.2

2.0

112.6

(14.2)

(0.5)

(14.7)

(1.1)

–

(15.8)

96.8
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6.Normalised IncomeProftandNormalisedTotalProft

Normalised Income Pro�t and NormalisedTotal Pro�t are adj ustedmeasures intendedtoshow the underlyingearningsof theGroupbeforefair
valuemovements andothernon-recurringorotherwise non-cashone-o� items.A reconciliationof the Normalised Income Pro�t and Normalised
Total Pro�t tothe pro�t beforetax prepared inaccordancewith IFRS rules is set out below.

Investment property rental income 81.2 23.0 104.2

Direct operatingexpenses (12.5) (3.0) (15.5)

Property management fees 4.1 4.1

Administrativeexpenses (18.9) (3.2) (22.1)

Net interest payable (18.8) (4.7) (23.5)

35.1 12.1 47.2

Pro�t onsaleof investment properties 4.4 3.1 7.5

Pro�t onsaleof trading properties

Total pro�tsonsaleof properties 4.4 3.1 7.5

Otheroperating income 1.2 0.3 1.5

Reversalof previouswrite downof trading properties 2.3 2.3

Pro�t onsaleof investment inassociate 4.7 4.7

47.7 15.5 63.2

Negativegoodwill andothergains 10.9 10.9

Acquisitionand reorganisationcosts 0.2 0.2

Founder LTIPcharge (23.2) (23.2)

Impairment of goodwill (0.3) (0.3)

Change infairvalueof investment properties 110.8 20.2 131.0

Change infairvalueof currency options 4.7 4.7

Change infairvalueof interest rate swaps andcaps 0.2 0.3 0.5

Change infairvalueof convertible bonds (11.2) (11.2)

Foreignexchangegains/(losses) (4.4) (4.4)

124.5 46.9

171.4

Administrativeexpensesfor 2015,as presented inNormalised Income Pro�t,excludedachargeof £24.9million largely relatingtothe Founder LTIP
andexpenses relatingtothesaleof investments inassociates. No Founder LTIPcharge has been recognised inthecurrent year in relationtothe
potential bonus share awardforthethree-year periodendingon31December 2018 (2015: £23.2millionforthethree-year periodendedon
31December 2015). Furtherdetails are set out in note33.

During 2016,theGroupacquiredthe remaining 50%of the units inthe HansteenSaltley Unit Trust fora net priceof £9.3million,taking its ownership
to 100%and resulting inagainonbusiness combinationof £0.4million.TheGroupalso acquiredthe remaining 18.2%ofAshtenne Industrial Fund
Unit Trust fora net priceof £39.5million,taking its ownershipto 100%and resulting inagainonbusiness combinationof £3.9million.TheGroup’s
investments inHansteenSaltley Unit Trust andAshtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust are now consolidated.The remaining negativegoodwill and
othergainsof £1.0million (2015: £10.9million) relates to again recognised uponacquiringfurtherunits intheAshtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust
while it continuedto beclassi�edas anassociate. Furtherdetails are set out in notes 15and 20.

2016

Share of
Group associates Total

Group £m £m £m

2015

Share of
Group

£m £m £m
associates Total

109.4 17.3 126.7

(14.7) (2.4) (17.1)

2.0 – 2.0

(20.7) (2.2) (22.9)

(24.5) (3.1) (27.6)

51.5 9.6 61.1

3.9 0.7 4.6

0.1 – 0.1

4.0 0.7 4.7

0.2 – 0.2

– – –

– – –

55.7 10.3 66.0

4.3 1.0 5.3

(0.1) – (0.1)

– – –

(0.3) – (0.3)

43.4 2.4 45.8

(9.3) – (9.3)

1.6 (0.3) 1.3

(2.3) – (2.3)

13.5 – 13.5

106.5 13.4

119.9

Normalised Income Pro�t

NormalisedTotal Pro�t

Pro�t beforetax

Notestothefnancialstatements continued
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7.Operatingsegments

Segment revenues and results

Segment assets

TheGroup’s reportablesegmentsaredeterminedby geographic location,which representsthe information reportedtotheGroup’s Directorsfor
thepurposesof resourceallocationandassessment of segment performance.A segment’s result consistsof itsgross pro�t asdetailedfortheGroup
innote5.Administrativeexpensesandnet�nancecostsaremanagedascentralcostsandarethereforenot allocatedtosegments.Gains/(losses)
on investment properties by segment arealsopresentedbelow.

Belgium 1.0 0.7

France 1.4 1.3

Germany 49.4 43.7

Netherlands 18.7 14.4

UK 14.8 15.0

85.3 75.1

Administrativeexpenses (43.8)

Otheroperating income 1.2

Shareof results of associates and pro�t onsaleof associate 53.2

Negativegoodwill andothergains

Changes infairvalueof investment properties by segment:

Belgium (0.2)

France 2.1

Germany 76.6

Netherlands 14.7

UK 17.6

Totalchanges infairvalueof investment properties 110.8

Pro�t ondisposalof investment properties 4.4

Totalgains on investment properties 115.2

Operating pro�t 200.9

Net�nancecosts (29.5)

Pro�t beforetax 171.4

Forthe purposesof monitoringsegment performanceandallocated resources betweensegments,the Directorsmonitorthe investment and
trading properties attributabletoeachsegment.All assets are allocatedto reportable segmentswiththeexceptionof investments inassociates
andelementsof cash,derivatives andtax balancesthat aremanagedcentrally.

Belgium

France

Germany

Netherlands

UK

Unallocatedassets

Revenue Result
2016 2016

Group £m £m

Additions
to

Investment Trading Total Other Total investment current
properties properties properties assets assets properties assets

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Revenue
2015 2015
£m £m

Result

1.1 0.9

1.6 1.5

54.1 47.4

21.1 17.2

34.7 29.8

112.6 96.8

(21.1)

0.2

13.4

4.3

–

0.2

19.1

8.9

15.2

43.4

3.9

47.3

140.9

(21.0)

119.9

17.0 – 17.0 2.3 19.3 0.3 17.0

17.7 – 17.7 0.6 18.3 0.7 17.7

761.7 – 761.7 29.4 791.1 11.7 754.8

264.7 – 264.7 7.4 272.1 3.1 265.0

666.8 10.0 676.8 40.4 717.2 480.0 664.0

1,727.9 10.0 1,737.9 80.1 1,818.0 495.8 1,718.5

36.6 2.1

Totalassets 1,854.6 1,720.6

2016

1

Non-

1. Includes investment properties held forsale.



80 Hansteen Holdings PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2016

7. Operating segments continued
2015

Group

Investment 
properties1

£m

Trading 
properties

£m

Total
properties

£m

Other
assets

£m

Total
assets

£m

Additions
to

investment
properties

£m

Non-
current
assets

£m

Belgium 15.4 – 15.4 1.3 16.7 0.2 15.4
France 14.3 – 14.3 0.9 15.2 1.2 14.3
Germany 634.5 – 634.5 19.9 654.4 23.3 633.5
Netherlands 217.3 – 217.3 7.0 224.3 2.2 217.4
UK 179.2 10.8 190.0 224.5 414.5 53.0 393.1

Total segment assets 1,060.7 10.8 1,071.5 253.6 1,325.1 79.9 1,273.7
Unallocated assets 106.8 48.4

Total assets 1,431.9 1,322.1

1. Includes investment properties held for sale.

8. Profit for the year
Profit for the year has been arrived at after (charging)/crediting:

Group
2016

£m

Group
2015

£m

Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 13.5 (4.4)
Acquisition and reorganisation (costs)/income (0.1) 0.2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (0.2) (0.2)
Impairment of goodwill (0.3) (0.3)
Negative goodwill and other gains 4.3 –
Profit on sale of investment properties 3.9 4.4
Write-down of trading property (0.2) –
Reversal of previous write down of trading properties – 2.3
Increase in fair value of investment properties 43.4 110.8
Auditor’s remuneration (0.6) (0.5)
Reduction in provision for bad and doubtful debts on trade receivables (2.0) (0.8)
Staff costs – share-based payment charge including social security costs (see note 9) (1.5) (23.8)
Staff costs – other (see note 9) (9.8) (12.2)

The analysis of administrative expenses is as follows:

Group
2016

£m

Group
2015

£m

Staff costs (see note 9) 11.3 36.0
Professional fees 4.2 3.5
Impairment of goodwill 0.3 0.3
Other 5.3 4.0

Total administrative expenses 21.1 43.8

The analysis of auditor’s remuneration is as follows:
Group

2016
£m

Group
2015

£m

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and their associates for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 0.2 0.2
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and their associates for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 0.3 0.3

Total audit fees 0.5 0.5
 Audit-related services – –
 Taxation compliance services 0.1 –

Total non-audit services 0.1 –

Total auditor’s remuneration 0.6 0.5

Fees for taxation compliance and advisory services comprise fees for UK and overseas income tax, VAT and property tax advisory services. Details 
of the Company’s policy on the use of auditors for non-audit services and how the auditor’s independence and objectivity was safeguarded are set 
out in the Audit Committee Report on pages 29 to 32. No services were provided pursuant to contingent fee arrangements.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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9. Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees (excluding Non-Executive Directors) was:

Group
2016

Number

Group
2015

Number

Finance and administration 54 56
Property 41 43

95 99

Their aggregate remuneration was: £m £m
 Wages and salaries 8.2 10.3
 Other social security costs 1.2 1.5
 Pension costs 0.4 0.4
 Share-based payments (see note 33) 1.4 19.5
 Social security costs on share-based payments 0.1 4.3

11.3 36.0

Pension costs comprise amounts payable by the Group to personal pension schemes of employees.

The Company had no employees in either the current or preceding financial year.

10. Other operating income
In 2016, other operating income includes £0.1 million insurance receipts and £0.1 million local authority reimbursements.

In 2015, other operating income includes £0.6 million from an option to purchase a property which was not utilised by the purchaser and £0.6 million 
insurance receipts.

11. Net finance costs
Group

2016
£m

Group
2015

£m

Interest receivable on bank deposits 0.1 0.3

Interest income 0.1 0.3
Interest payable on borrowings (24.5) (19.0)
Interest payable on obligations under finance leases (0.1) (0.1)

Net interest expense (24.5) (18.8)
Change in fair value of currency options (9.3) 4.7
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps and caps 1.6 0.2
Change in fair value of convertible bonds (2.3) (11.2)
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 13.5 (4.4)

Net finance costs (21.0) (29.5)

Finance income 15.2 5.2
Finance costs (36.2) (34.7)

Net finance costs (21.0) (29.5)
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12.Tax

13.Dividends

Group
2016
£m

Group
2016
£m

Group
2016
£m

Group
2015
£m

Group
2015
£m

Group
2015
£m

UKcurrent tax

Foreign current tax

Total current tax

Amounts recognisedas distributions toequity holders in theperiod:

Amountsnotrecognisedas distributions toequity holders in theperiod:

Credit in respect of prioryears

Onnet incomeof thecurrent year 0.5

Charge in respect of prioryears 1.8

Onnet incomeof thecurrent year 5.0

7.3

Deferredtax in respect of prioryears (see note 21) (0.2)

Deferredtax in respect of thecurrent year (see note 21) 16.0

23.1

UKcorporationtax is calculated at 20.00% (2015: 20.25%)of theestimatedassessable pro�t fortheyear.Taxationforotherj urisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing inthe respectivej urisdictions.

Thetax chargefortheyearcanbe reconciledtothe pro�t perthe incomestatement as follows:

Pro�t beforetax 171.4

Tax at the UKcorporationtax rateof 20.00% (2015: 20.25%) 34.7

UKtax not payable dueto REIT exemption (9.1)

Deferredtax assets not recognised 0.1

E�ect of di�erent tax rates inoverseas subsidiaries (1.2)

Incomethat is not intaxable pro�t (3.5)

0.5

Adj ustment in respect of prioryears 1.6

Tax chargefortheyear 23.1

TheGroupelectedto bea UKREIT in 2009following admissiontotheO�cial List.The UKREIT rules exempt the pro�ts of theGroup’s property
rental business fromUKcorporationtax.Gains onUKproperties are alsoexempt fromtax providedthey are not held fortrading.TheGroup’s UK
activities areotherwise subj ect to UKcorporationtax.To remaina UKREIT there are a numberof conditions to bemet in respect of the principal
company of theGroup,theGroup’s qualifying activity and its balanceof businesswhichareset out inthe UKREIT legislation intheCorporationTax
Act 2010.

Seconddividendfortheyearended31December 2015of 3.15p (2015:3.0p) pershare 20.5

Specialdividendfortheyearended31December 2016of nil (2015:3.0p) pershare 20.5

Interimdividendfortheyearended31December 2016of 2.2p (2015: 2.1p) pershare 15.2

56.2

Proposedseconddividendfortheyearended31December 2016of 3.7p (2015:3.15p) pershare 23.4

As a REIT,theCompany is requiredto pay Property IncomeDistributions (“PIDs”) equalto at least 90%of theGroup’s exempted net income,after
deductionofwithholdingtax at the basic rate (currently 20%). £24.2millionof thedividends paidduringtheyearended31December 2016 is
attributable to PIDs (2015: £20.4million).

(0.5)

–

0.4

5.1

5.0

(0.2)

5.6

10.4

119.9

24.0

(8.2)

(1.1)

0.7

(4.2)

(0.5)

(0.3)

10.4

23.4

–

16.4

39.8

27.5

Tax e�ectof:

Notestothefnancialstatements continued
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14.Earningspershareandnetassetvaluepershare

The European Public Real EstateAssociation (“EPRA”) has issued recommended basesforthecalculationof certainearnings pershare (“EPS”)
information.Diluted EPRA EPS is reconciledtothe IFRSmeasure inthefollowingtable.

Normalised Income Pro�t (see note 6) 47.2 697.4 6.8

NormalisedTotal Pro�t (see note 6) 63.2 697.4 9.1

Basic EPS 148.2 697.4 21.3

Marktomarket valueof convertible bonds 16.4

Foreignexchangeonconvertible bonds (5.2)

Interest charged inperiodonconvertible bonds 2.9

Dilutive shares relatingto convertible bonds 90.8

Dilutive shares relatingtothe pro�t share scheme 2.0

Dilutive shares relatingtothe Founder LTIP 45.8

Diluted EPS 162.3 836.0 19.4

Basic EPS 148.2 697.4 21.3

Revaluationgains on investment properties (110.8)

Pro�t onthesaleof investment properties (4.4)

Net pro�t onoption receipt (0.6)

Impairment of goodwill 0.3

Pro�t onsaleof trading properties

Cost of acquiring subsidiaries 0.2

Negativegoodwill andothergains

Change infairvalueof derivatives (4.9)

Change infairvalueof convertible bonds (excludingforeign
exchange) 16.4

Adj ustment in respect of associates (40.7)

Deferredtax ontheabove items 16.6

EPRA EPS 20.3 697.4 2.9

Interest charged inperiodonconvertible bonds 2.9

Foreignexchangeonconvertible bonds (5.2)

Dilutive shares relatingto convertible bonds 90.8

Dilutive shares relatingtothe pro�t share scheme 2.0

Dilutive shares relatingtothe Founder LTIP 45.8

Diluted EPRA EPS 18.0 836.0 2.2

2016

Weighted
average Earnings

numberof per
Earnings shares share

Group £m m pence

2015

average Earnings

Earnings
£m

Weighted

numberof per
shares share

m pence

61.1 740.0 8.3

66.0 740.0 8.9

109.5 740.0 14.8

(14.9)

17.3

3.3

92.8

2.3

–

115.2 835.1 13.8

109.5 740.0 14.8

(43.4)

(3.9)

–

0.3

(0.3)

–

(4.3)

7.7

(14.9)

(3.8)

5.7

52.6 740.0 7.1

3.3

–

92.8

2.3

–

55.9 835.1 6.7

Adj ustments:

Adj ustments:

Adj ustments:

1

1. Inaccordancewith EPRA Best Practices Recommendations,thediluted EPRA EPSfor 2016has not beenadj ustedforforeignexchangegains/lossesontheconvertible bonds.

Thecomparative�gurefor 2015has not been restatedto re�ect this change inthe basis of calculation.
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14. Earnings per share and net asset value per share continued
The calculations for net asset value (“NAV”) per share are shown in the table below:

2016 2015

Group

Equity
shareholders’

funds
£m

Number
of

shares
m

Net asset
value

per share
pence

Equity
shareholders’

funds
£m

Number
of

shares
m

Net asset
value

per share
pence

Basic NAV 923.6 745.1 124 806.2 766.3 105
Unexercised share options – 2.1 – 1.7
Mark-to-market of convertible bonds 109.8 92.8 – –

Diluted NAV 1,033.4 840.0 123 806.2 768.0 105
Adjustments:
Revaluation of trading properties – 0.2
Goodwill – (0.3)
Fair value of interest rate derivatives 2.2 5.2
Adjustments in respect of associates – 0.6
Mark-to-market of convertible bonds – 107.5 90.8
Deferred tax 47.3 35.8

EPRA NAV 1,082.9 840.0 129 955.2 858.8 111 

15. Business combinations
Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust
At the beginning of the year the Group recognised 50% of the units in Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust as an associate.

On 4 March 2016, the Group acquired the remaining 50% of the units of Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust, previously equity accounted for as an 
associate, thereby obtaining 100% ownership and control. Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust is a Jersey based unit trust which invests in Saltley Business 
Park, a multi-let industrial estate in Birmingham comprising over 95,000 sq m and with an annual rent roll of £3.2 million.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below:

£m

Financial assets 2.1
Investment property 39.3
Financial liabilities (21.9)

Total identifiable assets 19.5
Negative goodwill (0.4)

Total consideration 19.1

Satisfied by:
Cash 9.3

Total consideration transferred 9.3
Carrying value of existing equity accounted interest 9.8

Total consideration 19.1

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration 9.3
Less: cash balances acquired (1.1)

8.2

The fair value of the financial assets includes trade receivables with a fair value of £0.6 million and a gross contractual value of £0.6 million, none of 
which at acquisition date were not expected to be collected.

The negative goodwill of £0.4 million arising from the acquisition results from the cash consideration paid being at a discount net asset value. None 
of the bargain acquisition is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust contributed £2.4 million revenue and £1.8 million to the Group’s profit for the period between the date of acquisition 
and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on the first day of the financial year, the contribution to Group revenues for the period would have been  
£2.9 million and contribution to Group profit would have been £2.2 million.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust
At the beginning of the year the Group recognised associates including 81.8% of the units in Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust and 33.3% of the 
shares in Ashtenne Industrial (General Partner) Limited, both of whom own a share in Ashtenne Industrial Fund Limited Partnership of 99.97% and 
0.03% respectively.

On 12 February 2016 the Group acquired a further 0.9% of the units in Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust for £2.5 million. On 18 March 2016 the 
Group acquired a further 0.8% of the units in Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust for £2.1 million. On 25 April 2016 the Group acquired a further 2.1% 
of the units in Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust for £5.6 million, taking the Group’s ownership to 85.6%.

On 15 July 2016, the Group acquired the remaining 66.67% of the shares in Ashtenne Industrial (General Partner) Limited, thereby obtaining control 
over Ashtenne Industrial Fund Limited Partnership, of which the Group owned 85.6% through its unitholding in Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust. 
Previously equity accounted for as an associate, as a result of the acquisition the Group consolidated 100% of Ashtenne Industrial Fund Limited 
Partnership and recognised a 14.4% minority interest.

On 26 and 27 July 2016, the Group acquired the remaining 14.4% of the units in Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust, thereby obtaining 100% 
ownership and control of the entity.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below:

£m

Financial assets 21.6
Investment property 435.3
Financial liabilities (156.6)

Total identifiable assets 300.3
Negative goodwill (3.9)

Total consideration 296.4

Satisfied by:
Cash 39.5

Total consideration transferred 39.5
Carrying value of existing equity accounted interest 256.9

Total consideration 296.4

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration 39.5
Less: cash balances acquired (9.6)

29.9

The fair value of the financial assets includes trade receivables with a fair value of £4.5 million and a gross contractual value of £4.9 million, £0.4 
million of which at acquisition date were not expected to be collected.

AIF Industrial Fund Limited Partnership recognised a provision in relation to a performance fee due to Hansteen Limited, who acted as asset 
manager to the Fund. At 27 July 2016, the provision was £31.6 million. No income had been recognised by Hansteen Limited and on consolidation 
the provision was eliminated.

The negative goodwill of £3.9 million arising from the acquisition results from the cash consideration paid being at a discount net asset value as a 
result of the performance fee provision adjustment above. None of the bargain acquisition is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust contributed £15.6 million revenue and £23.3 million to the Group’s profit for the period between the date of 
acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on the first day of the financial year, the contribution to Group revenues for the period would have been  
£35.9 million and contribution to Group profit would have been £39.2 million.
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16. Goodwill
Group

2016
£m

Group
2015

£m

Cost:
At 1 January 0.6 0.6

At 31 December 0.6 0.6

Impairment:
At 1 January (0.3) –
Impairment (0.3) (0.3)

At 31 December (0.6) (0.3)

Carrying amount:
At 31 December – 0.3

By segment:
UK – 0.3

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are any indications that goodwill might be impaired. The recoverable 
amounts are determined on the basis of fair value less costs to sell by reference to the valuation of the underlying properties as performed by 
external valuers.

During 2016, the goodwill that was allocated to the acquisition of the asset management business of Warner Estate Holdings plc in August 2013 of 
£0.3 million was impaired to nil. During 2015, the goodwill that was allocated to the acquisition of the Spencer Group portfolio in 2011 was impaired 
by £0.3 million.

17. Property, plant and equipment

Group

Fixtures and 
fittings

£m

Computer
equipment

£m
Total

£m

Cost:
At 1 January 2015 0.6 0.5 1.1
Additions – 0.1 0.1

At 1 January 2016 0.6 0.6 1.2
Additions – 0.2 0.2
Disposals – (0.2) (0.2)

At 31 December 2016 0.6 0.6 1.2

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2015 0.3 0.3 0.6
Charge for the year 0.1 0.1 0.2

At 1 January 2016 0.4 0.4 0.8
Charge for the year 0.1 0.1 0.2
Disposals – (0.2) (0.2)

At 31 December 2016 0.5 0.3 0.8

Net book value:
At 31 December 2016 0.1 0.3 0.4

At 31 December 2015 0.2 0.2 0.4

Notes to the financial statements continued
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18. Investment property
Group

2016
£m

Group
2015

£m

At 1 January 1,059.1 953.9
Additions – property purchases1 479.3 68.0
   – capital expenditure 16.5 11.9
Lease incentives 2.6 0.9
Letting costs – 0.2
Revaluation 43.4 110.8
Disposals (22.1) (39.1)
Transfer to investment property held for sale (10.4) (1.6)
Exchange adjustment 149.1 (45.9)

At 31 December 1,717.5 1,059.1

Investment property held for sale:
At 1 January 1.6 7.5
Disposals (1.8) (7.0)
Transfer from investment property 10.4 1.6
Exchange adjustment 0.2 (0.5)

At 31 December 10.4 1.6

1. Property purchase additions of £479.3 million includes £39.3 million and £435.3 million arising from the acquisition of the remaining units in Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust and 
Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust respectively, which were previously accounted for as associates. Refer note 15.

Included within the property valuation is £9.1 million (2015: £2.6 million) in respect of tenant lease incentives granted. Investment property includes 
£3.0 million of property (2015: £2.6 million) held under finance leases.

Properties classified as held for sale at 31 December 2016 represent properties that were actively marketed as at the year-end and have 
subsequently been sold.

All investment properties are stated at fair value as at 31 December and have been valued by independent professionally qualified external valuers 
CBRE Limited, DTZ, Cushman & Wakefield Debenham Tie Leung Limited, Jones Lang LaSalle or Knight Frank LLP. The valuations have been 
prepared in accordance with the RICS Valuation – Professional Standards January 2014, published by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors 
and with IVA1 of the International Valuation Standards. The valuations are based on a number of assumptions, the significant ones of which are the 
determination of appropriate discount rates, estimates of future rental income and capital expenditure. Rental income and yield assumptions are 
supported by market evidence where relevant.

The Group has pledged certain of its investment properties to secure bank loan facilities and a finance lease granted to the Group (see note 27).

In accordance with IFRS 13, the Group’s investment property has been assigned a valuation level in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy 
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). 
The Group’s investment property as at 31 December 2016 is categorised as Level 3.

Investment properties are valued using a capitalisation methodology applying a yield to current and estimated rental income. Yields and rental 
values are considered to be unobservable inputs and details of the ranges used in each region are as follows:

Information about fair value measurements using unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Fair value at
31 December 

2016
£m

Rent per sq m Yield

Min
£

Max
£

Min
%

Max
%

Belgium 17.0 27.2 90.5 6.5 9.4
France 17.7 28.6 31.7 8.6 12.7
Germany 761.7 15.2 109.4 1.3 17.5
Netherlands 264.7 11.6 79.0 3.7 22.0
UK – Industrial properties 646.4 6.1 158.4 1.8 14.4
UK – Offices 20.4 23.1 625.7 3.1 19.1

Total 1,727.9
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18.Investmentproperty

19.Investment insubsidiaryundertakings

continued
Fairvalue at Rent persqm Yield

31December
2015 Min Max Min Max
£m £ £ % %

Company
2015
£m

Belgium 15.4 20.7 61.1 6.3 8.9

France 14.3 25.4 27.5 9.2 12.9

Germany 634.5 10.2 75.2 4.1 6.9

Netherlands 217.3 3.2 57.2 2.0 10.7

UK 179.2 9.7 134.6 4.1 9.9

1,060.7

Everythingelse beingequal,there is a positive relationship between rentalvalues andthe property valuation,suchthat an increase in rentalvalues
will increasethevaluationof a property andviceversa. However,the relationship betweencapitalisationyields andthe property valuation is
negative;therefore an increase incapitalisationyieldswill reducethevaluationof a property andviceversa.There are interrelationships between
these inputs as they aredetermined by themarket conditions, andthevaluationmovement inany one perioddependsonthe balance between
them. If these inputsmove inopposite directions (i.e. rentalvalues increaseandyields decrease)valuationmovements canbeampli�ed,whereas
if theymove inthesamedirectionthey may beo�set, reducingtheoverall net valuationmovement.

As at 31December 2016,theGrouphadentered intocontracts for £13.2million (2015: £2.5million)of buildingworks thatwere not complete.

Balanceat 1January 393.5

9.0

242.8

(60.1)

Balanceat 31December 585.2

Of the £242.8millioncapitalisationduring 2015, £106.1millionwas inj ected into a numberof UKwholly ownedsubsidiaries as part of a corporate
structure rationalisation. Followingthesaleof assets tootherGroupcompanies fromboththeseentities andfroma new entity acquiredfor £9.0
millionduringtheyear,theCompany receiveddividendsof £96.0million. Theseentitieswerethenwound up resulting inawrite-downtothe
carryingvalueof the investmentsof £60.1million.

Nosubsidiaries areexcludedfromconsolidation.

1 1

1. Figures stated in 2015have beenamendedfromrent persqfeet to rent persqm.

Company
2016
£m

Costandnetbook value:

585.2

3.0

73.2

(0.2)

661.2

Notestothefnancialstatements continued
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Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation

Proportion of
ownership 

interest
%

Proportion of 
voting power 

held
%

Held directly
Hansteen France SAS France 100.00 100.00
Hansteen (Jersey) Securities Limited Jersey (A) 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Jersey Investments Limited Jersey (A) 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Luxembourg Investments S.à r.l Luxembourg 94.90 50.0
Hansteen Luxembourg S.à r.l Luxembourg 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Netherlands B.V. Netherlands 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Netherlands (2) B.V. Netherlands 100.00 100.00
Ashtenne 2013 Limited1 United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Ashtenne Industrial (General Partner) Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Belgium Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Europe Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen FM Limited1

Hansteen (General Partner) Limited1

Hansteen (General Partner 2) Limited1

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

100.00
100.00
100.00

100.00
100.00
100.00

Hansteen Germany Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Germany (2) Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Germany (3) Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Germany Residential Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Industrial Estates Limited1 United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Industrial Investments Limited1 United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Land Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen LP Limited1 United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen LP 2 Limited1 United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen OBP Limited1 United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Property Investments Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen SPI Limited1 United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen SPO Limited1 United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen STC Limited1 United Kingdom 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Office and Retail Limited1 United Kingdom 100.00 100.00

Held indirectly
Arman B01 BVBA Belgium 100.00 100.00
I.P.I Nossegem NV Belgium 100.00 100.00
Small Island Management NV Belgium 100.00 100.00
Tycoons Immo BVBA Belgium 100.00 100.00
Waterloo Investments NV Belgium 100.00 100.00
Ashtenne Industrial Fund Unit Trust Jersey (B) 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust Jersey (B) 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Bad Schonborn S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Billbrook S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Borsigstrasse S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Braunschweig S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Bremen S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Cologne S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Delta GP S.à r.l Luxembourg 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Dormagen S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Dusseldorf S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Geldern S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Germany (4) S.à r.l Luxembourg 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Germany (5) S.à r.l Luxembourg 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Germany (6) S.à r.l Luxembourg 100.00 100.00
Hansteen Germany (7) S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Germany (8) S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Germany Holdings S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Gladbeck S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Gottmadingen S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
Hansteen Hannover S.à r.l Luxembourg 99.74 99.74
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Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

AshtenneCaledonia Limited

Luxembourg

Annual Report andAccounts 2016

Proportionof Proportionof
ownership voting power

Place of interest held
incorporation % %

Placeof incorporation

HansteenHolzhauserMarkt S.à r.l 99.74 99.74

Hansteen LadbergenS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

Hansteen Leipzig S.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenMaisachS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenMiraustrasseS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenNeukirchen-VluynS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenNeussS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenPaderbornS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenPhilipp-Reis StrasseS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenPleidelsheimS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenPorschestrasseS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenQuerumer Forst S.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenRegensburgS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenRodenbachS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenSoltauS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenTegelS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenTroisdorf S.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenViersenS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenWaldstrasseS.à r.l 99.74 99.74

HansteenOrmix B.V. Netherlands 100.00 100.00

Ridderkerk Property B.V. Netherlands 100.00 100.00

Ashtenne Industrial Fund Nominee No 1Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00

Ashtenne Industrial Fund Nominee No 2Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00

Ashtenne (AIF) Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00

United Kingdom 100.00 100.00

Ashtenne (Severnside) Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00

Ashtenne Industrial Fund Limited Partnership United Kingdom 100.00 100.00

HansteenSaltley Nominee No 1Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00

HansteenSaltley Nominee No 2Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00

Norwepp (General Partner) Limited United Kingdom 100.00 100.00

Eachof the undertakings listed above is engaged inproperty development, investment ormanagement.

Theaddressesof the registeredo�cesof theabovesubsidiaries di�erdependent upontheir placeof incorporationandare as follows:

Belgium Schalienhoevedreef 20J, B-2800Mechelen, Brussels, Belgium

France 13 rueAuber, 75009, Paris, France

Jersey (A) 22Grenville Street,St Helier,Jersey JE48PX

Jersey (B) 13CastleStreet,St Helier,Jersey JE45UT

5AvenueGastonDiderich, L-1420 Luxembourg,Grand-Duchéde Luxembourg

Netherlands Ninth Floor, NewAmsterdamTower,Claude Debussylaan 163-165, 1082MC,Amsterdam,Netherlands

United Kingdom First Floor, Pegasus House,37-43Sackville Street, LondonW1S3DL,United Kingdom

1

1. Subsidiary inthe processof being liquidated.

Addressof registeredo�ce

19.Investment insubsidiaryundertakingscontinued

Notestothefnancialstatements continued
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20. Investment in associates
Group

2016
£m

Group
2015

£m

Cost and net book value:
Balance at 1 January 2016 261.3 156.4
Investment in associates 10.2 130.1
Share of results of associates 13.4 46.9
Distributions received (22.4) (32.1)
Distributions accrued 4.2 (1.3)
Disposal of associates (266.7) (38.7)

At 31 December 2016 – 261.3

During 2016, the Group acquired the remaining 50% of the units in the Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust (“HSUT”) for a net price of £9.3 million, taking its 
ownership to 100% and resulting in a gain on business combination of £0.4 million. The Group also acquired the remaining 14.4% of Ashtenne 
Industrial Fund Unit Trust (“AIF”) for a net price of £39.5 million, taking its ownership to 100% and resulting in a gain on business combination of £3.9 
million. The Group’s investments in HSUT and AIF are now consolidated. Further details are given in note 15.

During 2015, the Group acquired a further 45.1% stake in AIF, bringing its total investment to 81.8%. In May 2015 the Group disposed of its 
investment in Hansteen UK Industrial Property Unit Trust II (“HPUT II”).

Distributions from associates
HSUT

£m
AIF
£m

2016
£m

2015
£m

Distributions received 0.5 21.9 22.4 32.1
Distributions accrued (0.3) (3.9) (4.2) 1.3

0.2 18.0 18.2 33.4

Aggregated amounts relating to associates
Summarised balance sheets

HSUT
£m

AIF
£m

2016
£m

2015
£m

Investment properties – – – 475.7
Cash – – – 21.6
Borrowings – – – (157.0)
Other net liabilities – – – (13.4)

Net assets – – – 326.9

Non-current assets – – – 475.7
Current assets – – – 31.0
Non-current liabilities – – – (157.8)
Current liabilities – – – (22.0)

Net assets – – – 326.9

HSUT
£m

AIF
£m

2016
£m

2015
£m

Revenues 0.5 20.3 20.8 46.1
Profit 0.3 14.6 14.9 70.3
Total comprehensive income 0.3 14.6 14.9 70.3

The summarised financial information above represents amounts in the associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs but 
relating to the period of ownership by the Group.
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21. Deferred tax
2016

Group

Carrying 
value of

investment
properties

£m

Currency 
contracts and 

interest rate 
derivatives

£m
Losses

£m

Short-term
timing

differences
£m

Total
£m

At 1 January 2016 (39.1) 1.0 1.7 0.6 (35.8)
(Charge)/credit to income (5.4) – 0.3 (0.3) (5.4)
Exchange differences (6.8) 0.1 0.3 0.1 (6.3)

At 31 December 2016 (51.3) 1.1 2.3 0.4 (47.5)

Deferred tax assets – 0.6 – – 0.6
Deferred tax liabilities (51.3) 0.5 2.3 0.4 (48.1)

2015

Group

Carrying  
value of

investment
properties

£m

Currency 
contracts and 

interest rate 
derivatives

£m
Losses

£m

Short-term
timing

differences
£m

Total
£m

At 1 January 2015 (24.2) 1.1 3.9 (1.8) (21.0)
(Charge)/credit to income (16.2) – (2.0) 2.4 (15.8)
Exchange differences 1.3 (0.1) (0.2) – 1.0

At 31 December 2015 (39.1) 1.0 1.7 0.6 (35.8)

Deferred tax assets – 0.6 – – 0.6
Deferred tax liabilities (39.1) 0.4 1.7 0.6 (36.4)

Company

Carrying 
value of

investment
properties

£m

Currency 
contracts and 

interest rate 
derivatives

£m
Losses

£m

Short-term
timing

differences
£m

Total
£m

At 1 January 2015 – – 1.7 – 1.7
Charge to income – – (1.7) – (1.7)

At 31 December 2015 – – – – –
Credit to income – – 0.5 – 0.5

At 31 December 2016 – – 0.5 – 0.5

Deferred tax assets – – 0.5 – 0.5

At 31 December 2016 the Group has unutilised tax losses of £81.5 million (2015: £55.5 million) available for offset against future taxable profits. 
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £9.1 million (2015: £6.1 million) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised 
in respect of the remaining losses of £71.0 million (2015: £49.4 million) and deductible temporary differences of £25.2 million (2015: £70.8 million) 
due to the unpredictability of future taxable profits.

Unutilised losses carried forward and deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised expire as follows:

Group
2016

£m

Group
2015

£m

Company
2016

£m

Company
2015

£m

Losses
Expiring in 2018 – 0.1 – –
Expiring in 2019 (0.3) 1.4 – –
Expiring in 2020 15.0 15.7 – –
Expiring in 2021 – – – –
Expiring in 2024 1.8 1.5 – –
Carried forward without restriction 54.5 30.7 41.3 17.5

Total – Losses 71.0 49.4 41.3 17.5

Deductible temporary differences (no expiry date) 25.2 70.8 7.5 39.3

The UK corporation tax rate will fall to 19% in April 2017 from the current rate of 20% and to 17% in April 2020. The impact of these rate changes is 
not significant to the Group.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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22. Derivative financial instruments
The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to provide an economic hedge to its interest rate and foreign exchange risks. Further details 
on interest rate and foreign exchange risks are included in note 36.

 

Group
2016

£m

Group
2015

£m

Company
2016

£m

Company
2015

£m

Currency options – 9.8 – 9.8
Interest rate swaps (3.2) (5.2) 1.1 –
Interest rate caps 1.0 – 0.8 –
Convertible bonds – – (25.4) (36.0)

  (2.2) 4.6 (23.5) (26.2)

Non-current assets 2.1 0.4 1.9 0.4
Current assets – 9.4 – 9.4
Non-current liabilities (4.3) (5.2) (25.4) (36.0)

Foreign currency derivative financial instruments
Average contract exchange rate Notional principal amount Fair value

Group and Company
2016

EUR:GBP
2015

EUR:GBP
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Currency options – buy sterling: sell euro
In less than one year 1:1.600 1:1.321 57.9 195.5 – 9.4
In more than one year but less than two – 1:1.600 – 49.6 – 0.4

57.9 245.1 – 9.8

Interest rate derivative financial instruments
Average contract fixed 

interest rate Notional principal amount Fair value

Group
2016

%
2015

%
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Interest rate swaps – receive floating pay fixed
In less than one year 0.3 1.0 8.6 11.9 (0.1) –
In more than one year but less than two 1.0 0.9 47.2 35.3 (1.1) (0.6)
In more than two years but less than five 0.7 0.9 314.2 157.9 (2.0) (4.6)

    370.0 205.1 (3.2) (5.2)

Interest rate caps – receive floating pay fixed
In less than one year 3.1 – 8.6 – – –
In more than one year but less than two – 1.7 – 25.7 – –
In more than two years but less than five 1.2 2.6 118.5 33.0 1.0 –

      127.1 58.7 1.0 –

Average contract fixed  
interest rate Notional principal amount Fair value

Company
2016

%
2015

%
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Interest rate swaps – receive floating pay fixed
In less than one year – 1.0 – 11.9 – –
In more than two years but less than five 0.3 – 150.0 – 1.1 –

  150.0 11.9 1.1 –

Interest rate caps – receive floating pay fixed
In more than two years but less than five 0.3 – 50.0 – 0.8 –

    50.0 – 0.8 –
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23. Trading properties
Group

2016
£m

Group
2015

£m

Balance at 1 January 10.8 6.7
Additions 0.2 1.8
Reversal of prior year write down – 2.3
Write down (0.2) –
Disposals (0.8) –

Balance at 31 December 10.0 10.8

The carrying amount of trading properties approximates their fair value.

In 2015, part of a prior year write down was reversed as a result of an increase in the expected net realisable value of the trading properties.

24. Trade and other receivables
Group

2016
£m

Group
2015

£m

Company
2016

£m

Company
2015

£m

Trade receivables 15.6 12.6 – –
Less: allowance for bad and doubtful debts (3.1) (5.1) – –

12.5 7.5 – –
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings – – 249.5 106.0
Amounts owed by related parties – 1.6 – –
Other receivables 12.3 7.4 0.8 0.6
Prepayments and accrued income 6.3 8.1 0.1 0.1

31.1 24.6 250.4 106.7

The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

25. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The 
carrying value of these assets approximates to their fair value. Included within cash and cash equivalents is £2.0 million (2015: nil) of restricted cash.

26. Trade and other payables
Group

2016
£m

Group
2015

£m

Company
2016

£m

Company
2015

£m

Trade payables 18.9 7.8 – –
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings – – 123.6 98.5
Other payables 6.5 3.8 0.5 –
Accruals 16.7 20.4 0.6 7.3
Deferred income 11.9 6.9 – –

54.0 38.9 124.7 105.8

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period taken for 
trade purchases by the Company is 15 days (2015: 15 days). For most suppliers no interest is charged on the trade payables for the first 30 days from 
the date of the invoice. Thereafter, interest is charged on the outstanding balances at various interest rates.

The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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27.Borrowings
Group Company
2016 2016
£m £m

Covenants

Interest
Facility Drawn Loantovalue cover

2016 2016
Group % £m

Group Company
2015 2015
£m £m

2015 2015
% £m

Bank loans 433.5 77.5

Convertible bonds 107.5

Unamortised borrowingcosts (4.8) (0.5)

536.2 77.0

Current liability 6.2

Non-current liability 530.0 77.0

The bank loans andconvertible bonds are repayable as follows:

Withinoneyearorondemand 7.8

Betweenoneandtwoyears 66.9

Betweenthreeand�veyears 464.6 77.5

Over�veyears 1.7

541.0 77.5

Expiring betweentwoand�veyears 17.5 17.5

£20.0million £20.0million October 2017 60% 200%

€100.0million €100.0million July 2018

€104.1million €104.1million December 2018 65% 200%

€187.6million €187.6million February 2019 65% 190%

€50.0million €40.0million September 2019 65% 200%

€143.5million €143.5million 65% 150%

£330.0million £280.0million July 2021 55% 200%

€5.3million €5.3million March2025

Withtheexceptionof the £330.0millionfacilitywhich is securedthroughcharges against the issuedshare capitalof the relevant property owning
entities,thefacilities detailed aboveare secured by chargesonpropertywithanaggregate carryingvalueof £1,081.6million (2015: £1,037.0million).

InJuly 2013, Hansteen (Jersey)Securities Limited issued€100millionof convertible bondswithacouponof 4.0%.The bondswill, subj ect tothe
satisfactionof certainconditions, beconvertible intoordinary sharesof theCompany.The initial conversionpricewas set at a premiumof 22.5%
abovethevolumeweighted averageshare price between launchand pricing, andwill be subj ect to adj ustments pursuant tothetermsand
conditionsof the bonds.

Bondswereeligible forconversionat theoptionof the bond holderfrom 15July 2016.Underthetermsof the bonds,theCompanywill havethe
right toelect to settle any conversionentirely inordinary sharesof theCompany,cashora combinationof shares andcash. If not previously
converted, redeemedorpurchasedandcancelled,the bondswill be redeemedat par inJuly 2018.

Thecarrying amount of borrowings approximatestheirfairvalue.

Euro 2.7 463.5

Sterling 2.3 77.5

2.6 541.0

TheGroupenters intoderivative�nancial instruments to provide aneconomic hedgeto its interest rate risk. Furtherdetails on interest rate risk
are included in note 36andthe interest ratederivatives aredisclosed in note 22.Aftertaking into account thee�ect of the interest rate swapsthe
weightedaverage interest rates,excluding amortised borrowingcosts,are 3.2%fortheeuro borrowings (2015:3.4%)and 2.4%forthesterling
borrowings (2015: 2.5%).

712.5 280.0

109.8 –

(8.3) (2.0)

814.0 278.0

20.5 –

793.5 278.0

23.2 –

201.1 –

596.6 280.0

1.4 –

822.3 280.0

58.6 50.0

2.5 522.3

2.2 300.0

2.4 822.3

Undrawncommitted facilities

Expiry

Interest rate andcurrency pro�le
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28. Obligations under finance leases
Minimum lease payments

Present value of  
lease payments

Group
2016

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2015

£m

Amounts payable under finance lease:
Within one year 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2
In the second to fifth years inclusive 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7
After five years 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5

2.9 2.7 2.6 2.4
Less: future finance charges (0.3) (0.3) – –

Present value of lease obligations 2.6 2.4 2.6 2.4
Less: amount due for settlement within 12 months   (0.2) (0.2)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months   2.4 2.2

The finance lease is denominated in euro and has an outstanding term of seven years (2015: eight years). For the year ended 31 December 2016 the 
interest rate implicit in the lease was 2.8% (2015: 2.8%). Interest rates are fixed every five years, and interest rate and capital repayments adjusted to 
reflect this.

The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates to their carrying amount. The Group’s obligations under the finance lease are secured 
by the lessors’ rights over the leased assets.

29. Provisions
Group

2016
£m

Group
2015

£m

Legal claims (0.7) –
Other (0.1) –

(0.8) –

Current liabilities (0.1) –
Non-current liabilities (0.7) –

Legal claims
£m

Other
£m

Total
£m

At 1 January 2016 – – –
Additional provisions in the year (0.7) (0.1) (0.8)

At 31 December 2016 (0.7) (0.1) (0.8)

The legal claims provision represents management’s best estimate of the Group’s liability, based on legal advice, for the ongoing legal proceedings 
with a former tenant.

The other provision relates to legal fees on a pending property purchase which had not completed at 31 December 2016.

Notes to the financial statements continued
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30. Share capital
Number of 

shares
m

2016
£m

Number of 
shares

m
2015

£m

Authorised, issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 10p each
At 1 January 721.5 72.2 685.6 68.6
Issue of equity shares 24.3 2.4 35.7 3.6
Share options exercised – – 0.2 –

At 31 December 745.8 74.6 721.5 72.2

The share capital comprises one class of ordinary shares carrying no right to fixed income. There are no specific restrictions on the size of a 
shareholding or the transfer of shares, except for UK REIT restrictions.

The issue of equity shares in 2016 relates to shares issued in respect of the Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan for the performance period ended 
31 December 2015. On 27 August 2015, pursuant to a placing and open offer, the Company raised gross proceeds of £40.0 million (£39.4 million net 
of expenses) through the issue of 35.7 million shares at a price of 112p per ordinary share.

During the year, the Company acquired some of its own shares in order to settle obligations under the Performance Share Plan.

Number
m £m

At 1 January 2016 1.5 1.7
Acquired
18 March 2016 0.7 0.7
Issued to employees
14 June 2016 (0.1) (0.1)
5 September 2016 (0.1) (0.1)

At 31 December 2016 2.0 2.2

31. Notes to the cash flow statement
Group

2016
£m

Group
2015

£m

Company
2016

£m

Company
2015

£m

Profit for the year 109.5 148.3 56.7 64.8
Adjustments for:
Share-based payments 1.4 19.5 1.4 19.5
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0.2 0.2 – –
Goodwill impairment 0.3 0.3 – –
Share of profits of associate and gain on sale of associate (13.4) (53.2) – –
Negative goodwill and other gains (4.3) – –
Profit on sale of investment properties (3.9) (4.4) – –
Reversal of prior year write down of trading properties – (2.3) – –
Fair value gains on investment properties (43.4) (110.8) – –
Impairment of investment in subsidiary – – 0.2 60.1
Dividends received – – (63.5) (177.8)
Net finance costs 21.0 29.5 4.2 12.1
Tax charge 10.4 23.1 (0.5) 1.7

Operating cash inflows/(outflows) before movements in working capital 77.8 50.2 (1.5) (19.6)
Decrease/(increase) in trading properties 0.8 (1.8) – –
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 1.4 (2.4) (165.9) 42.6
(Decrease)/increase in payables (7.1) 6.3 39.3 (36.5)

Cash generated from/(used by) operations 72.9 52.3 (128.1) (13.5)
Income taxes paid (5.0) (4.5) – –
Interest paid (19.9) (16.8) (8.7) (5.6)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 48.0 31.0 (136.8) (19.1)
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32. Operating lease arrangements
The Group as lessee
As at the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating 
leases, which fall due as follows:

Group 
2016

£m

Group
2015

£m

Within one year 1.8 1.4
In the second to fifth years inclusive 5.1 4.6
After five years 28.5 30.9

35.4 36.9

The expense relating to operating leases in the year was £1.9 million (2015: £1.5 million).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group under ground rent leases for land relating to certain of its buildings that are 
classified as investment properties, rentals payable in respect of its office properties and rentals for company cars.

The Group as lessor
The Group leases all of its investment properties under operating leases. As at the balance sheet date the Group had contracted with tenants for 
the following future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases:

Group
2016

£m

Group
2015

£m

Within one year 116.6 72.9
In the second to fifth years inclusive 246.8 158.5
After five years 117.7 84.8

481.1 316.2

33. Share-based payments
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had two equity settled share schemes.
 › Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan
 › Performance Share Plan

The total share-based payment charge for the year under these schemes was £1.4 million (2015: £19.5 million).

Founder Long-Term Incentive Plan (“Founder LTIP”)
The Founders and Joint Chief Executives are entitled to a share award dependent on the growth in EPRA NAV. The target for the Founder LTIP is 
that EPRA NAV per ordinary share (after adding back dividends and other returns to shareholders) must exceed a compound growth rate of 10% 
per annum in a three-year performance period. The Founder LTIP has repeated to reward performance in each three-year period; the current 
performance period ending on 31 December 2018.

The value of the share award for each Chief Executive is calculated as 12.5% of the excess growth over the 10% growth target. Any amount payable 
under the Founder LTIP is to be satisfied by the award of ordinary shares of the Company.

In 2015, the excess growth in EPRA NAV over the performance target over the performance period ended 31 December 2015 was £51.3 million and 
as such each Chief Executive was entitled to 22,906,127 ordinary shares in the Company. The Joint Chief Executives agreed to forgo part of their 
awards under the Founder LTIP equal in value to their PAYE and Employee’s National Insurance liabilities due on the vesting of the awards, which 
were settled on their behalf by the Company. After settlement of these PAYE and Employee’s National Insurance liabilities, which totalled in 
aggregate £23.5 million, each of the Joint Chief Executives were issued with 12.1 million shares instead of the full 22.9 million shares.

As explained in note 4, the total share-based payment charge recognised for the year under this scheme is nil (2015: £18.9 million with associated 
social security costs of £4.3 million for the three-year period ended 31 December 2015).

Notes to the financial statements continued
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2012 nil – –

nil – –

nil – – –

nil – – – –

2016 nil – – – –

Closing share price at grant date

nil
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PerformanceShare Plan (“PSP”)

The PSPawards shareoptionswitha nil exercise priceto Executive Directors andsenioremployees.The numberof optionsgranted is calculated
with referencetotheemployee’s salary andtheshare price priortothegrant date.To re�ect thefact that 2012was atransitionalyear between
the 2005ShareOptionSchemeandthe PSP,twoawardsweregrantedto participants,onewithatwo-yearperformance periodandonewitha
three-year performance period.Vestingof theawards is staggeredoverthethreeyears followingthe performance period,withonethirdvesting
eachyear if performancetargets aremet. Performancetargets are basedonTotalShareholder Returnand NetAssetValuegrowth relativeto a
peergroupof listed UKREITs.

1,285,873 (108,320) 1,177,553 956,014 5.5

2013 454,340 (33,736) 420,604 125,044 6.2

2014 963,589 (416,006) 547,583 7.3

2015 946,473 946,473 8.2

1,203,285 1,203,285 9.3

Thetotal share-based payment chargefortheyear underthis schemewas £1.4millionwithassociatedsocial security costsof £0.1million
(2015: £0.6millionand nil respectively).

The inputs tothe PSPawards shareoptions’valuationwere:

115.5p

Weighted averageexercise price

Weighted averagefairvalue 88.0p

Expectedvolatility 18.24%

Expected life 5years

Riskfree rate 0.76%

Expectedvolatilitywas calculated by referencetodividendadj ustedshare pricesfora comparatorgroupof companies.

A seconddividend in respect of theyearended31December 2016of 3.7ppersharewill be payableon 18May 2017toshareholders onthe register
on21April 2017. Basedonthe numberof shares in issueat 31December 2016thiswill result inadistributionof £27.5million.

On22February 2017the Boardmadeano�erfortheentire issuedordinary share capitalof IndustrialMulti PropertyTrust PLC (“IMPT”). Underthe
termsof theo�er, IMPT shareholderswill receive 300p incashforeach IMPT share heldwhichvaluestheentire issuedordinary share capitalof IMPT
at £25.2million. Hansteenhas sinceacquired,as disclosedon 17March2017, 21.71%of IMPT’s share capital and at the�rst closefortheo�eron
15March2017had receivedvalid acceptancesof 28.44%,which inaggregate represent 50.15%of IMPT’s sharecapital.

As stated intheChairman’s Review,weannouncedthat contracts have beenexchangedontermsforthesaleof Hansteen’sGermanand Dutch
portfolios.Moredetails are contained inthe RNSannouncement andacircularwill be postedto shareholders shortly.

Outstanding Outstanding Average
at start of at end Number remaining life

Year issued price year Granted Lapsed of year (years)

2016

Exercise

Exercised exercisable

2015

107.3p

nil

78.1p

19.21%

5years

0.49%

34.Eventsafterthebalancesheetdate
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35. Related party transactions
Group
Trading transactions
During the year, Group subsidiaries entered into trading transactions with related parties who are not members of the Group:

Provision of services
Amounts owed by related 

parties

2016
£m

2015
£m

2016
£m

2015
£m

Hansteen UK Industrial Property II Limited Partnership – 0.6 – –
Ashtenne Industrial Fund Limited Partnership 1.9 2.9 – 1.4
Hansteen Saltley Unit Trust – 0.2 – –
Apia Regional Office Fund – 0.3 – 0.1
Norwepp Limited Partnership – 0.1 – 0.1

1.9 4.1 – 1.6

The Group provides management services to companies controlled by its associates, which are made at prices comparable to those that would be 
charged for similar services provided to unrelated parties. See note 20 for details of the Group’s associates.

Remuneration of key management personnel
The aggregate remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group and the Company, is set out below. The remuneration 
is paid by Hansteen Limited and forms part of the management fee charged to the Company. Further information about the remuneration of individual 
Directors is provided in the audited part of the Remuneration Report on pages 38 to 41.

Group
2016

£m

Group
2015

£m

Short-term employee benefits 2.0 2.1
Post-employment benefits 0.2 0.1
Share-based payments 0.5 50.4

2.7 52.6

Company
Transactions with subsidiaries
The Company enters into loans with its subsidiaries to provide long-term funding for their investment activities. Interest is charged on these loans 
at LIBOR plus 1.75% to 2.5% (2015: 1.75% to 3.0%) or EURIBOR plus 1.75% to 3.75% (2015: 1.10% to 3.75%).

The Company is charged management fees by its management subsidiary, Hansteen Limited, which undertakes day-to-day management of the 
Group on behalf of the Company.

Surplus funds in subsidiary companies are loaned to the Company at LIBOR plus 1.75% to 2.50% (2015: 2.50% to 3.00% ) or EURIBOR plus 1.75% to 
3.75% (2015: 1.75% to 3.75%). Surplus funds in Hansteen (Jersey) Securities Limited are loaned at 5.13% (2015: 5.08%) to fund acquisitions and 
working capital and deposit amounts are loaned at the standard current account interest rate.

A summary of the transactions with the subsidiaries is as follows:
Company

2016
£m

Company
2015

£m

Interest-bearing loans made to subsidiaries 168.8 32.2
Interest-bearing loans repaid by subsidiaries (42.8) (1.6)
Interest-bearing loans made by subsidiaries (8.2) (1.8)
Interest-bearing loans repaid to subsidiaries 0.9 16.4
Interest-free loans made to subsidiaries 4.5 –
Interest-free loans repaid by subsidiaries – (32.2)
Interest-free loans made by subsidiaries (4.2) (0.9)
Interest-free loans repaid to subsidiaries 0.5 –
Interest income received in respect of interest-bearing loans 3.6 2.4
Interest paid in respect of interest-bearing loans (4.9) (4.8)
Management fees charged to the Company 1.6 1.2

Notes to the financial statements continued
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The balances outstanding at the year-end from transactions with subsidiaries are as follows:

Company
2016

£m

Company
2015

£m

Amounts due from subsidiaries included in trade and other receivables 249.5 106.0
Amounts due to subsidiaries included in trade and other payables (123.6) (98.5)

125.9 7.5

36. Financial instruments
The table below sets out the categorisation of the financial instruments held by the Group at 31 December 2016. The carrying amount of all 
financial instruments, other than those for which a valuation level has been given below, approximates to their fair values. Where the financial 
instruments are held at fair value the valuation level indicates the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique. The fair value hierarchy gives the 
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). 
If the inputs used to measure fair value fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the category level is based on the lowest priority level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument in its entirety.

Valuation
level

Group
2016

£m

Group
2015

£m

Company
2016

£m

Company
2015

£m

Financial assets
Designated as held for trading
Interest rate caps 2 1.0 – 0.8 –
Currency options 2 – 9.8 – 9.8

1.0 9.8 0.8 9.8

Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables 24.8 16.5 250.3 106.6
Cash and cash deposits 82.5 63.4 34.8 43.4

    107.3 79.9 285.1 150.0

108.3 89.7 285.9 159.8

Financial liabilities 
Designated as held for trading
Interest rate swaps 2 (3.2) (5.2) 1.1 –
Convertible bonds derivative 3 – – (25.4) (36.0)

(3.2) (5.2) (24.3) (36.0)
At fair value through profit and loss
Convertible bonds 1 (109.8) (107.5) – –

At amortised cost
Obligations under finance leases (2.6) (2.4) – –
Borrowings (704.2) (428.7) (280.0) (77.5)

(706.8) (431.1) (280.0) (77.5)
Other financial liabilities
Payables and accruals (42.1) (32.0) (124.7) (105.8)
Current tax liabilities (6.6) (6.1) (1.1) (0.8)

(48.7) (38.1) (125.8) (106.6)

    (868.5) (581.9) (430.1) (220.1)

Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to 
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the 
borrowings, the obligations under finance leases, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising 
issued capital, reserves and retained earnings, all as disclosed in the balance sheet.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis in conjunction with the Board. As part of this review, management 
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital and debt.
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36.Financialinstrumentscontinued

Net debt toequity ratio

Reconciliationof movement in net debt intheyear

Financial riskmanagement objectives

Market risk

Foreigncurrency riskmanagement

Group
2016
£m

Group
2016
£m

Group
2015
£m

Group
2015
£m

Obligations under�nance leases 2.4

Borrowings 428.7

Convertible bonds 107.5

Convertible bondsmark-to-market (34.0)

Cashandcashequivalents (63.4)

Net debt 441.2

Equity attributabletoequity holders of the parent 806.2

Net debt toequity ratio 54.7%

Carryingvalueof investment andtrading properties 1,071.5

Net debt tovalue ratio 41.2%

Net debt at beginningof year 397.8

Net (increase)/decrease incashandcashequivalents 44.9

New bank loans raised (net of expenses) 84.0

Bank loans repaid (63.4)

Repaymentsof obligations under�nance leases (0.2)

Foreignexchangemovements recognised inequity (19.8)

Foreignexchangemovements recognised inthe incomestatement (4.4)

Amortisationof bank loanfees 2.3

441.2

TheGroupmonitors andmanagesthe�nancial risks relatingtotheoperationsof theGroupthrough internal risk reportswhichanalyseexposures
by degreeandmagnitudeof risks.These risks includemarket risk (includingcurrency risk, interest rate riskand price risk), credit riskand liquidity risk.

TheGroupseekstominimisethee�ectsof these risks by usingderivative�nancial instruments toeconomically hedgethese riskexposures.The
useof �nancialderivatives is governed by theGroup’s policies approved by the Boardof Directors.Compliancewithpolicies andexposure limits is
reviewed by the Board andmanagement onacontinuous basis.TheGroupdoes not enter intoortrade in�nancial instruments, includingderivative
�nancial instruments,forspeculative purposes.

TheGroup’smanagement reports quarterly tothe Board and bi-annually totheAudit Committee,an independent body that monitors risks and
policies implementedtomitigate riskexposures.

TheGroup’s activities expose it primarily tothe�nancial risksof changes inforeigncurrency exchange rates and interest rates.TheGroupenters
into avariety of derivative�nancial instrumentstomanage its exposureto interest rate andforeigncurrency risk, including:

interest rate swaps andcapstomitigatethe riskof rising interest rates;and
forwardforeignexchangecontracts andcurrency optionsto hedgetheexchange rate riskarisingontranslationof theGroup’s investment in
foreignoperationswhichhavetheeuroastheirfunctionalcurrency.

TheGroup’s exposuretoforeigncurrency arises fromthefact that there are foreignoperationswhichtransact business denominated ineuro,
withthetranslationof the localtrading performanceand local net asset to sterlingforeach�nancial period andat eachbalancesheet dategiving
riseto anexposureto�uctuations inthesterling:euroexchange rate.TheGroup’s approachtomanagingthis exposure is tofund investments in
euro-denominatedoperationswithequity andeuro-denominateddebt that is partly hedged by forwardcurrency optionsto limit theoverall
exposureof theGroup.

Thecarrying amountsof theGroup’s foreigncurrency denominated�nancial instruments at the reportingdate are as follows.Thecarrying amount
of theGroup’s non-�nancial instruments ineuro-denominatedoperations is also presented.

2.6

704.2

109.8

(24.0)

(82.5)

710.1

923.6

76.9%

1,737.9

40.9%

441.2

(14.3)

567.3

(354.7)

(0.2)

54.5

12.3

4.0

710.1

Cash fow

Other

Notestothefnancialstatements continued
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2016
GBP

£m
EUR

£m
Total

£m

Financial instruments (270.5) (498.0) (768.5)
Less principal amount of currency options – 57.9 57.9

  (270.5) (440.1) (710.6)
Non-financial instruments 671.3 1,013.1 1,684.4

Net exposure 400.8 573.0 973.8

2015
GBP

£m
EUR

£m
Total

£m

Financial instruments (59.9) (446.9) (506.8)
Less principal amount of currency options – (245.1) (245.1)

  (59.9) (692.0) (751.9)
Non-financial instruments 454.6 844.3 1,298.9

Net exposure 394.7 152.3 547.0

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group is exposed to the euro through its operations in Belgium, France, Germany and the Netherlands. At 31 December 2016 the net assets of 
the Group were £924.2 million (2015: £806.7 million) of which £518.5 million were denominated in euro (2015: £401.2 million). At 31 December 2016 
the Group had currency options in place to buy £42.2 million for €67.5 million (2015: £231.5 million for €317.5 million).

The table below shows the impact of a 10% strengthening or weakening of sterling against the euro in relation to financial instruments alone.

Group
2016

£m

Group
2015

£m

Company
2016

£m

Company
2015

£m

Increase foreign exchange rates by 10%
Increase in profit before tax 3.6 15.2 1.9 23.1
Increase in other comprehensive income 37.6 42.4 – –
Decrease foreign exchange rates by 10%
Decrease in profit before tax (4.2) 10.7 (2.1) 1.0
Decrease in other comprehensive income (46.0) (51.8) – –

Interest rate risk management
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow funds at floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Group by 
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, by the use of interest rate swap contracts and interest rate 
cap contracts.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative instruments 
during the year.

Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax:

Group
2016

£m

Group
2015

£m

Company
2016

£m

Company
2015

£m

Increase interest rates by 1% (3.4) (2.7) 0.5 0.6
Decrease interest rates by 1% 3.4 3.0 (1.4) (0.4)

There would have been no effect on amounts recognised directly in equity.

Interest rate swap and cap contracts
Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts calculated on 
agreed notional principal amounts. Under interest rate cap contracts, the Group has limited its exposure to increases in interest rates by capping 
interest payable on its borrowings. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the fair value of issued fixed 
rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable rate debt held.
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36. Financial instruments continued
Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is £107.3 million (2015: £79.9 million) comprising trade and other receivables and cash and cash 
deposits. The Group’s principal credit risk is attributable primarily to its trade receivables of £12.5 million (2015: £7.5 million) which consist principally 
of rents due from tenants. The balance is low relative to both the current and net assets of the Group and the Company.

Potential customers are evaluated for creditworthiness and where necessary collateral is secured. There is no concentration of credit risk within 
the portfolio to either geographical business segment or company as the Group has a well spread diverse customer base with no one customer 
accounting for more than 1.7% (2015: 1.4%) of the gross rent roll.

Other receivables consist principally of tax and VAT receivables. These items do not give rise to significant credit risk.

Cash deposits are held at banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which monitors the Group’s short, medium and long-term 
funding and liquidity management requirements on a regular basis. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking 
facilities. As at 31 December 2016 the net debt to property value was 40.9% (2015: 41.2%) and the Group had £656.3 million (2015: £34.3 million) 
of investment and trading properties that were not secured against the Group’s borrowings.

Liquidity and interest risk tables
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative and derivative financial liabilities. The tables have 
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to pay. 
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been 
determined by reference to the interest and foreign currency rates as at the reporting date.

Group

Less than one 
year

£m

One to two 
years

£m

Two to five 
years

£m

More than 
five years

£m
Total

£m

2016
Borrowings (23.2) (201.1) (596.6) (1.4) (822.3)
Interest on borrowings (19.7) (17.8) (24.1) (0.1) (61.7)
Obligations under finance leases (0.3) (0.3) (0.7) (1.6) (2.9)
Interest rate swaps (2.5) (2.4) (1.2) – (6.1)
Payables and accruals (42.1) – – – (42.1)

(87.8) (221.6) (622.6) (3.1) (935.1)

2015
Borrowings (7.8) (66.9) (464.6) (1.7) (541.0)
Interest on borrowings (14.3) (13.2) (12.7) (0.2) (40.4)
Obligations under finance leases (0.2) (0.2) (0.7) (1.6) (2.7)
Interest rate swaps (1.7) (1.5) (1.5) – (4.7)
Payables and accruals (32.0) – – – (32.0)

  (56.0) (81.8) (479.5) (3.5) (620.8)

Company

Less than one 
year

£m

One to two 
years

£m

Two to five 
years

£m

More than 
five years

£m
Total

£m

2016
Convertible bonds derivative – – (25.4) – (25.4)
Borrowings – – (280.0) – (280.0)
Payables and accruals (124.7) – – – (124.7)

  (124.7) – (305.4) – (430.1)

2015
Convertible bonds derivative – – (36.0) – (36.0)
Borrowings – – (77.5) – (77.5)
Payables and accruals (105.8) – – – (105.8)

  (105.8) – (113.5) – (219.3)

Notes to the financial statements continued
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